
AB
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

SUMMONS TO A MEETING

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Peterborough City Council, which will be held in the 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Peterborough on 

THURSDAY 17 DECEMBER 2015 at 7.00 pm

AGENDA
Page No.

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes of the Meetings held on 14 October 2015

(a) Extraordinary Council Meeting 3 - 4

(b) Council Meeting 5 - 30

COMMUNICATIONS

4. Mayor's Announcements 31 - 34

5. Leader's Announcements

6. Chief Executive's Announcements

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

7. Questions from members of the Public

8. Petitions

i) Presented by members of the public
ii) Presented by Members

9. Questions on Notice

i) To the Mayor
ii) To the Leader or member of the Cabinet
iii) To the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS

10. Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council 35 - 36

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for people with 
disabilities, please contact Gemma George in the City Council's Democratic Services team on Peterborough 
(01733) 452268 or by email at democratic.services@peterborough.gov.uk

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268.

(a) Cabinet Recommendation - Phase One Budget Proposals 37 - 82

(b) Licensing Committee Recommendation - Statement of Licensing 
Policy - Licensing Act 2003

83 - 112

(c) Licensing Committee Recommendation - Statement of Principles - 
Gambling Act 2005

113 - 150

11. Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting 151 - 160

COUNCIL BUSINESS

12. Motions on Notice 161 - 162

13. Reports to Council

(a) Report of the Returning Officer - Results of the West Ward By-
Election

163 - 166

(b) Allocation of Seats to Committees Following the West Ward By-
Election

167 - 172

(c) Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations 173 - 196

(d) Registration of the Mayor's Charity with the Charity Commission 197 - 200

(e) Alternative Governance Arrangements Update 201 - 204

Chief Executive

9 December 2015
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at:

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2015
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH

THE MAYOR – COUNCILLOR JOHN PEACH

Present:

Councillors Aitken, Brown, Casey, Coles, Davidson, Elsey, Faustino, Ferris, Fitzgerald, Forbes, 
F Fox, JA Fox, JR Fox, Harper, Harrington, Herdman, Hiller, Holdich, Iqbal, Jamil, Khan, Knowles, 
Lamb, Maqbool, Martin, Murphy, North, Okonkowski, Over, Peach, Rush, Sanders, Saltmarsh, 
Sandford, Scott, Seaton, Serluca, Shaheed, Shearman, Stokes, Swift, Sylvester, Thulbourn, 
Whitby and Yonga.

1.   Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillors Ash, Bisby, Fower, Johnson, Lane, Miners, Nadeem, 
Nawaz, Shabbir, Sharp and Thacker.

2.   Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of Interest.

3.    Honorary Alderman Award

Council received a report from the Chairman of the Honours Panel, Councillor Peter Hiller, 
which recommended that Council award the status of Honorary Alderman to Pamela Kreling, a 
former member of Council and that a badge of office be awarded to any former Councillor 
awarded the status of Honorary Alderman at a formal ceremony on a date to be agreed. 

Councillor John Fox moved the recommendations in the report, citing Mrs Kreling’s dedication 
to the role during her 17 years served on the Council.  This was seconded by Councillor Jamil.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and the motion was CARRIED. 

 
                  Mayor
6.30pm - 6.32 pm

3



This page is intentionally left blank

4



AB
MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2015
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH

THE MAYOR – COUNCILLOR JOHN PEACH

Present:

Councillors Aitken, Brown, Casey, Coles, Davidson, Elsey, Faustino, Ferris, Fitzgerald, 
Forbes, F Fox, JA Fox, JR Fox, Harper, Harrington, Herdman, Hiller, Holdich, Iqbal, Jamil, 
Khan, Knowles, Lamb, Lane, Maqbool, Martin, Murphy, North, Okonkowski, Over, Peach, 
Rush, Sanders, Saltmarsh, Sandford, Scott, Seaton, Serluca, Shaheed, Shearman, Stokes, 
Swift, Sylvester, Thulbourn, Whitby and Yonga.

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ash, Bisby, Fower, Johnson, 
Miners, Nadeem, Nawaz, Shabbir, Sharp and Thacker.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.  

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 July 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2015 were approved as a true and accurate 
record. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

4. Mayor’s Announcements

Members noted the report outlining the Mayor’s engagements for the period 
commencing 6 July 2015 to 11 October 2105.

The Mayor further announced that in 2014, the Council had launched its 2014-15 reward 
and recognition scheme for council employees. The purpose of the scheme was to 
recognise the outstanding and consistent performance of individuals and teams in 
helping to achieve the Council’s priorities or in demonstrating the Council’s core values.

A staff panel had spent much time deliberating which of the 22 nominations received 
should be shortlisted and ultimately awarded with the accolades. 

The Mayor introduced the Employee of the Year and the Team of the Year, this being 
Pat Kilburn and the Trading Standards Team respectively. Pat had been chosen to 
receive the Employee of the Year award for developing a first of its kind toolkit to address 
the emerging issue of carbon monoxide poisoning, which could have the potential to 
cause deaths. The toolkit contained everything the Council needed to deal with the issue 

5



and had been rolled out, with training, which generated income for the Council to other 
local authorities.

The Trading Standards Team had been chosen to receive the Team of the Year award 
for generating income to cover their statutory duty costs. In particular they sourced 
funding from the Food Standards Agency and the Department of Health to cover core 
activities including food, sampling, farm inspections and investigating suppliers of illegal 
tobacco products. The team were also awarded costs and a large financial award under 
the Proceeds of Crime Act following a major counterfeiting investigation. In addition, the 
team continued to support businesses that qualified under the Primary Authority 
Partnership scheme, which enabled the council to recover costs for providing business 
advice and support, including the addition of a new partnership agreement. 

The Mayor presented Pat Kilburn and the Trading Standards Team with their awards 
and advised that the 2015-16 scheme opened on Monday 19 October. 

The Mayor further advised that the deadline was approaching for nominations for the 
city’s Civic Awards. The closing date was the end of October and the winners would be 
announced at the Council meeting due to be held on 17 December 2015. 

5. Leader’s Announcements

There were no announcements from the Leader.

6. Chief Executive’s Announcements 

There were no announcements from the Chief Executive. 

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

7. Questions with Notice by Members of the Public

There were 4 questions submitted by members of the public, these were in relation to:

1. The Council’s policy on statements to the press;
2. Speeding issues along Manor Drive;
3. The possibility of a bus route along Manor Drive; and
4. Investment in renewable energy sources.

The questions and responses are attached at APPENDIX A to these minutes.

8. Petitions

(a) Presented by members of the public

There were no petitions presented by members of the public. 

(b) Presented by Members

Councillor Casey presented a petition signed by local residents which requested that the 
footpath between Benyon Grove and Sellers Grange be closed due to the excessive 
anti-social behaviour experienced by local residents and the damage done to their 
properties.

6



Councillor Sandford presented a petition which called upon Peterborough City Council 
to ring-fence library funding in the 2016/17 budget for Vivacity.

9. Questions on Notice

(a) To the Mayor
(b) To the Leader or member of the Cabinet
(c) To the Chair of any Committee of Sub-Committee

Questions (b) to the Leader or Member of the Cabinet were raised and taken as read in 
respect of the following:

1. OVO and the 100% renewable energy tariff;
2. Acoustic barrier protection, north of the Perkins factory site;
3. Variation to the S106 agreement at the hospital site, Thorpe Road;
4. Central avenue works and the effect on traders;
5. Programme of maintenance for ‘Gym in the Park’; and
6. Monitoring emergency problems in Central Park.

A summary of all questions and answers raised within agenda item 9 are attached at 
APPENDIX A to these minutes.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS

10. Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council 

(a) Cabinet Recommendation – Flood Risk Management Strategy

Cabinet, at its meeting of 20 July 2015, received a report which had been prepared in 
order to meet a statutory requirement for the Council to adopt a local flood risk 
management strategy. This followed public consultation on a draft strategy in 2014.

The purpose of the report was to consult and seek agreement from Cabinet that the 
Peterborough Flood Risk Management Strategy be recommended for adoption by Full 
Council.

Councillor Hiller introduced the report and moved the recommendations contained 
within. He further highlighted that Peterborough City Council was the lead flood authority 
and the potential for flood issues occurring needed to be taken extremely seriously. The 
Council worked extremely well with its partners and the Strategy was the first of its kind 
for the city, having been informed by extensive work and research, leading to a robust 
and easy to understand document, which set out a ten year strategy intended for review 
every five to six years.  

Councillor Holdich seconded the recommendations and reserved his right to speak.

Members sought clarification as to whether Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS), as 
detailed within the Strategy, were to be fitted in new developments only or whether there 
were plans for retro-fitting. 

Councillor Holdich did not wish to exercise his right to speak as seconder of the 
recommendations. 

7



Councillor Hiller summed up and advised that in respect of the question raised regarding 
SUDS, there were plans to look at the roadway systems as these were the main areas 
for surface water flooding and SUDS would be a policy element for new development.  

A vote was taken (Unanimous) and it was RESOLVED that Council adopt the Flood Risk 
Management Strategy.

(b) Cabinet Recommendation – Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 to 2025/26

Cabinet, at its meeting of 21 September 2015, received a report which formed part of 
the Council’s agreed process within the Budget and Policy Framework that required 
Cabinet to initiate and consider financial strategy and budget proposals in order to set a 
balanced budget for the forthcoming financial year. 

The purpose of the report was to:

 Update Members on the forecast financial position of the Council for both the 
current and future financial years;

 Outline national and local issues which would need consideration within the 
medium term financial strategy for 2016/17 onwards; and

 Set out the proposed process and timetable for the 2016/17 budget process 
including dates for the ‘budget conversation’ with the public.

Councillor Seaton introduced the report and moved the recommendations contained 
within, which included a request to Council to permit a move away from the Budget 
Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution to permit a two staged approach to 
the Budget process, as had been well received the previous year. 

Councillor Holdich seconded the recommendations and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the report and in summary raised points including:

 The severe financial pressures being faced by the Council;
 The uncertainty around the business rates;
 The Scrutiny Committees having the right to scrutinise elements of the budget, 

but being denied that right;
 Briefings being required to ensure Members were aware of what they were voting 

for, an example being the removal of the Community Leadership Fund;
 Support for a two stage budget process and the implementation of the cross 

party budget working group;
 The need for clarification as to what could and couldn’t be communicated to 

groups by the budget working group representatives; and 
 The alternative governance arrangements being explored, and the budget 

process utilised by Wandsworth Borough Council, whom Peterborough were 
utilising to base their hybrid model upon. 

Councillor Holdich exercised his right to speak as seconder of the recommendations and 
re-confirmed the benefits of a two stage budget approach.

Councillor Seaton summed up as mover of the recommendations and advised that at 
the current time, the finer detail of budget proposals were not available. These were 
being worked upon and would be brought to Scrutiny in due course.

8



A vote was taken (40 for, 5 abstentions, 0 against) and it was RESOLVED that Council 
adopt the Flood Risk Management Strategy.

The Chief Executive left the Chamber for the following item.

(c) Employment Committee Recommendation – Shared Chief Executive

Employment Committee, at its meeting of 17 September 2015, received a report which 
followed an approach by Cambridgeshire County Council to Peterborough City Council 
of exploring the possibility of a shared Chief Executive arrangement following the 
resignation of the Chief Executive at Cambridgeshire County Council.  

The purpose of the report was for the Committee to consider the outcome of exploratory 
discussions, to endorse the proposal and to recommend to Council that it approves the 
shared arrangements and enters into an agreement with Cambridgeshire County 
Council for a shared Chief Executive.  

Councillor Holdich introduced the report on behalf of the Chairman of the Employment 
Committee and moved the recommendations contained within. He further highlighted 
that it was proposed for the arrangements to be in place for twelve months and for a 
review at six months, possibly by a peer assessor.  Each Council would remain 
responsible for delivering its own political priorities, strategies and policies but the 
arrangements would enable benefits including joint commissioning and shared best 
practice. There would be savings to Peterborough of £110k and the Chief Executive 
would remain with all her statutory appointments under the Peterborough Constitution. 
The arrangements were expected to start on 19 October 2015. 

Councillor Hiller seconded the recommendations and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the report and in summary raised points including:

 The steps being taken to protect the data confidentiality of both authorities;
 Would the Chief Executive be able to apply for the Cambridgeshire County 

Council job if it arose?; and
 If Peterborough City Council could afford to let the Chief Executive go now for a 

number of days a week, would this not be the same in a years’ time?

Councillor Hiller did not wish to exercise his right to speak as seconder of the 
recommendations.

Councillor Holdich summed up as mover of the recommendations and advised that 
relevant data protection policies would be followed. The Chief Executive worked 
extremely hard and the relevant ‘get out clauses’ had been implemented should there 
be issues arising.

A vote was taken (Unanimous) and it was RESOLVED that Council approved the shared 
arrangements and entered into an agreement with Cambridgeshire County Council for 
a shared Chief Executive. 

The Chief Executive re-joined the meeting.

11.   Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting

Councillor Holdich introduced the report which detailed executive decisions taken since 

9



the last meeting including:

1. Decisions from the Cabinet Meeting held on 15 June 2015;
2. Decisions from the Extraordinary Cabinet Meeting held on 3 August 2015;
3. Decisions from the Cabinet Meeting held on 21 September 2015;
4. Use of the Council’s call-in mechanism, which had not been invoked since the  

previous meeting;
5. Special Urgency and Waiver of Call-in provision, which had been invoked since the 

previous meeting as follows:

The Chairman of the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny agreed 
to waive call-in for the following decisions:

i. Installation of Solar Power on Roof Tops – Extension of Qualifying Property 
Ownership – OCT15/CMDN/83

ii. Installation of Solar Power on Roof Tops – Extension of Scheme to Axiom 
Housing Association Limited – OCT15/CMDN/84

iii. Installation of Solar Panels on Roof Tops – OCT15/CMDN/85

The reasons for the waiver of call-in were as follows:

1. That the cut to the Feed-in Tariff was unexpected and there now remained only 
a limited, and short, period of time in which to maximise the feed in tariff.

2. That any delay in progressing this matter was likely to have a serious impact 
upon the funding to be achieved from the solar panel scheme, that such schemes 
were designed to alleviate fuel poverty and therefore acting with urgency would 
benefit those residents most in need of this assistance and that the promotion of 
such a scheme was environmentally beneficial, which was one of the Council’s 
key priorities.  The impact of failing or delaying this scheme, which had a limited 
window of opportunity, could impact on the Council’s ability to sustain other 
services as the predicted income from these schemes was built into the MTFS 
at the higher FiT rate.

3. That the decision to waive call-in was therefore reasonable in all the 
circumstances and this urgency was justified.

The Monitoring Officer had been consulted accordingly.
 

6. Cabinet Member Decisions taken during the period 8 July 2015 to 15 October 2015.

Questions were asked about the following:

Subsidised Passenger Transport Service Provision
i. Councillor Sandford sought confirmation from the Leader that the proposals from the 
Subsidised Passenger Transport Working Group would be considered at the relevant 
time, this being during Phase 2 of the budget.  

Councillor Holdich confirmed that the proposals would be considered. 

ii. Councillor Thulbourn sought further explanation as to why the proposals had been 
deferred and where the £150k put aside in the budget had gone.

Councillor Seaton advised that it was always money that was going to have to be found 
in the current year and it was felt that the full budget picture was required before money 
could be committed to that particular service. The £150k would need to be found and 

10



the full picture would need to be seen beforehand to identify where the money would 
come from. 

Improving Outcomes for Children and Young People in Peterborough 
Councillor Saltmarsh sought confirmation of when the report would be presented back 
to Cabinet, following further financial analysis of the proposals to enable full 
consideration of the financial implications arising.  

Councillor Coles confirmed that the proposals would be brought back to the next meeting 
of Cabinet or the one after that. 

Extension of the Green Deal Provider Framework and Expansion of the Green Deal 
Community Area Fund
i. Councillor Sandford queried what the impact would be of the Green Deal Scheme 
being ceased.

Councillor Seaton confirmed that the Green Deal had indeed finished and the impact 
would be that no more homes would be able to sign up. Data could be provided on how 
many homes had signed up so far and a communication was due to go out with regards 
the scheme in due course. 

iii. Councillor Shearman queried whether given the uncertainty around the programme 
and funding, it would have been better for the Cabinet Member to have waited to take 
the decision on the 27 July, as the statement from the Secretary of State had been 
released on 23 July, four days earlier. 

Councillor Seaton advised that he did not believe that he should have waited and 
reconfirmed that the scheme had ended for new people wishing to sign up, however 
there were people who had already signed up who would now be going through the 
process. 

iv. Councillor Jamil requested an update on behalf of residents as to what would happen 
now that the Mark Group had gone into administration in terms of works being 
completed.

Councillor Seaton advised that the Council would continue to work on a complete list of 
residents and landlords who had contracts with the Mark Group as part of the 
Heataborough Scheme and this included the status of works and if any monies were 
paid to the Mark Group. It was now understood that the company had contracts to carry 
out work at around 150 properties in Peterborough, however the Council was not party 
to these contracts as they were between the Mark Group and the property owners. The 
Council was in touch with the Mark Group’s administrator and was starting to get more 
information about the contracts, therefore it was expected that the Council would be in 
a position to start contacting affected residents directly in the coming days and a more 
detailed update would be available within the next week. Information would be available 
on the Council’s website and a statement was due to go out which would be circulated 
to Councillors. 

Councillor Holdich further advised that Councillors would be kept up to date as 
information came forward.

West Town Primary School
Councillor Murphy sought clarification as to what the plans were for the old school and 
school field and whether there were any plans to mitigate against the issues of children 
crossing Thorpe road to get to the playing field. 

11



Councillor Holdich advised that although Councillor Murphy’s question did not relate to 
the decision, he was happy to give him a briefing on the other issues outlined. 
Furthermore, building on the site had commenced that day.

Installation of Solar Panels on Roof Tops – Extension of Qualifying Property Ownership
Councillor Thulbourn advised that many people still did not understand that the 
‘mortgage rooftop’ issue had now been resolved, could a programme of education be 
set up?

Councillor Holdich advised that work would be undertaken to get the message out to 
residents.

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

12. Motions on Notice

1. Motion from Councillor Knowles

Councillor Knowles moved the following motion:

That this Council records its concern that members convicted of electoral fraud should 
be permitted to stand for election and that this Council ought to write to the Electoral 
Commission expressing its concern and calling for a change in the law for a lifetime 
disqualification on any proposed candidate who has such a conviction.

In moving his motion, Councillor Knowles advised that five years following release from 
prison, individuals could once again stand for Council. The motion was an attempt to 
discourage further fraud and to bring about a change in the law.

Councillor Whitby seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and commented that individuals standing for election 
asked residents to put their trust in them and individuals who tried to cheat the 
democratic process broke this trust in the worst possible way. A stance did need to be 
taken against the issue. 

Councillor Whitby exercised his right to speak and advised that if people did not believe 
the electoral process could be trusted, the whole democratic process could be put at 
risk. The honesty of politicians was very much in question at the current time and they 
should not be treated any differently to any other convicted criminal. 

Councillor Knowles did not have anything further to add in summing up. 

A vote was taken (40 for, 15 against, 1 abstention) and the motion was CARRIED. 

2. Motion from Councillor Knowles

Councillor Knowles moved the following motion:

That in order to assist our councillors to communicate effectively with their residents, the 
Council makes annual training available, backed by a financial support scheme, to 
Councillors who wish to undertake a course of training to improve their skills in verbal 
and/or written English.

12



In moving his motion, Councillor Knowles advised that instruction could come from the 
college at little cost and would enable Councillors to be better understood and would 
also remove the bars to enable Councillors to take up higher posts in the Council. 

Councillor Whitby seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 Would provision be made for other Councillors to learn other languages?
 Members Services regularly sent out training opportunities to Councillors and 

Members could request training if required;
 If Councillors had been elected, they had obviously already communicated well 

with their electorate; and
 Peterborough City Council offered an intensive training programme for all 

Councillors and it was a good scheme.

Councillor Whitby exercised his right to speak and advised that if individuals wished to 
do so, they should be permitted the opportunity to improve their standard of English 
either written or verbal and if the Council could help and make this training available it 
would be a good thing. 

Councillor Knowles summed up as mover of the motion and advised that the motion was 
necessary as there were some very good candidates whose grasp of English was limited 
and efforts needed to be made in order to support those candidates. 

A vote was taken on the motion (4 for, 36 against, 5 abstentions) and the motion was 
DEFEATED.

3. Motion from Councillor Knowles

Councillor Knowles moved the following motion:

That Council notes the damaging impact that electoral fraud has on democracy and that 
the Members of this Council can actively discourage electoral fraud by removing 
photographs of ex-Mayors from the Council chamber if that Councillor has been 
convicted of an electoral offence.  

 
The position of Mayor is a highly respected civic role and those convicted of electoral 
fraud, even where those convictions may be spent, ought not to be allowed the privilege 
of their photographs remaining on display in the Mayor’s Parlour.  The shame of knowing 
that their Mayoral photograph will be removed from the Chamber is a good deterrent 
and this Council is invited to consent to the removal of any such current photographs 
from the Mayor’s Parlour.

In moving his motion, Councillor Knowles advised that he personally had looked up to 
previous Mayors and seeing the photographs of those convicted of electoral fraud was 
disappointing to him.

Councillor Whitby seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

13



 Irrespective of whether or not the individual had been convicted of electoral 
fraud, they were part of the history of the city and the retrospective removal of 
photographs was deemed petty;

 It was not believed the implementation of this motion would be enough alone to 
deter individuals of committing fraud if that was their intention;

 The motion was an attempt to re-write history and this was not acceptable; and
 It was important for the city to have continuity and a complete record of the 

Mayors serving in the city.

Councillor Whitby exercised his right to speak and advised that if the motion was not 
implemented it could be perceived as condoning the actions of those individuals who 
had committed fraud. Individuals convicted of fraud, particularly in the current climate, 
should not be celebrated. 

Councillor Knowles summed up as mover of the motion and advised that it was not his 
intention to attempt to re-write history  

A vote was taken on the motion (5 for, 36 against, 4 abstentions) and the motion was 
DEFEATED.

4. Motion from Councillor Murphy

Councillor Murphy moved the following motion:

That this Council:

1. Notes that the proposals to close Bridge Street Station and dispose of the buildings 
have not been discussed widely.

2. Notes that a new Chief Constable has recently been appointed and that the 
incumbent Police and Crime Commissioner has indicated he may not be seeking re-
election.

3. Believes that major decisions should be made transparently and that the closure of 
the Bridge Street Police Station should be considered in consultation with 
Peterborough City Council and its Leader. Confidence in frontline policing in the 
Peterborough area is a major issue and the closure of our Police Station is a matter 
of public concern and interest. 

4. Requests that the proposal to close Bridge Street Station is determined through 
transparent decision making and following the Police and Crime Commissioner 
elections in May 2016, the police service leadership engage with council 
representatives over any future ideas to close Peterborough police stations. 

5. In view of this motion Council requests that any decision on the disposal of 
Peterborough Police Station is deferred until such time as the new leadership of the 
police service in Cambridgeshire at the forthcoming election is determined.

In moving his motion, Councillor Murphy advised of the history of the site and his 
concerns at the proposals to close the Station. The Police Crime Commissioner had the 
responsibility for the estate and the Station should not be closed without a plan for 
policing in the city. The current Commissioner had stated that he would not stand again 
and therefore any decision on the Station should be deferred until the new 
Commissioner was in post in order to allow appropriate discussions to take place. 

14



Councillor Jamil seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 It was always the intention to close the Station with the move to Thorpe Wood;
 The building was not fit for purpose, and it was only a few offices and vehicles 

workshop. No practical opportunity for use for officers based at Thorpe Wood 
and Bayard;

 It was not really the base where officers operated from;
 There had been no communication mentioning the closure of the station. Having 

a central station was symbolic of a police presence in the city centre;
 There needed to be open public consultation on the closure before a decision 

was taken;
 What the use of the building was currently needed to be further explored;
 The station had outlived its time, many officers were based at Bayard Place;
 The station was in the right location and was a visible message to people in the 

city, the function of the building should be looked at in the future;
 Although not fit for purpose, Councillors should be involved in any discussions 

to close the station; and
 If there was no base in the city centre it would take police cars a while to get to 

the city from Thorpe Wood.

Councillor Jamil exercised his right to speak and advised that it was about the public 
perception and reassurance. The station acted as a deterrent to crime and the motion 
asked for the Council to be involved in the process for consideration for the future of the 
station. 

Councillor Murphy summed up as mover of the motion and advised that it was about 
perception of a police presence in the city. Councillors should be involved in any decision 
relating to the building and Bayard Place was not fit for purpose for major public disorder 
instances. 

A vote was taken on the motion (20 for, 25 against, 0 abstentions) and the motion was 
DEFEATED.

5. Motion from Councillor John Fox

Councillor John Fox moved the following motion:

That this Council:

1. Acknowledges the extraordinary risks that members of our Armed Forces, past and 
present, take with their health and lives in defence of our freedom. Unfortunately, this 
unique sacrifice is not being properly recognised within our social care charging 
policies as only veterans who were injured after April 2005 are able to retain their 
military compensation awards in full when accessing support for their care. In 
contrast, veterans who were injured before April 2005, who are known as War 
Pensioners, typically find that all but the first £10 per week of their military 
compensation is taken to cover their care costs.

2. Agrees that it is profoundly unfair that the date when a veteran was injured should 
determine the level of support that they can expect to receive when accessing social 
care. This is particularly true given that both forms of military compensation are 

15



otherwise treated the same and fully exempted from other means tests for statutory 
benefits, including Universal Credit.  To add insult to injury, the current situation 
amounts to a clear breach of the Armed Forces Covenant, which states that;

“Those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether Regular or Reserve, those who have 
served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other 
citizens in the provision of public and commercial services”.

This is because current charging guidance stipulates that compensation awarded to 
civilians injured at work must be fully exempted if placed in a trust fund. War 
Pensioners are unable to protect their military compensation in this way as their 
payments are received in regular, weekly instalments, as opposed to a one-off lump 
sum payment.

3. Recognises, in light of the information above, that there is an unfair anomaly in 
existing social care charging guidance and accordingly resolves to:

i. Identify the number of War Disablement Pensioners currently accessing social 
care support from the Council;

ii.     Honour its Community Covenant commitments by bringing a report to Cabinet 
which explores whether both forms of military compensation can be fully 
exempted from financial assessments for social care support; and

iii.   Support the Local Government Association’s call for additional funding to be 
provided by Central Government to ensure that such a policy change is 
financially sustainable.

In moving his motion, Councillor Fox advised that the Authority was signed up to the 
Armed Forces Covenant, one of the main principles being ‘no disadvantage due to 
service’. Members were therefore asked to support the motion.

Councillor Elsey seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

There was no debate on the motion and the motion was CARRIED unanimously. 

6. Motion from Councillor Ferris

Councillor Ferris moved the following motion:

Recognising the extent of the Syrian refugee crisis, and the significant public support for 
action, this motion calls upon Peterborough City Council to offer its full support to HM 
Government's commitment to accepting 20,000 Syrian refugees across the UK over the 
remainder of this Parliament.

Specifically, it calls upon this Council to make an offer to support the expanded Syrian 
Vulnerable Person Scheme, working through the East of England Regional Strategic 
Migration Partnership; to agree and put in place appropriate arrangements to house and 
support vulnerable refugees, noting that the cost of supporting them in Britain for at least 
their first year will be funded from foreign aid spending.

In moving his motion, Councillor Ferris advised of the terrible situation in Syria and the 
number of people who had fled their homes, leading to the large numbers of refugees. 
The intention was to resettle 20,000 refugees in the UK and the Council was requested 
to sign up to the Syrian Vulnerable Person Scheme to support those individuals coming 
to the UK. Expressions of interest were required by the end of the following week and 

16



the first year of resettlement was covered financially, with years two and beyond also 
possibly being covered. Nearly all Local Authorities had expressed interest in the 
scheme and the Local Government Authority were only looking for expressions of 
interest at the current time.

Councillor Sylvester seconded the motion and stated that the scheme would cost the 
Council nothing for at least a year and the Home Office had said they would assist for 
two years and maybe beyond. The Council had yet to make any declaration of support 
for the scheme and other local authorities had done so. Any help was better than no 
help at all. 

Councillor Holdich addressed Council in respect of the current motion under debate and 
also the subsequent motion from Councillor Sandford. Councillor Holdich requested that 
the motions be turned down as the Government’s scheme was not fully understood and 
to pass the motions would weaken any bargaining position. There were details yet to be 
resolved relating to both funding and process and past experiences meant that it needed 
to be right.  There was a shortage of houses and there were not enough school places. 
It was because of the concern for the individuals that the Authority needed further detail 
before making any promises. Many refugees would have multiple health issues, and the 
city was short of GPs and social workers and any influx would increase the pressures 
on staff. 

The authority was doing its best to help, a number of minors had been picked up off the 
street which were costing a million pounds per year. A balanced approach was required, 
showing care for both the citizens of Peterborough and those in need. 

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 The UK had a tradition to be proud of in offering sanctuary to refugees. 
 Refugees and immigrants were entirely different, refugees had been forced from 

their country in times of war and conflict;
 Peterborough should not be known as a place that was not willing to help 

individuals;
 Was it 20,000 individuals or were families included within that number?
 Almost all authorities in the Eastern region had shown a willingness to participate 

in the scheme;
 The motion did not stipulate numbers, this would be a matter for officers;
 To protect the services for the people of Peterborough, the Council must find out 

from the Government in writing what support the city would receive;
 If the motion fell, it gave the message that the Council was not compassionate;
 The individuals would need a considerable amount of support, this needed to be 

taken into consideration;
 There should be more effort put into ending the conflict to allow people to return 

to their own countries;
 The fate of these individuals could not be ignored. These were not economic 

migrants, these were refugees;
 There were no financial implications to the motion, it was purely an intent at the 

current time; and
 The city had a long history of supporting refugees and economic migrants, and 

it was correct that the Council should understand the ramifications of any 
decision before one was made. The levels of support needed to be understood 
and what that support would be for.

Councillor Ferris summed up as mover of the motion and advised that no numbers were 

17



mentioned within the motion. The Council needed to show leadership on the issue and 
it should not be confused with economic migration. The motion requested the Council to 
enter into negotiations only, by signing up to the scheme. 

A recorded vote was requested and taken:

Councillors For: Davidson, Ferris, Forbes, Jamil, Khan, Maqbool, Martin, Murphy, 
Saltmarsh, Sandford, Scott, Serluca, Shaheed, Shearman, Swift, Sylvester, Thulbourn, 
and Yonga.

Councillors Against: Aitken, Brown, Casey, Coles, Elsey, Faustino, Fitzgerald, F Fox, 
JR Fox, JA Fox, Harper, Harrington, Herdman, Hiller, Holdich, Iqbal, Lamb, Lane, North, 
Okonkowski, Over, Peach, Rush, Sanders, Seaton, Stokes and Whitby.

Councillors Abstaining: Knowles.

Following the vote (18 for, 27 against, 1 abstention) the motion was DEFEATED.

7. Motion from Councillor Sandford

Councillor Sandford moved the following motion:

This Council recognises that:

i. Around four million Syrians have fled their country since the civil war began four years  
ago;

ii. The UN High Commissioner for Refugees has stated that Syria "has become the 
greatest tragedy of this century - a disgraceful humanitarian calamity with suffering 
and displacement unparalleled in recent history”

iii. The UN has organised an international scheme that aims to resettle 130,000 Syrian 
refugees by the end of 2016;

iv. A number of Western European countries have so far resettled tens of thousands of 
Syrian refugees under this scheme;

v. The UK Government has only committed to taking 20,000 refugees over five years. 
In comparison, Germany has taken more than this in one weekend. 

Council believes that the UK should be resettling more Syrian refugees than it currently 
is, and that it is our moral responsibility to do all we can as a Council and as a country 
to help to alleviate this humanitarian crisis.

Council therefore calls on:

i. The Leader of the Council to write to the Prime Minister expressing dismay at how 
small a number of refugees a rich country like the UK is willing to take.

ii. The Leader and Cabinet to do all they practically can to work with other local 
authorities, the LGA, government agencies and third sector organisations to provide 
assistance to refugees that are being settled in Peterborough.

18



In moving his motion, Councillor Sandford advised of the importance of taking the 
refugees. The problem was so great, a fair and equitable share of refugees should be 
supported across all European countries. It was important however that the Government 
recognised the extra burden on local authorities. Peterborough should be at the head of 
the queue and these were refugees and not economic migrants, they would contribute 
positively to society and would not be a burden on resources as mentioned. 

Councillor Davidson seconded the motion and exercised her right to speak. She advised 
that the plight of thousands of refugees should not be ignored by the Government, the 
UK needed to take its fair share of refugees and the Government should provide the 
necessary financial support to settle these refugees. 

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 The situation was a very emotive one, however the city had its own problems, 
homeless people, people with health issues and a strain on a number of services;

 The city did have a proud history of welcoming in migrants however a rational 
view of what was to be expected was required;

 The motion went too far. Many people coming across Europe were not refugees, 
they were economic migrants;

 Peterborough was struggling to preserve necessary services and it would be the 
poor who would suffer if further resources were taken away from them; and

 Local MPs should be lobbied requesting more support for the refugees.

Councillor Sandford summed up as mover of the motion and advised that the decision 
made on the motion reflected what type of city Peterborough wanted to be. There was 
an international crisis happening and it needed to be addressed. 

A vote was taken on the motion (13 for, 30 against, 1 abstention) and the motion was 
DEFEATED.

13.     Reports to Council

(a) Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman to the Audit Committee

Council received a report which requested that Council appoint Councillor Kim Aitken as 
Chairman of the Audit Committee for the remainder of the municipal year 2015/16. The 
report further requested Council to appoint Councillor David Over to the position of Vice 
Chairman for the remainder of the municipal year 2015/16, should the position become 
vacant following the appointment of the Chairman.

Councillor Holdich moved the recommendations in the report and this was seconded by 
Councillor Maqbool.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED that Council:

1.  Appoints Councillor Kim Aitken as Chairman of Audit Committee for the remainder 
of the municipal year 2015/16; and

2. Appoints Councillor David Over as Vice Chairman of Audit Committee, for the 
remainder of the municipal year 2015/16, in the event that the Vice Chairman position 
becomes vacant following the appointment of the Chairman. 

19



(b) Notification of Changes to the Executive

Council received a report which advised of changes made to the Executive by the 
Leader and for Council to note these changes. Councillor Sheila Scott resigned her seat 
as Cabinet Member for Children’s Services with effect from 20 July 2015 and the Leader 
appointed Councillor Andy Coles to fill the position. There were no changes to the 
delegations within the portfolio.

The item was presented for information only and there was no debate on the 
report.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED that Council noted the changes 
made by the Leader to the Executive. 

The Mayor
7.00pm – 10.14pm

20



APPENDIX A

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Questions were received under the following categories:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. Questions from members of the public

1. Question from John Green

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street Scene

Our question is in response to a report in the telegraph of 1st October concerning the 
closure of our site Toilet due to the Building being structurally unsafe.

At the end of August when this issue was raised we requested a site meeting with 
Amey, without any reply.

According to the telegraph report reps from Amey are arranging to meet allotment reps 
to discuss possible alternatives”.

Our question is – Is it Council policy for their reps and contractors to make statements 
to the press, while ignoring requests for meetings with the public.

I have a supplementary to my original question as there has been a slight change in 
circumstances. The original email was sent on Tuesday 6th October and on 
Wednesday evening I received a phone call from an Amey surveyor requesting a site 
meeting. We met on Thursday AM and a survey was carried out. We are due to meet 
up again on Thursday 15th, tomorrow morning. My supplementary question is, why put 
signs on the entrances saying that the building is unsafe before a full survey has been 
completed. We note that Amey operatives are still using the building to access 
equipment and materials.

Councillor Elsey responded:

My understanding is that Amey deemed the building to be unsafe, their internal 
surveyors deemed it to be unsafe and therefore in the interest of protecting the public 
and not wishing to have any injuries to the public, they put signs on the door to say that 
until further notice the toilets were out of bounds. I can’t add any more than that, as it 
is different to the question submitted. 

John Green asked the following supplementary question:

I made it a supplementary as the original question was asking for a site meeting. I’m 
taking it that a meeting with a surveyor is a site meeting so I thought it only correct to 
acknowledge that. We’ve had a meeting but it brings up other points which I don’t think 
has been answered because if the building is unsafe then it shouldn’t be in the middle 
of our car park which we use and allotment holder’s use. 

21



Councillor Elsey responded:

I can get a reply in writing, but the bottom line is that the building has been deemed, 
this year, to be unsafe. It seems a non-sensical question to ask why there is a brick 
building in the middle of a car park which has been deemed unsafe, it was not unsafe 
when it was put there and that is why it is there. 

2. Question from Uloma Onwukeme

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development

Can any speed monitoring equipment be installed on Manor Drive. The speed limit is 
30mph but most people do not appear to take note of this. There are a lot of families 
moving in and kids play outside. I am really concerned that someone will get hurt. 
There have been at least 2 accidents that have occurred this year.

Councillor Hiller responded:

Our officers have looked at personal injury data for Manor Drive and you are right, 
there have been two recorded slight injury accidents one in November last year and 
the other in March this year.  I have to tell you however, neither collision was speed 
related.  

Covert speed surveys are undertaken by the police and I’m pleased to tell you a 
request has now been placed for them to undertake a survey at this location.   In the 
interim our Road Safety Team has been asked to undertake two random one hour 
surveys to gauge the average actual vehicle speed.  Once the surveys have been 
completed the results will be shared with the different departments.

I agree with you that concerns have been raised by residents recently, and with this in 
mind two mobile vehicle activated signs are proposed on Manor Drive for a number of 
weeks next month, so all in all I think a very positive response to your question.

Uloma Onwukeme did not have a supplementary question.  

3. Question from Uloma Onwukeme

To Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

Are there any plans to have a bus route for this area? (Manor Drive).

Councillor North responded:

Unfortunately given budget pressures the Council does not have sufficient funds to 
subsidise a bus service for the Manor Drive development. I will however ask officers to 
contact Stagecoach to explore whether a commercially viable service link can be 
provided. 

22



4. Question from Dean Papworth 

To Councillor Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources

We are moving ever closer to a point of no return with regards to global warming and 
the effect of this on our world will be catastrophic, yet still we invest and support the 
production and burning of huge amounts of fossil fuels. We need a commitment from 
local and national governments that we will not continue to invest in these projects, 
whether it be fracking or burning coal. I still read about planned wind farms being 
refused permission due to local residents complaining about them being a "blot on the 
landscape" and the local councils back tracking. Unfortunately if global warming 
continues to progress due to the burning of fossil fuels there will not be a "landscape" 
to blot. The reason I write is because I am concerned that we as a nation are still not 
taking global warming seriously enough and by investing in renewable sources of 
energy not only are we attempting to save the planet but in the long term it will also be 
a very lucrative investment for those that chose to follow that route.

Councillor Seaton may have responded:

Thank you for your question Mr Papworth

And may I first say that personally I have considerable sympathy with the points you’re 
making.

Your question seeks a commitment from local Government that we do not invest in 
projects such as fracking or burning coal. The only area in which this would apply is 
the County Council Pension Fund, on which I represent this City and all other 
employers. Whilst legally the Board members are required to invest to provide the best 
returns, we are looking at this issue as part of our ethical investment review. 

With regards to investing in renewable sources of energy, you may be aware that we 
did seek to establish a wind and solar farm. I agree it would have been a lucrative 
investment returning up to £10m a year to support local services, supplying green 
energy to Peterborough residents and playing a small part in saving our Planet but this 
did not receive support from Councillors.

This Council was one of the original environment cities and in support of our priority to 
be the home of the environment capital we still seek to invest where appropriate in 
renewable energy resources. We also seek, just as importantly, to reduce our energy 
spend and that of our community.
 
Examples of this commitment include:
 

1. By the end of March 2015 installing 6.75 Megawatts of Solar Panels on 
65 council buildings and schools 

2. Providing at least 1500 homes in Peterborough with Solar Panels
3. And completing energy efficiency projects at 52 council buildings and 

schools including the installation of a Combined Heat and Power unit at 
the regional pool

So, to conclude, we are trying hard to do our bit for the Planet and for future 
generations.

Mr Papworth was not in attendance and the response to his question was 
provided in writing.

23



24



COUNCIL BUSINESS

9. Questions on notice to:

a) The Mayor
b) To the Leader or Member of the Cabinet
c) To the chair of any Committee or Sub-committee

1. Question from Councillor Sandford

To Councillor Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources

Would the Cabinet Member for Resources accept my congratulations on his decision 
to roll out free solar panel installation to all eligible private householders in 
Peterborough and to Axiom Housing tenants, in advance of the big cut proposed in the 
feed in tariff at the end of this year.  This shows great commitment to promotion of 
renewable energy in the City and to the Council’s wider environment capital 
aspirations. 

In view of this, could the cabinet member please explain why the Peterborough Energy 
Scheme run by the City Council in partnership with Ovo, offers electricity which is only 
33% derived from renewable sources.  The same company, Ovo, do offer a tariff with 
100% renewable electricity and this is available under partnerships which they have 
with some other local authorities.  So why is this 100% renewable energy tariff not 
available to Peterborough Energy customers?

Councillor Seaton responded:

Thank you for your comments on the free solar panels project, it is much appreciated. 
The Peterborough Energy Tariff is a direct match for the OVO general tariff. Your 
question makes the point that this is only 33% derived from renewable sources, it may 
only be 33% derived, but I think it’s worth pointing out that that’s double the average 
for this country. You mentioned partnerships OVO has with other local authorities, I’m 
aware of two, one is Cheshire East Tariff which has only 15% from renewables, the 
other is Southend who provide 100% renewables tariff, which is some £60 more 
expensive. 

As a council, our initial focus has always been on providing the best tariff to residents 
to enable areas such as fuel poverty to be addressed. So far some 756 people have 
switched with an average saving of £230. We subsequently launched the Pay as you 
go tariff which is seeing average savings of £49.

Introducing a 100% green tariff is next on our agenda with OVO, we do need to 
consider how best to launch it and to ensure there is no confusion with the basic tariff 
I’m sure many residents will be happy to move to a full renewables based tariff even if 
the savings are quite as much.

Councillor Sandford asked the following supplementary question:

I welcome the positive reply put forward by Councillor Seaton. I am pleased that we 
are promoting solar energy in particular by introducing the scheme across the whole 
of the city. I think we have to be conscious of the fact that we are aiming to be the 
environment capital of the country so I would really hope that Councillor Seaton would 
look very seriously at the 100% renewable tariff that the OVO company has because 

25



would he agree with me that if we are wanting to be the environment capital, we should 
be giving the people of Peterborough a choice whether they go for the cheapest tariff, 
which some people may want to have or whether they want to go for the greenest one?

Councillor Seaton responded:

I agree with Councillor Sandford, I mean I think it is a real shame that we don’t have 
our own wind and solar farm. That would have been a lucrative investment for us but 
it would have supplied green energy directly to Peterborough residents and supported 
local services but I think that we will certainly be looking at rolling out that 100% 
renewable tariff, I can’t see any reason why we wouldn’t do it.

2. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Hiller, Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic Development

Would the Cabinet Member explain why the new housing development site part funded 
by the housing association, and Central Govt. funding at the previous Perkins Walton 
Factory site, has had a 10ft high Ministry of Transport Acoustic fence/ Barrier installed 
whilst our constituents at Dukesmead and Brookfield site have been denied the 
equivalent level of acoustic barrier protection only a quarter of a mile north of the site 
of Perkins factory site?

Councillor Hiller responded:

The east coast main railway line passes adjacent to the Dukesmead mobile home park 
and the recently completed residential development off Windsor Avenue. The 
Dukesmead area was developed pre 1974, over 40 years ago, and at a time when the 
rules regarding noise and new development were not as strict as they are now. 
Because of the tougher rules, when permission was granted for the Windsor Avenue 
development it was quite rightly conditioned that an acoustic barrier fence was put up 
by the developer. For the sake of clarity I think it is important to mention that the fence 
is not a ‘Ministry of Transport’ or indeed a Network Rail Structure it was actually erected 
by the developer.

Councillor Davidson asked the following supplementary question:

With retrospect could you please confirm if you would be looking to do anything with 
retrospect to providing some form of acoustic barrier at Dukesmead and Brookfield?

Councillor Hiller responded:

The difficulty we would have is, I’m sure you would agree, newly introduced and 
changing planning policies can’t be implemented or enforced retrospectively on 
existing development. where on earth would we start, it would cost an absolute fortune 
and I think to look at these things as a piecemeal exercise would be terribly difficult but 
I’m more than happy to come down and meet with Councillor Davidson on site just to 
have a look at the situation down there.

26



3. Question from Councillor Murphy

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development

Can the Cabinet Member disclose what discussions or correspondence if any he had 
with the developers or their representatives concerning the application to the recent 
planning committee to vary the 106 planning gain agreement for the Hospital Site off 
Thorpe Road and when he was aware or realised that the proposed variation to the 
agreement would benefit the developers by hundreds of thousands of pounds.

Councillor Hiller responded:

I can confirm that I  have  had no contact whatsoever with the  developers  or their 
representatives prior to the matter coming to the Planning Committee and I was briefed 
 by officers on the viability issue following them being approached by the owner about 
the  matter.

Councillor Murphy asked the following supplementary question:
I would like to ask you if you could reassure residents that it’s not going to be four 
storeys high. Do you agree with me that development should be for the benefit of 
residents and not just the benefit of the developers and thank you for confirming that 
you weren’t predisposed on your decision at the Planning Committee and finally, the 
50 social houses we are now going to lose which are going to cost us a lot to replace 
and maybe more in bed and breakfast and homeless people, do you not regret that 
and do you not think we should take steps as a Council to try and provide those homes 
elsewhere?

Councillor Hiller responded:

Just to repeat, I did have no exchange of correspondence or discussion with the 
developer or their representatives regarding the viability of that proposal as I’ve already 
said. I was briefed by officers on the viability issue following them being approached 
by the owner about the matter, it was explained to me in the briefing how the viability 
issue would be thoroughly investigated and in order to ensure openness and 
transparency regarding the decision making process  the matter was determined by 
the cross party members of the Planning Committee, so I would like to reassure 
Members, including the conspiracy theorists amongst us that where it’s proven that 
sites can’t be delivered, can’t be brought forward the renegotiation of a S106 
agreement in completely in line with national planning policy. In this case it was proven 
and the Planning Committee Members after much discussion, accepted the officer’s 
recommendation. The replacement of the 50 social houses, as you term them, is 
something we will be looking at extremely seriously.

4. Question from Councillor Ash 

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development

I am sure that the Cabinet Member, as do we all, gives full support to local shops and 
recognises that they are essential to any locality.

Though I am confident that everyone will agree that the works at Central Avenue, when 
fully in use, will be a much needed  improvement, I'd like to ask if the cabinet member 
shares my concerns that the these works have had an unnecessarily severe and 

27



adverse impact on Central avenue traders and residents. 

Does he, like me and many residents, believe that the works could have and should 
been carried out in a way to reduce the negative impact on the area and is he, perhaps 
alongside the Leader and senior staff, willing to meet with local traders to discuss ways 
of assisting them until trade picks up and to compensate them for loss of trade?

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

Council policy is that we do not offer compensation for such works because we are 
acting under our statutory duty to maintain and make improvements to the highway 
network. It would be unreasonable to expect the Council to compensate businesses 
for works it is legally obliged to undertake. 

Access has been maintained at all times for the businesses in Central Avenue and the 
works undertaken will benefit the whole community, including the businesses. Indeed 
feedback for the scheme has been extremely positive. 

The planned completion date for the main scheme including the bus stop is the 16th 
October with the additional work added at the request of the Ward Councilors 
continuing into the first half of the following week. The overrun was due to delay on the 
part of the utility companies, coupled with delivering the additional work.

Councillor Ash was not in attendance and the response to his question was 
provided in writing.

5. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street Scene

Can the Cabinet Member please confirm if there is a programme for maintenance in 
place for the Gym in the Park Scheme?

I have been contacted by a local resident who has injured themselves whilst trying to 
use the Crosstrainer/Stepper situated between Goodwin walk and Welbourne Primary 
School.

Councillor Elsey responded:

Both Peterborough City Council and Amey take very seriously the upkeep and 
maintenance of such equipment. The safety of our residents clearly is high on all of our 
agendas. As such I can confirm that there is a programme of maintenance and 
inspections for all of the equipment on this site.  Visual inspections are undertaken on 
a weekly basis, followed by a quarterly, detailed and in depth operational inspection 
which is evidenced in an annual engineer’s report. 

All the inspectors are trained and hold the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents 
(RoSPA) certificates. 

I am sorry to hear of your residents’ mishap and I totally understand the impulse on 
any such incident to immediately blame the equipment and whilst I make no comment 
relating to your resident’s recent incident, this isn’t always the case. I would welcome 
the opportunity to see evidence that any injury was due to malfunction or poor 
maintenance of our equipment. Clearly the most important issue with any incident like 
this is to ensure that when used as intended any such risk to the user is kept to an 

28



absolute minimum.

Councillor Davidson asked the following supplementary question:

I hope this is an isolated incident however I would be happy for you to arrange a site 
visit with me and obviously the person in mind. As I said earlier, I hope it is an isolated 
incident. Can you please confirm whether any other cases or incidents like this have 
been brought to the Council before?

Councillor Elsey responded:

The short answer off the top of my head is no, I’m happy to look into it and report back 
but that’s not the kind of information I carry around off the top of my head, sorry.

6. Question from Councillor Ferris

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street Scene

Please can the Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street Scene reassure the 
many members of the public who use Central Park that, following the drastic cuts which 
mean Amey staff will no longer be present in the Park over the coming months, there 
will be ongoing monitoring to assess any emerging problems? Should there be any 
deterioration in the level of service and condition of the Park, will he immediately review 
and, if necessary, restore the funding that has established Central Park as a Green 
Flag public space?

Councillor Elsey responded:

Thank you Councillor Ferris for your question, the short answer to your question is no. 
No because your question is factually incorrect and no because what you are asking 
for is not within my gift. Allow me to explain.

The cuts you refer to as drastic in in a predictably electioneering way, are the cuts 
which the whole Council agreed to as part of the budget setting process last year, the 
cuts you were extensively consulted on and through your representatives on the cross 
party budget working group discussed at length prior to presentation and acceptance 
in Full Council. Therefore, irrespective of the outcome of the next few months any 
reinstatement would be something which would have to be passed by Full Council and 
not me in isolation.

Contrary to your assumption, Amey staff will be present in the park they simply won’t 
be permanently based there. Central Park will be visited on a daily basis to carry out 
maintenance tasks throughout the coming months. This is well known to the Friends 
of Central Park who have independently suggested that, if you regularly attended their 
meetings, you would be better informed.

Amey staff will report back any concerns within the park in order that the necessary 
corrective action can be taken. As you will all be aware the park received Green Flag 
status again this year and the judging took place following the reduction of 
maintenance already having been applied.

As much as I would like to restore funding to all parks, as previously stated, we 
collectively agreed through the cross party budget working group and Full Council in 
March 2014 to make these reductions. I would also like to add, as an aside and not in 

29



direct response to Councillor Ferris’s question a point of general information that 
several colleagues from the Labour and Lim Dem Group continue to refer to both 
Central and Itter Parks and the need for Amey staff to be there as a constant to deal 
with an increase in anti-social behaviour. It never has, nor will it be the responsibility of 
Amey staff to police or enforce within the parks, they are there to tend to the parks as 
effectively as they can, mindful of finance and resource restraints. The responsibility 
for policing the parks is, and will remain the remit of the Police. Thank you.

Councillor Ferris asked the following supplementary question:

Unfortunately Councillor Elsey has decided to make some sort of party political point 
about this, as my question was based on the concerns of very very many members of 
local communities and so my supplementary question concerns the depreciation of 
what are very valuable assets to this city. Given that we have already seen, and I quote 
from the Friends of Itter Park ‘an increase in anti-social behaviour, vandalism, litter and 
dog fouling in Itter Park can you comment on the suggestion that instead of concealing 
cuts to park budgets within the overall £100k cuts to Amey’s work in the city that it 
might be more helpful to make them transparent and possibly ring fence budgets for 
particular parks so that we can enable effective management strategies to be 
developed in consultation with local communities and I have a direct quote here from 
one of the senior Amey staff ‘that the park will not be manned from 1st October this 
year to 30th April next year’. Yes there will be people in the park doing litter picks early 
in the morning, but they are not available when people need them in the event of 
accidents happening, it’s not just about policing, Amey staff provide a useful deterrent 
for anti-social behaviour. 

Councillor Elsey responded:

I don’t really know what I can add other than what I’ve already said. The policing of 
anti-social behaviour is not down to Amey, yes I accept that their presence in these 
areas may act as a small deterrent to people but they are not there to police it and 
frankly to suggest that the park is going to be completely unmanned is ridiculous. That’s 
not the case and to suggest that we’ve hidden the costs when, if anybody goes back 
to the budget consultation documents all of which are minuted they will see that it was 
quite clear that there was an item in the budget which suggested that there was going 
to be a reduction in service to the parks. Thank you Mr Mayor.

30



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 4

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

  MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1.    PURPOSE OF REPORT: FOR INFORMATION  

1.1 This report is a brief summary of the Mayor’s activities on the Council’s behalf during the last meetings 
cycle, together with relevant matters for information.
(Events marked with * denotes events attended by the Deputy Mayor on the Mayor’s behalf). 

2. ACTIVITIES AND INFORMATION – From 12 October to 13 December 2015

Attending Event Venue
Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Civic Remembrance for Edith Cavell War Memorial and 
Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Meeting with the new Commanding Officer for 158 
Regiment RLC and RSM

The Parlour

Mayor and Mayoress Mayor’s Charity Committee The Parlour

Mayor and Mayoress Meeting with Queensgate Director  The Parlour

Deputy Mayor Bharat Hindu Samaj - Navratri Festival 2015 The Cresset

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Planning meeting for Full Council The Parlour

Mayor Update meeting for Full Council The Parlour

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Extraordinary Council Meeting Council Chamber

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Full Council Council Chamber

Mayor Ealand Warwick Collection Exhibition Opening City Gallery

Mayor and Mayoress The Peterborough School Annual Speech Day Peterborough Cathedral

Mayor and Mayoress Chernobyl Children's Appeal Sale All Saints Church Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Autumn Durgastav 2015 Longthorpe Village Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Edith Cavell Memorial Concert The Deanery

Mayor and Mayoress City of Peterborough Symphony Orchestra Autumn 
Concert

The Voyager Academy

Mayor and Mayoress Meet Teachers from Pu Dong Bureau Jack Hunt School

Deputy Mayor Royal Anglian Freedom March Market Square, St Neots

Mayor and Mayoress Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough B2B exhibition Kingsgate Centre

Mayor and Mayoress Trafalgar Supper Town Hall, Kings Lynn

Mayor and Mayoress Judging the poppy wreaths The Parlour

Deputy Mayor Headteacher Awards Ceremony Gladstone Primary 
School

Deputy Mayor Hampton Pharmacy Services event 14 Stewartby Avenue

31



Attending Event Venue
Mayor and Mayoress The Royal Society of Saint George Autumn Dinner Huntingdon Town Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Poppy Appeal launch Poppy caravan outside 
Town Hall and 
Queensgate

Mayor and Mayoress East Community 40th Anniversary East Community 
Complex

Mayor and Mayoress TV and Movie Fest Cresset Leisure 
Services Ltd

Mayor and Mayoress EID Reunion Party Millennium Centre

Mayor and Mayoress Presentation evening for Organ Donation families Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Mayor’s Charity Event – Clairvoyant Evening Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Diwali Celebrations Cathedral Square

Mayor and Mayoress All Saints Day Service All Saints’ Church

Mayor and Mayoress Opening ceremony of late night Pharmacy Pharmacy First

Mayor and Mayoress Official Reopening of extensive Refurbishment of 
Restaurant

McDonald's Restaurant

Mayor Cambridge 2015 Young People of the Year Awards 
Ceremony 

McGrath Centre

Mayor and Mayoress 21st birthday celebration Colonel Dane Memorial 
Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Launch of "Piccolo" St John's Church

Mayor and Mayoress Fulbridge Academy 80th Anniversary Fulbridge Academy

Mayor and Mayoress Froglife's River Nene Dragon Finder Boardwalks 
Networking Lunch

Thorpe Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Re-dedication of Funeral Directors Premises and 
Chapels

Co-operative 
Funeralcare

Mayor and Mayoress Iqra Academy Awards Ceremony Iqra Academy

Mayor and Mayoress Firework Fiesta 2015 Peterborough Arena

Mayor, Mayoress, Deputy 
Mayor

Remembrance Sunday War Memorial and 
Cathedral

Mayor and Mayoress Curry Lunch Army Reserve Centre

Mayor and Mayoress Remembrance Ceremony Diligenta

Deputy Mayor Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber

Mayor Peterborough Volunteer Fire Brigade Annual Dinner The Bull Hotel

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Armistice Day War Memorial

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

European Local Democracy Week Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Thomas Deacon Academy Juniors - Assembly Thomas Deacon 
Academy Junior

Mayor and Mayoress Federation of Small Businesses AGM Holiday Inn

Mayor and Mayoress Netherton Friendship Club Christmas Sale St Andrew's Church Hall

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Christmas Lights switch on Cathedral Square

Mayor and Mayoress Visit to Fulbridge Academy Fulbridge Academy

Mayor Reception to mark the 97th Anniversary of the 
Republic of Latvia

The Langham Hotel

32



Attending Event Venue
Mayor and Mayoress Visit by Slovakian First Minister The Parlour

Mayor and Mayoress Health and Wellbeing Market Place The Beehive Community 
Centre

Mayor and Mayoress M&S Queensgate Foodhall Launch Marks and Spencer, 
Queensgate

Deputy Mayor City Market Christmas light Switch On Peterborough City 
Market

Deputy Mayor The Peterborough Telegraph Business Awards 2015 Peterborough Arena

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Gang Show The Key Theatre

Deputy Mayor 5 year anniversary of Peterborough City Hospital Peterborough City 
Hospital

Mayor and Mayoress 65th Birthday Party for Amplifon Amplifon 

Deputy Mayor Mayor of Boston – Charity Flog It evening Wyberton Parish Hall

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Choral Society Concert St Mary's Church

Mayor and Mayoress Chairman and Lady of South Holland District Council  
- Civic Service

Broad Street Methodist 
Church

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

Book launch Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Reception for Past Mayor, Retiring Councillors, and 
Alderman Award Presentation

Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Celebration Event - Guiding in Dogsthorpe, Millfield 
and Park area

All Saints Church

Mayor and Mayoress Visit from Regional College Students The Parlour and Council 
Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Charity Committee The Parlour

Mayor and Mayoress VIP Reception Corporate Partnership Launch Peterborough Museum

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor

"Your Army" Presentation & Reception Thomas Deacon 
Academy

Mayor and Mayoress “Country Coats to Syria” at the Smithfield Festival East of England 
Showground

Mayor and Mayoress Opening ceremony Bashoh Restaurant 42 Broadway

Mayor and Mayoress Mayor of Wisbech Charity Ball Wisbech St. Mary 
Community Centre

Deputy Mayor End of Year celebration Millennium Centre

Mayor and Mayoress Mayor of Huntingdon Christmas Dinner Town Hall, Huntingdon 

Mayor and Mayoress Steve Perry’s Variety Concert The Parkway Club

Mayor and Mayoress Visit by Heltwaite School The Parlour and Council 
Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Visit from Newark Hill Academy The Parlour and Council 
Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Business Development Day Council Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Cathedral Advent Procession and 
Kidney Research UK pre-reception

Monkstone House

Deputy Mayor Celebrating the achievement of the Wallace Highland 
Dancing School

Dogsthorpe Community 
Centre

Mayor and Mayoress Visit to the Town Hall from Regional College 
Students

The Parlour and Council 
Chamber

Mayor and Mayoress Millfield Shopping Centre Window Judging 349 Lincoln Road

Mayor and Mayoress The Mayor of Stamford Christmas Dinner and Party 
Night

The Theatre Lounge

33



Attending Event Venue
Deputy Mayor Regional College / Dabati clothing project Regional College

Mayor The Friends of Broadway Cemetery AGM St Marks Church Hall

Mayor and Mayoress King's Cathedral School Christmas Market Park Road

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Citadel Salvation Army Christmas Tree 
Festival

The Salvation Army

Mayor and Mayoress Christmas Grand Opening Of Trinité Village Unit 13, Westgate 
Arcade

Mayor and Mayoress Family Voice Peterborough Network Dinner and 
Participation Awards

The Marriot

Mayor and Mayoress Magic of Christmas, Christmas Fair Avery House Care 
Home

Mayor and Mayoress Bury The Hatchet Reception Room

Mayor Festive Brunch The Peterborough 
School

Mayor and Mayoress Key Theatre Pantomime - Aladdin Key Theatre 
Peterborough

Mayor and Mayoress Official opening of new school library Middleton Primary 
School

Mayor and Mayoress The Peterborough School Carol Service Peterborough Cathedral

Deputy Mayor Peterborough Art Society Annual Art Exhibition St Johns Church

Mayor and Mayoress Holocaust Memorial Day Arthur Mellows Village 
College

Mayor and Mayoress Nativity Performance Dogsthorpe Infant 
School

Deputy Mayor Prince's Trust Celebration Event Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress Meeting to discuss future events at the Cathedral The Parlour

Mayor and Mayoress Afternoon Tea (Mayor’s Charity event) Reception Room

Mayor and Mayoress CCF Awards Evening Nene Park Academy

Mayor Hope into Action - Celebration of new offices 24-26 North Street

Mayor and Mayoress Christmas Music Concert The Church of Jesus 
Christ of Latter- Day 
Saints

Mayor and Mayoress Posh v Shrewsbury Peterborough United 
Football Club

Deputy Mayor Peterborough Take Note Community Choir 
Christmas Concert

The Voyager Academy

Mayor and Mayoress KingsGate Christmas Service Kingsgate Community 
Church

Deputy Mayor A Community Christmas Celebration The Salvation Army

Mayor and Mayoress Annual Carol Service of Northants and Hunts 
Masons 2015

Peterborough Cathedral

34



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 10

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

EXECUTIVE AND COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

(a) CABINET RECOMMENDATION – PHASE ONE BUDGET PROPOSALS 
PAGES 37 - 84

Cabinet, at its meeting of 7 December 2015, received a report as part of the Council’s 
agreed two stage budget process, as outlined in the report considered by Cabinet on 
25 November 2015.

The purpose of the report was to enable Cabinet to consider the feedback from 
consultation undertaken to date with Scrutiny, residents, partner organisations, 
businesses and other interested parties and to recommend to Council approval of 
phase one budget proposals.

IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council:

Approve the phase one budget proposals to enable implementation of these budget 
proposals to commence.

         (The original Cabinet report and appendices follow this report along with the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy Budget 2016/17 Phase One Proposals document and the 
consultation addendum document as presented to Cabinet at its meeting of 7 
December 2015).

(b) LICENSING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION – STATEMENT OF 
LICENSING POLICY – LICENSING ACT 2003 - PAGES 85 - 114

Licensing Committee, at its meeting of 19 November 2015, received a report which 
followed consultation carried out between 6 July 2015 and 13 September 2015 on the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, as recommended by the Licensing Committee 
on 18 June 2015. 

The purpose of the report was for the Committee to note the responses received to the 
consultation, to determine if the current Cumulative Impact Area covering ‘Op-Can-Do’ 
should be retained, to determine if sufficient evidence is available to implement a 
Cumulative Impact Area in East Ward and to recommend adoption of the final 
Statement of Licensing Policy to Council.

The Committee agreed to retain the current Cumulative Impact Area, but not to 
implement a Cumulative Impact Area in East Ward. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council:

Adopt the final Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy.

(The original Licensing Committee report and the Licensing Statement of Principles 
follow this report. The appendices to the original report can be viewed at the following 
link – http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4)

35

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


(c) LICENSING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION – STATEMENT OF 
PRINCIPLES – GAMBLING ACT 2005 – PAGES 115 - 152

Licensing Committee, at its meeting of 19 November 2015, received a report which 
advised of amendments to the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles. 

The purpose of the report was for the Committee to approve the revised Statement of 
Principles and to recommend adoption by Council.

IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council:

Adopt the revised Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles. 

       (The original Licensing Committee report and the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of 
Principles follow this report).

36



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

CABINET AGENDA ITEM No. 

7 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor David Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources
Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Corporate Director Resources

Steven Pilsworth, Service Director – Financial Services
Tel. 452520
Tel. 384564

PHASE 1 BUDGET PROPOSALS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Cabinet Member for Resources Deadline date : 27 November 2015
  
It is recommended that Cabinet:

1. Have regard to the consultation feedback received to date and statutory advice detailed in the 
report when determining the phase one budget proposals, noting that consultation remains open 
and an addendum will be provided prior to the Cabinet meeting and to the Council meeting.

2. Recommend to Council on the 17 December 2015, having had regard to feedback,

a) Approval of phase one budget proposals, summarised in appendices one and two, to enable 
implementation of these budget proposals to commence;

3. Note the timetable for the phase two consultation and formal approval of the 2016/17 to 2025/26 
Medium Term Financial Strategy as detailed at section 5. Furthermore, budget proposals 
approved by Council on the 17 December will form part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
but will not form part of the second stage of consultation or Council debate on 9 March 2016.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT
 
1.1. This report comes to Cabinet as part of the Council’s agreed two-stage budget process as 

outlined in a report considered by Cabinet on 25 November 2015.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1. The purpose of this report is to enable Cabinet to consider the feedback from the 
consultation undertaken to date with Scrutiny, residents, partner organisations, businesses 
and other interested parties to recommend to Council approval of phase one budget 
proposals.

2.2. This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.1 which states to 
take collective responsibility for the delivery of all strategic Executive functions within the 
Council’s Major Policy and Budget Framework and lead the Council’s overall improvement 
programmes to deliver excellent services.

37



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

3. TIMESCALES

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? Yes If Yes, date for relevant 

Cabinet Meeting 7 December 2015

Date for relevant Council 
Meeting

17  December 
2015

Date for submission to 
Government department N/A

4. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4.1. The table below provides a budget summary of the current budget proposals for 2016/17 to 
2020/21 as report to Cabinet meeting on 25 November 2015.

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
MTFS Budget Gap (March 2015) 10,150 14,090 17,470 20,520 22,270 
Forecast grant reductions 6,910 13,990 16,280 12,130 12,130 
Emerging pressures – legislative (appendix 1) 890 1,450 2,010 2,580 4,140 
Emerging pressures - local issues (appendix 1) 1,650 1,680 1,790 1,780 1,770 
Updated Budget Gap Phase 1 19,600 31,210 37,550 37,010 40,310 

Savings - phase 1 (appendix 2)  (9,430) (11,260) (12,650) (12,810) (13,380)
Carry forward of 2015/16 savings (2,660) 0 0 0 0 
Saving proposals still to find (Phase 2) 7,510 19,950 24,900 24,200 26,930 

4.2. In order to ensure that a balance budget is set for 2016/17, a second phase of budget 
proposals will follow after Christmas, where Members and interested parties will again be 
able to provide feedback on these proposals (section 5).

5. CONSULTATION APPROACH

5.1. Cabinet’s approach to seek feedback on phase one budget proposals was outlined within 
the 25 November Cabinet report.  

5.2. All the phase one proposals, which are being consulted upon, are included in Appendix 2.  
Final decisions on phase one proposals are to be approved and recommended to Council 
on 17 December, taking into consideration all of the consultation feedback received by that 
date.

5.3. The opportunity to provide feedback on the phase one proposals have been in the public 
domain since 17 November, confirmed by Cabinet on 25 November and will run until 16 
December.  The budget conversation received to date includes:

a) 12 responses via the online survey.  Cabinet continue to review comments and 
specific ideas;

b) No direct emails or letters have yet been received.

5.4. Cabinet leads have, and will, attend various meetings and discussion forums to gather 
feedback, see following table.  The presentations made at these events have provided the 
context to the Council’s financial position, phase one budget proposals and included 
specific issues that may impact on that groups attending the meetings or discussion forum, 
as well as providing an opportunity to ask more detailed questions.

Forum Date
Borderline and Peterborough Executive Partnership Board 20 November
Disability Forum 26 November

38



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

Schools Forum 2 December
Greater Peterborough Partnership City Leader’s Forum 3 December 
Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 7 December
Youth Council 8 December
Bondholder Breakfast 10 December
Peterborough Housing Partnership 10 December
Connect Group 11 December
Parish Council 16 December
Discussion with Trade Unions
Joint Consultative Forum (JCF)

17 December

5.5. Given the timing of the agenda despatch for this meeting, and further meetings planned 
during the consultation period, it is not possible to include feedback from all consultation 
events in this report.  The feedback, if any from these discussions, will be included as an 
addendum to this report and to Council on 17 December.  

5.6. The addendum will be publically available prior to Cabinet on 7 December and will include 
the finalised phase one budget proposals to be recommended to Council on 17 December 
having given consideration to the feedback received.

Scrutiny feedback on phase one budget proposals

5.7. The Joint meeting of the Scrutiny Committees and Commissions discussed the budget 
proposals, the Council Tax Support Scheme, and the Hardship Policy, at the meeting held 
on 26 November.  Cabinet will provide a full response to the recommendations raised at 
this meeting within the feedback addendum to be tabled at Cabinet on 7 December.

Phase Two Budget Proposals and Formal Budget Process

5.8. The Council will look to repeat the consultation approach with the phase two proposals 
released in January, in line with the following timetable and as part of the formal budget 
process.

Meeting Content Date
Phase Two (including the remaining budget documents for Council Tax, reserves 
and the Medium Term Financial Strategy)

Cabinet Release of second tranche of budget 
proposals 18 January 2016

Scrutiny Formal scrutiny of budget proposals 10 February 2016

Cabinet
To recommend the second tranche of 
budget proposals to Council having regard 
to feedback

29 February 2016

Council Approval of budget and council tax 9 March 2016

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

6.1. Taking into consideration the results of the consultation feedback received to date, Cabinet 
is required to approve and recommend to Council prior to the formal budget approval 
process the phase one budget proposals.  The approval of phase one budget proposals 
will enable the Council to implement savings at the earliest opportunity, either under 
Director Delegation, Cabinet Member Decision Notice or a further report to Cabinet.

6.2. These budget proposals will be included as an addendum to the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2016/17 to 2025/26, noted as arrived by Council on 17 December 2015, but will 
not be debated again by Council on 9 March 2016.

39



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1. Under statutory requirements the Council must set a lawful and balance budget.  The 
approach outlined in this report work towards fulfilling this requirement.

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1. No alternative option has been considered as the Cabinet is responsible under the 
Constitution for initiating Budget Proposals and the Council is statutorily obliged to set a 
lawful and balanced budget by 11 March annually.

9. IMPLICATIONS

9.1. Elected Members

Members must have regard to the advice of the Section 151 Officer. The Council may take 
decisions which are at variance with this advice, providing there are reasonable grounds to 
do so.  It is an offence for any Members with arrears of Council Tax which have been 
outstanding for two months or more to attend any meeting of the Council or its committees 
at which a decision affecting the budget is made, unless the Members concerned declare at 
the outset of the meeting they are in arrears and will not be voting on the decision for that 
reason.

9.2. Legal Implications

In terms of the Council’s executive arrangements, the adoption of the Council’s Budget is a 
role shared between the Cabinet and the Council, whereby the Cabinet (Leader) is 
responsible for formulating the budget proposals and full Council is responsible for then 
approving (or not) those proposals and setting the budget and council tax requirement.  

For the remainder of the year, the principal purpose of the Budget is to set the upper limits 
of what the executive (Leader, Cabinet or officer under delegated executive authority) may 
decide to spend the Council’s resources on.  The Council cannot through the Budget 
overrule an executive decision as to how to spend the money, but the Budget will require 
the Cabinet to exercise their responsibilities for decision making so as not to make a 
decision where they are ‘minded to determine the matter contrary to, or not wholly in 
accordance with the authority's budget’. This means that a decision that leads to excess 
expenditure, a virement from one budget heading to another over the amount allowed by 
Council in the Budget Book or expenditure of unexpected new money outside of the Budget 
is required to have approval of the Council before the Leader and Cabinet can make that 
decision.

When it comes to make its decision on 9 March 2016, the Council is under a legal duty to 
meet the full requirements of section 31A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 which 
includes the obligation to produce a balanced budget.

A principle of fairness applies to consultation on the budget proposals, both consultation 
required under s65 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and more generally as 
proposed here, which operates as a set of rules of law. These rules are that:

1. consultation must be at a time when proposals are still at a formative stage;

2. the proposer must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit of intelligent 
consideration and response;

3. adequate time must be given for consideration and response; and

40



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

4. the product of consultation must be conscientiously taken into account in finalising any 
statutory proposals.

Added to which are two further principles that allow for variation in the form of consultation, 
which are

5. the degree of specificity with which, in fairness, the public authority should conduct its 
consultation exercise may be influenced by the identity of those whom it is consulting; 
and

6. the demands of fairness are likely to be somewhat higher when an authority 
contemplates depriving someone of an existing benefit or advantage than when the 
claimant is a bare applicant for a future benefit.

9.3. Human Resource Implications

In order to deliver the Phase One changes outlined in this document some posts will be 
affected.  The table below explains the staffing implications. 

The approach to minimising any compulsory redundancies will be the same as in other 
years, including deleting vacant posts, redeployment of affected staff and seeking 
voluntary redundancies where it is possible to do so. 

This information relates to Council staff only.  We will outline the impact of the Phase Two 
proposals when they are published in January.

Staff implications Total 
Total number of affected posts 12
Less vacant posts to be deleted (4)
Posts be to affected through redundancies 8
Less voluntary redundancy acceptances TBC
Potential compulsory redundancy total 8

9.4. Equality Impact Assessments

All budget proposals published in this first tranche have been considered with regards to 
equality issues and where appropriate equality impact assessments have been completed 
and available on the council’s website.

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Medium Term Financial Strategy Budget 2016/17 Phase One Proposals Document from 
Cabinet 17 November 2015

41



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

Appendix 1 – Phase One Emerging Pressures

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
LEGISLATIVE PRESSURES
Children in care until the age of 25 150 150 150 150 150
National Living Wage 440 1,000 1,560 2,130 3,690
Climate change levy 280 280 280 280 280
Taxi licensing income 20 20 20 20 20
Children in care until the age of 25 150 150 150 150 150
Income generated through Schools 
Improvement Services - Education 440 1,000 1,560 2,130 3,690

Total Emerging pressures – legislative 1,480 2,600 3,720 4,860 7,980

OTHER PRESSURES
Unaccompanied asylum seeking children 100 100 100 100 100
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 180 180 180 180 180
Increase legal services budget 130 130 130 130 130
School transport 540 540 540 540 540
Procurement 440 470 460 450 440
Property portfolio 260 260 260 260 260
Loss of mausoleum income - - 120 120 120
Total Emerging pressures - local issues 1,650 1,680 1,790 1,780 1,770

42



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION 

Appendix 2 – Phase One Budget Proposals

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
People & Communities savings from 
previous MTFS 2,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Managing Demand - The Front Door 
Project (1,460) (4,160) (4,160) (4,160) (4,160)

New Ways of Working (250) (500) (500) (500) (500)
Reducing spend on agency social workers 
– Children’s Services (420) (370) (340) (340) (340)

Developing a permanency service – 
Children’s Services - (650) (900) (900) (900)

Creation of Health and Social Care System 
teams – Adult Social Care (350) (350) (350) (350) (350)

Income generated through Schools 
Improvement Services - Education (200) (200) (200) (200) (200)

Business rates growth (580) (500) (500) (500) (500)
Council tax growth - one off benefit (1,000) - - - - 
Council tax growth (690) (950) (1,220) (1,480) (1,760)
New Homes Bonus growth (620) (960) (1,330) (1,690) (2,040)
Expansion of solar PV schemes (640) - - - - 
Future delivery of property services (100) (100) (150) (150) (150)
Update on capital programme (270) (210) (160) (160) (160)
Repaying our capital debt over a longer 
period (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)

Revenue impact on changes to Schools 
Capital Programme (920) (630) (330) 620 1,190 

Patching  & Fee for Head of Peterborough 
Highways Services (180) (180) (180) (180) (180)

Coroner’s services (40) (40) (40) (40) (40)
Shared chief executive with 
Cambridgeshire County Council (60) - - - - 

Occupational health, workforce 
development and training (70) (70) (70) (70) (70)

Care Act funding & Public health 
efficiencies (550) (550) (550) (550) (550)

Abolition of contracting out of state second 
pension (S2P) (260) (260) (260) (260) (260)

Abolition of contracting out of S2P (770) (1,580) (2,410) (2,900) (3,410)
Carry forward of 2015/16 savings (2,660) - - - -
Total Phase 1 (12,090) (11,260) (12,650) (12,810) (13,380)

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

1

CABINET AGENDA ITEM No. 

7th December 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr David Seaton

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Corporate Director: Resources

Steven Pilsworth, Service Director Financial Services

Tel. 452520

Tel. 384564

CABINET ADDENDUM – PHASE 1 BUDGET PROPOSALS

Background

1.1. This addendum has been produced in order that Members receive the most up to date 
position possible regarding the Budget Conversation. 

1.2. This document contains:
 An updated list of consultation responses received to date
 Feedback from Joint Scrutiny on the Phase 1 Budget Conversation and resulting 

actions
 Feedback from CMT members on the outcomes of the various Phase 1 

engagement events that have taken place to date.

Consultation Response

1.3. This note contains all Phase 1 Consultation responses received as at 3/12/15 in full. A 
summary of the responses received to date is given in this section. 

1.4. In total 15 responses have been received:
Survey Monkey online form 14
Handwritten response 1

Total 15

1.5. Question 1 - 7 respondents answered question 1 which was ‘Do you have any 
comments to make about the first round budget proposals?’
Response Number of Responses
Positive 3
Neutral 1
Negative 3

Total 7

45



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

2

1.6. Question 2 – Respondents were asked, after having read the consultation document, 
how much they understood the Council’s proposals. Answers can be broken down as 
follows: 
Response Number of Responses
A great deal 3
A fair amount 6
Not very much 4
Nothing at all 0

Total 13

1.7. Question 3 – Of the 15 responses received, 9 answered question 3 which was ‘If you 
have any specific ideas about how the council can save money and protect services, 
please state these here:’. A list of subjects raised is given below.

Response Theme Respondents Citing Issue
Staff/Member pay & allowances 2
Business rates 1
Home-to-School transport 1
Energy 1
Business Parks 1
Community Projects/Grants 1
E-Services 1
Libraries 1
Vivacity 1
Serco 1
Asylum Seekers 1

46



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

3

Recommendations from Joint Meeting of the Scrutiny Committees and Commissions meeting held on 26th November 2015

1.8. The Joint Meeting of the Scrutiny Committees and Commissions have made the following recommendations to Cabinet with regard to 
Phase 1 of the Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26.

Section of Budget Scrutiny recommendation Cabinet Response
People and 
Communities

a) That the Corporate Director: Resources provide the 
Committee with figures to show how much of the 
procurement pressure within Resources is due to 
the proposed changes in the Permanency Service 
in People and Communities

Within the procurement pressure reported within 
Resources, approximately £110k is due to the decision 
to follow an alternative approach with the permanency 
service, based on the level of spend being £4m. The 
savings from the changes to the permanency service 
will be £650k in 2017/18, rising to £900k in 2018/19 and 
each year after that.

The remainder is due to reductions in spend, or using 
alternative sources of funding to cover services such as 
grants, meaning it is not possible to bank savings in the 
same manner.

b) That the Corporate Director for People and 
Communities provide the relevant scrutiny 
committee with a regular report on the progress and 
implementation of the ‘Front Door’ project.  The 
frequency of the report to be decided on 
presentation of the first report.

Agreed – a report will be brought to the Strong and 
Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting 
on 10th March 2016.

c) That Cabinet explore the use of SMS as a 
communications tool across council services and in 
particular as part of the Front Door project.

Agreed – this will be considered within the front door 
projects

Growth and 
Regeneration

d) That Cabinet provide the Sustainable Growth and 
Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee with a 
briefing note listing which council services are being 
sold to generate income and what income had been 
generated from the sale of these services.

Agreed – this will be brought forward after the work on 
the 2016/17 budget is finalised in march 2016

47



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

4

Section of Budget Scrutiny recommendation Cabinet Response
ACTION

e) The Director of Governance to provide details of the 
policy for taxi licensing, particularly regarding the 
limits placed upon the number of licences being 
issued

Licencing: Best Practice Guidance March 2010 and 
legislation does not permit councils to limit taxi 
(hackney carriage) numbers unless there is no unmet 
demand.

No unmet demand is a form of quantity control 
evaluated through an independent survey. The last 
survey was carried out in November 2011 and 
demonstrated that there was no basis for a restriction 
on the number of taxi licences issued. From April 2012 
to date, 10 new taxi licences, in addition to the existing 
number, have been issued. This brings the number of 
taxi licences for Peterborough to 173

48



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

5

Feedback from Conversation Events

1.9. A number of Phase 1 Consultation events have already been held:
 20th November – Borderline & Peterborough Executive Partnership Board. 

 Wendi Ogle-Welbourn attended and the Phase 1 Conversation Document 
was noted. 

 26th November - Disability Forum
 Kim Sawyer attended this event and the Phase 1 Conversation Document 

was noted. 
 2nd December - Schools Forum 

 Terry Reynolds and Steven Pilsworth attended and the Phase 1 Budget 
Conversation document was noted.

 3rd December - Greater Peterborough Partnership City Leader’s Forum
 The Forum requested that the presentation and budget details were 

circulated to attendees for them to comment. 


1.10. Future events are scheduled as follows:

Forum Date Venue Contact    (Finance rep)
Peterborough Community 
Assistance Scheme

7th  
December
10.30am

4.1 Bayard Ian Phillips to lead
Steven Pilsworth

Youth Council 8th 
December
17.30 – 
19.30

Council Chamber Youth Style Scrutiny 
Event.  All Cabinet 
Members and Directors 
invited.  
Kirsty Nutton.

Bondholder Breakfast 10th 
December
07.30 – 
09.00

Future Business 
Centre

Cllr Holdich to lead. 

Peterborough Housing 
Partnership

10th 
December
11.00 – 
13.00

Forli Room Simon Machen /Cllr 
Hiller to lead / attend

Connect Group 11th 
December
10.00 – 
11.00

Gillian’s Office Gillian / Adrian to lead.  

Parish Council 16th 
December
18.30

Bourges / Viersen Adrian Chapman to lead.

Discussion with Trade Unions
Joint Consultative Forum 
(JCF)

17th 
December
09.30 – 
12.30

Viersen Room Kim to lead 
Steven Pilsworth

49



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

6

 Do you have any 
comments to make about 
the first round budget 
proposals?

Having read the first 
round proposals 
document, how 
much do you now 
feel you understand 
about why the 
council must make 
savings of 
£19.6million in 
2016/17?

If you have any specific ideas about 
how the council can save money 
and protect services, please state 
these here:

Cabinet Response

1 Councils should only be 
expected to make efficiency 
savings to improve the way 
services are delivered, not 
provide a lesser service to local 
residents than exists.

Not very much It seems residents are bearing the brunt of 
funding for 2015/16. Should grants be 
reducing it clearly seems business rate 
revenues need to increase. Why are we 
paying for school transport? It should be 
the responsibility of parents to get their 
child to school.

Given the scale of the grant reductions, the council must look 
at ways of providing services for less cost.
None of the savings proposals in phase 1 are service 
reductions, they are all either efficiencies or increasing income, 
including increasing business rate income through the 
development of new business premises.
The Council has a statutory responsibility to get children to 
school in certain circumstances.

2 Doing your best A great deal EndoTherm additive reduces energy 
consumption and carbon. 

The Council has an energy performance contract in place with 
Honeywell. This enables works to be undertaken across 
council buildings, including leisure centres and swimming 
pools, to save energy and money. These savings have been 
built into the budget.

3 Not very much detail. A fair amount Cut Councillor's allowances to zero.    
Close Woodston Library as it is close 
enough to Central Library.     

The level of Councillors allowances is recommended by an 
independent panel. In recent years the Panel has 
recommended a higher level of allowances than Councillors 
currently receive. Councillors have voted not to accept the 
increase.
A major consultation on the library service was undertaken last 
year, showing how communities value their libraries. The 
council has become the first in the country to roll out innovative 
self-serve technology in all its libraries. This has enabled us to 
make savings of over £300,000 in the library service and to not 
only keep all libraries open but to actually extend opening 
hours.

50



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

7

4  Not very much Business parks are being built yet the 
ones in existence are not fully occupied, 
therefore why build more when they are 
not generating income?

Business parks tend to be developed and owned by private 
developers and not the Council.
The Council is keen to encourage such development as there 
is evidence of increasing demand for commercial space, 
leading to increased jobs in the city.
The Council also receives business rates income from such 
developments

5  A fair amount  N/A

6  Not very much  N/A

7  A fair amount Cut the waste that has gone on for years.  
Cut the vastly overmanned senior staff.  
Cut perks and expenses budgets 
drastically.  

The Council has undertaken a number of significant senior 
management restructures in recent years. The most recent 
rounds saved £1.5m across the Council.
In many cases staff are shared with neighbouring councils, 
including the Chief Executive.

8  Not very much  N/A
9 I think the Front Door project is 

a good idea - don't forget 
though about the elderly or 
those who need support to both 
understand and access e-
services. Although I can see a 
range of proposals, they do 
seem very high level and as a 
resident I would be interested to 
see anticipated outcomes and 
risk. 

A great deal Shift services online where possible. 
Scrutinise the value of community projects 
and grants - are you getting value for 
money? They are a lifeline for some 
groups, but are not statutory. 

The front door project will not replace existing methods for 
contacting the council or gaining access to services.
We do believe that in many cases people will prefer the 
convenience of the alternative methods (including shifting 
services online as you suggest).
The value of grants we provide to support projects is annually 
reviewed to ensure it is essential and provides value for 
money.

10 Very prudent A fair amount Ensure Vivacity become self-sufficient. Since the council established Vivacity in 2010, savings have 
been made in the provision of these services, reducing the 
proportion of services funded by the Council. This has been 
partly due to joint initiatives, such as the library service, and 
also due to Vivacity being able to attract more income and 
grant funding as a charitable trust

11  A great deal  N/A

51



ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION

8

12 Why not save even more by 
promoting the current 
government deliberate policy of 
killing off the old, ill and 
disabled?

  N/A

13 Clearly we need a commercially 
astute financial director / CEO. 
These are not savings but 
CUTS 

Not very much The whole SERCO proposition is based 
on greed, They source the service and 
pass back a discount...but there again the 
yardstick is one proposed by SERCO so 
what are the real figures? SERCO will 
never tell you. Cut them loose and regain 
control 

None of the savings proposals in phase 1 are service 
reductions, they are all either efficiencies or increasing income

14  A fair amount   N/A
The increase of £100,000 for asylum 
seekers should be cut to zero and any 
existing expenditure cut to zero. If the 
government insist they come here, the 
government should be told they must 
cover all costs including ongoing costs, 
ringfenced, if necessary. 

15  A fair amount

The Council wants to be self-sufficient. 
The government wants Councils to be 
self-sufficient – so we should only pay for 
existing residents. With far too many 
immigrants in the city we do not want any 
more – A sentiment held by the silent 
majority, whatever God-forsaken part of 
the world they come from.

The Council has a statutory obligation to support these 
individuals. However we do continue to lobby Government for 
support in meeting these costs.

52



 

 
 

ITEM 10(a) – FOR INFORMATION                                                                                               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Budget 2016/17 Phase One Proposals 

Document from Cabinet 
 

November 2015 
 
 

STRICTLY EMBARGOED UNTIL  
5pm on 17 November 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



 

 
 

      
   Page No. 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 3  
 
2. APPROACH TO TACKLING THE FINANCIAL GAP 4 
   
3. PRIORITIES 5   

 
4.  COST INCREASES AND PRESSURES 5 
 
5.  THE BUDGET CONVERSATION 6 
 
6.  APPENDIX 1 - OVERALL COUNCIL BUDGET AND FUNDING 9    
  
  
Service implications - savings/investments 

 

• Appendix 2 - People and Communities 10    
 

• Appendix 3 - Resources 17 
 

• Appendix 4 - Growth and Regeneration 24   
  

• Appendix 5 - Governance                                                                    26 
 

• Appendix 6 - Public Health                 28 
 

• Appendix 7 - Staffing implications  29 
  

                                   
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

54



 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION  
 

This document sets out the first of two sets of budget proposals that will be considered by Cabinet to 
ensure Peterborough City Council has a balanced budget for 2016/17. 

 
These proposals have been set in the context of the incredibly challenging financial position that all 
councils face. Peterborough is no exception to this. Since the financial crash of 2008, the public sector 
has seen unprecedented reductions in funding. In the five years to 2015/16, the council has seen its 
government funding cut by £44million, which equates to nearly 40 per cent of its government grant. 

 
The government will set out plans to deliver a further £20billion of spending reductions in the Spending 
Review on 25 November 2015. The Local Government Finance Settlement will follow this sometime near 
Christmas or early in the New Year. There is therefore considerable uncertainty as to the amount of 
government grant Peterborough will receive in 2016/17 and onwards.  
 
Our current estimate is that we will need to find £19.6million of savings and efficiencies for next year to 
balance our books, or generate additional income to offset the reduction in our budget while protecting 
services for residents.  We will also continue to invest in the city to ensure Peterborough is a great 
place to live, work, visit and stay. 

 
In doing so, the council maintains its unerring focus on three big issues for the people of Peterborough 
– prosperity, education and quality of life. These issues are at the heart of everything the council does 
and in particular how we make increasingly difficult decisions about where to spend the money we 
have available to provide services. 
 
We are also committed to deliver improved efficiency ahead of any reduction to services.   

 
The first set of budget proposals, published on Tuesday 17 November 2015, sets out how the council 
intends to address £12.1 million of this challenge. A second set of proposals, which will need to close 
the remaining £7.5m gap in the budget, will be published in the New Year. This second set will also 
include proposals for council tax.  
 
To be clear, we still have tough challenges ahead. However with a clear vision for the future, and 
careful financial management, we believe we will see the city continue to develop into the strong and 
vibrant community we all want.  This vision has already achieved the following for the benefit of the city; 
 

• Peterborough is the second fastest growing city in the UK. 
  

• Over 1,300 homes were built in the city over the past year - the highest annual figure in more 
than a quarter of a century.  500 of these were affordable homes. 

  

• Peterborough is the UK’s first Gigabit city with some of the fastest internet speeds in the country.  
  

• More than 1,900 new businesses were registered in Peterborough in 2014, making it a record 
year for start-ups. 
 

• Unemployment continues to fall as new jobs are created.  The number of residents claiming Job 
Seekers’ Allowance is at its lowest level since 2002. 

   

• 85 per cent of schools in Peterborough are now rated good or outstanding by Ofsted - above the 
national average and the highest ever achieved in the city. 

  

• The city council’s energy tariff, Peterborough Energy, has saved residents who have switched a 
combined £200,000. 
 

• All of our libraries remain open and through self-service technology we have extended opening 
hours.  Local authorities across the UK want to adopt this innovative technology. 

55



 

 
 

 

• Continued city centre regeneration has seen the completion of works on Bourges Boulevard and 
Long Causeway this year.  This regeneration has attracted new businesses and new investment 
to Peterborough.  
 

• Plans to develop Fletton Quays have been submitted by the Peterborough Investment 
Partnership, of which the council is a joint partner. 

 
On Tuesday 17 November the council launches a city-wide Budget Conversation to find out what local 
residents and business people think about the initial proposals presented in this document. More 
information on the Budget Conversation is available on page six. 

 
This document does not seek to outline all of the services we provide or how our total budget is spent. 
Rather it outlines the financial challenges we face and how we intend to respond to these challenges. A 
chart on page nine (Appendix 1) outlines our total budget for 2015/16 of £139.5m and how much is 
spent in each department.  

 
We have also included the investments we are intending to make in the coming year. 

 
We aim to be open and transparent about our proposed spending plans and publish the first round of 
proposals at this time to give residents, partner organisations, businesses and other interested parties 
the chance to give their comments.  
 

2. APPROACH TO TACKLING THE FINANCIAL GAP  
 
This document outlines the Cabinet’s first phase proposals for how we will tackle the financial gap. 
These proposals demonstrate the Cabinet’s commitment to protect, as far as possible, the services you 
care about the most and our vision for the city. 
 
Our approach is now focused on the following: 
 

• Building a strong and healthy economy which provides jobs for our residents and helps to 

reduce dependency on welfare benefits. The council would then benefit financially from business 

rates, additional council tax receipts and the New Homes Bonus, and reinvest this to support the 

needs of our residents.  In 2016/17 £2.9m of the savings we need to balance our budget can be 

offset because of the positive growth we’re experiencing in Peterborough.  While growth can 

bring additional income for the council it also produces pressures on services which are also 

listed in the document. 

 

• Generating income in new ways to make the council less dependent on taxing its residents and 

on government funding and giving us the independence to support our residents and their needs.  

This includes selling our services to other authorities, such as planning, legal and regulatory 

services, and through innovative energy schemes where we can generate income. 

 

• Changing our culture to be more enterprising as a council by looking for ways to improve value 

for money and reduce costs.  An example highlighted for 2016/17 is a proposed partnership with 

a specialist provider to deliver our adoption and fostering services. 

 

• Changing the way we deliver services and the way we work.  We intend to reduce the 

demand residents have for our specialist services by enabling them to live independent and 

healthy lives.  This will be achieved by providing support in ways that prevent residents needing 

critical and more expensive services and where there is a need to provide specialist services, 

ensuring that those services properly meet residents’ needs.  This includes a new model that 

56



 

 
 

ensures that residents reach the right service first time as well as changing and modernising the 

way council officers work. 

 

• Innovative use of technology.  This will underpin our overall approach. As a council we are 

recognised for being a leader in this field and we will continue to identify, and take advantage of, 

all that this offers. 

3.  PRIORITIES 
 

The Cabinet remains firm in its priorities this year against the funding challenges it faces.  It is worth 
reiterating those priorities: 

 
• Growth, regeneration and economic development of the city to bring new investment and jobs. 

Supporting people into work and off benefits is vital to the city’s economy and to the wellbeing of 

the people concerned. 

• Improving educational attainment and skills for all children and young people, allowing them to 

seize the opportunities offered by new jobs and our university provision, thereby keeping their 

talent and skills in the city. 

• Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults. 

• Pursuing the Environment Capital agenda to position Peterborough as a leading city in 

environmental matters, including reducing the city’s carbon footprint. 

• Supporting Peterborough’s culture and leisure trust, Vivacity, to continue to deliver arts and 

culture. 

• Keeping our communities safe, cohesive and healthy. 

• Achieve the best health and wellbeing for the city. 

 
4. COST INCREASES AND PRESSURES 
 
At the same time as unprecedented reductions in funding, we are also experiencing significant financial 
pressures. We have a range of statutory services that we are required by law to provide, and with 
demand for these services increasing, we have a legal duty to meet these extra demands. Whilst there 
are considerable pressures in the budget, nevertheless there is still a strong commitment by the Cabinet 
to invest in priority areas. 
 
This document, therefore, also outlines the financial pressures we are facing which we need to fund. 
Some of the most significant are outlined below: 
 

• Increased numbers of children in care arising in part from proposed changes in government 

legislation requiring children to be looked after up to the age of 25. 

• Increased costs arising from implementing the government’s proposals for the National Living 

Wage. 

• Investing in our schools to provide the places needed and the education our children deserve. 

We remain fully committed to the growth, regeneration and economic development of the city to bring 
new investment and jobs. We want to build upon the progress we have made in the past year in bringing 
new companies into the city by continuing to position Peterborough as the destination of choice, not only 
for our own residents, but for visitors and investors in the future. 

57



 

 
 

 
5. BUDGET CONVERSATION 
 
The Cabinet wants to hear the opinions of all residents, partner organisations, businesses and other 
interested parties as part of the budget setting process in the form of a Budget Conversation. 
  
In the next financial year we face an enormous challenge of finding savings of nearly £20million to 
balance our books, while continuing to invest in the city to ensure it is a great place to live, work, visit 
and stay. 
 
Therefore we need your help. 
 
Inevitably, less money means changes to the way services are delivered. 
 
We want to understand your views on the first round of budget proposals contained within this document. 
 
It is important to add that with so many savings to find, our room for manoeuvre is very limited and it is 
unlikely that everyone will get the exact outcome they would like.  
 
We want to hear the views of as many people as possible before making final decisions. 
 
The Budget Conversation will ask the following questions: 
 
 

1. Do you have any comments to make about the first round budget proposals? 
 
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ 

 
 

2. Having read the first round proposals document, how much do you now feel you understand 
about why the council must make savings of £19.6million in 2016/17? Tick the answer you agree 
with. 

 

• A great deal 

• A fair amount 

• Not very much 

• Nothing at all 
 

3. If you have any specific ideas about how the council can save money and protect services, 

please state these here: 

JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ 

 
 
 

58



 

 
 

So that we can check this survey is representative of Peterborough overall, please complete 
the following questions. 

 
4. Are you? 

 
Male 
Female 
 

5. Please tick which of the following best describes who you are: 

 

• Resident 

• Business person 

• Member of council staff 

• City councillor  

• Work, but don’t live in Peterborough  

• Member of community or voluntary organisation 

• Regular visitor 

• Other (please state)JJJJJJ.. 
 

 
6. Which of these age groups do you fall into?    

 

• Under 16 

• 16 to 24 years   

• 25 to 34 years  

• 35 to 44 years    

• 45 to 54 years  

• 55 to 64 years  

• 65 to 74 years  

• 75 years or over  

• Prefer not to say  
 

 
7. What is your ethnic group? 

 
 A    White  
     English/ Welsh/ Scottish/ Northern Irish/ British  
     Gypsy or Irish Traveller  
   Any other white background  
 
 B Mixed/ multiple ethnic groups 
     White and Black Caribbean  
     White and Black African  
     White and Asian  
     Any other mixed/ multiple ethnic background  
 
 C Asian / Asian British 
     Indian  
   Pakistani  
  Bangladeshi  
   Chinese  
  Any other Asian background, write in  
 
 D    Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British 
   African  
   Caribbean  

59



 

 
 

   Any other Black/ African/ Caribbean background  
 
 E    Other ethnic group 
  Any other ethnic group  
 
 

8. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? 
YesJJJJJJJJJJJJJ  

            No JJJJJJJJJJJJJ  
 

To get involved in the Budget Conversation, visit our website at www.peterborough.gov.uk and read 
and complete the questionnaire online. 

 
Alternatively, hard copies of the Budget Consultation document and the first phase proposals 
document will be made available from the reception desks of the Town Hall and Bayard Place and in 
all council libraries. These can be returned in person, by emailing budget@peterborough.gov.uk or 
by post to: Head of Corporate Finance, Peterborough City Council, Town Hall, Bridge Street, 
Peterborough, PE1 1HG. 

 
Comments received up to 5pm on Thursday 3 December will be considered by Cabinet on Monday 7 
December 2015.   
 
The consultation will close at 5pm on Tuesday 15 December.  Council will consider the phase one 
proposals on Thursday 17 December 2015.   

 

  

60



 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 – OVERALL COUNCIL BUDGET AND PRIMARY FUNDING 
 
The council’s total net budget in 2015/16 is £139.5 million (this excludes school budgets and expenditure 
and funding for housing benefits).   
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

  

61



 

 
 

APPENDIX 2 
PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES - SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (SAVINGS/INVESTMENTS) 
 
The People and Communities directorate is responsible for ensuring the needs of our residents are met, 
particularly those that are most vulnerable. The department works with adults, children, families and 
communities, including schools, health services and the police.  
 
Adult Social Care 
Adult Social Care is responsible for providing council-run services and buying in and overseeing services 
from a range of organisations for the people of Peterborough. Those services include assessing and 
reviewing people’s needs and managing their care, safeguarding adults who could be at risk of abuse, 
and providing intensive support to help people get over a fall or an illness to reduce their need for long-
term care, known as re-ablement. We provide services or direct payments to ensure ongoing long-term 
support for those with physical, learning and mental health difficulties and complex needs. We also 
support people in reaching their potential for independence over a longer period. 
 
Private, independent and voluntary sector organisations help us support people to maintain their 
independence and stay in their own homes through a range of residential, home-based and community 
support services.  
 
Our assessment and care delivery services for people with mental health needs are provided by 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT). 
 
The budget proposals protect funding for the most vulnerable adults and focus on helping people to live 
independently for as long as possible.   
 
Children’s Services 
Children’s Services provides early help and safeguarding services to the most vulnerable children and 
their families, including children with disabilities and emotional and physical needs.  The budget 
proposals protect funding for education and children’s social care services as they both remain key 
priorities for the council.   
 
Children’s Services is responsible for overseeing and providing services for families and children in 
Peterborough. Our vision is ‘Helping children to be their best’ through: 
 

• Providing children and families with early support 

• Helping families with problems and keeping children safe 

• Giving the best opportunities to children and young people in care 

• Working with schools and others to make sure that children succeed 

This department is responsible for protecting Peterborough’s most vulnerable children and families, 
including children in care and those who need protection from significant harm.  It also recruits and 
supports foster carers and adoptive parents. 
 
Education  
This service is responsible for ensuring schools in Peterborough provide the best possible education for 
children and young people.  This includes providing a range of support for pupils with special educational 
needs, challenging schools and ensuring schools are providing the best educational opportunities for 
children and young people to help them reach their full potential.  Significant improvements have been 
made in recent years with the percentage of schools rated good or better by Ofsted now exceeding all 
our neighbours and above the England average.   
 
There have also been significant pressures arising from the increase in the population of Peterborough. 
This has particularly impacted upon education, both in terms of school places and also the need to 

62



 

 
 

provide services to a greater number of children and young people.  We have been successful in bidding 
for further funding from the government to expand our school estate. 
 
Communities 
Communities is responsible for assessing the needs of all the city’s residents and deciding on the right 
services to meet those needs. It undertakes all the people services commissioning for the council to 
ensure the services we provide or buy-in are the right services, delivered at the right time, for the right 
people, in the right place and at the right price to ensure we are giving real value for money. It also 
delivers a wide range of community and targeted services including: 
 

• Housing and health improvement  

• Community and safety  

• Youth and youth offending 

• Early help services to support individuals, families and communities who don’t need specialist 
services, but do need some help 

• Drug and alcohol  

• Domestic abuse 

• Community cohesion 
 

The focus of the service is to identify difficulties early and provide services to stop these escalating.  
 
Communities is also responsible for ensuring neighbourhood issues and concerns that impact on 
people’s confidence or pride are resolved, including unauthorised traveller encampments, housing 
enforcement, entrenched environmental crime and community tensions. 
 
Customer Experience Programme – Helping People to Help Themselves  
We know that most people want to live as independently as possible for as long as they can and don’t 
want to have to rely on others to solve their problems and difficulties.  
 
A number of the budget proposals in the People and Communities directorate focus on a strategy to 
improve people’s experiences. It’s about improving the way we provide services to people at the first 
point of contact to ensure that we solve or manage the issue earlier in the process.  This will ensure 
people remain independent and will allow them to help themselves.  Subsequently this means we can 
further improve the specialist services we provide to the most vulnerable and in need. 
 
The programme will build confidence, capacity and resilience within our communities by ensuring people 
are involved in the design, development and delivery of both preventative and targeted services.   
 
We want to enable people to deal with problems much earlier through preventative support and 
improving our local communities’ skills and knowledge – to empower people to help themselves.  This 
could be through parenting courses to give parents confidence in dealing with difficulties that impact on 
family relationships and achievement at school.  Another example is providing extra support for an 
elderly person who has suffered a fall, to ensure they regain their confidence and learn the skills to 
maintain their independence in their own home. 
 
Through better early interventions we can invest more into targeted and specialist services for the most 
vulnerable. We can also ensure we give people the best chance to lead happy and independent lives by 
improving their skills and knowledge to cope with their individual issues. 
 
We believe that people want to help themselves and this programme sets out how we intend to help 
people achieve this.   
 
Through the savings made we can improve the specialist and targeted care we provide to vulnerable 
people and those that will always need our continued support. 
 
The programme looks at changes in the technology we use, how we deliver services and also how we 
sell our services to other authorities to generate income.   

63



 

 
 

SAVINGS – REVENUE 
 
Managing demand – The Front Door project 
 
The Front Door project will create a new model for residents to access information and advice and to 
ensure they reach the right services first time.   
 
The project is based on the following key design principles: 
 

• We will only ask people for any information once 
• We will maximise any opportunity for the resident to self-serve 
• We will ensure the process is resident-led and takes account of their views 
• Resident information is consistent 
• Wherever possible we will provide resolution for residents at the first point of contact by involving 

more experienced specialist staff   
• Access will be available in the most appropriate locations for residents, including community 

centres and libraries 
 
The project would enable residents to help themselves or resolve their own queries by re-designing and 
improving the way residents access the council and its services.  
 
The Front Door project would encourage residents to access information and services via our website 
first and foremost and, where that isn’t practical, the telephone.  This will involve creating an online 
customer account where people can log on and access services.  Practically this will result in improved 
information and sign-posting to available services on the council’s website.  
 
The Front Door project would also simplify the way our residents make bookings, payments and 
appointments. By making these improvements it will free up more time for vulnerable residents to receive 
a better quality of service. We plan to give advice and guidance in order to promote the use of these self-
serve methods. 
 
An important point to make is that while digital solutions will not suit every individual, they could resolve 
high volumes of more basic enquiries from people who are able to, and choose to, use these methods. 
This will leave the council more time to focus on those who can’t use digital methods or who have more 
complex needs.  Access will also be available at community centres and libraries. 
 
The savings will be generated by reducing demand on high cost services by resolving queries at the first 
point of contact and providing self-service methods for residents.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Managing demand 
through the Front Door 
project 

 
-1,460 

 
-4,160 

 
-4,160 

 
-4,160 

 
-4,160 

 
New ways of working 
 
Council officers have a range of different roles and work requirements. Many can work in a more mobile 
and flexible way if provided with the right digital tools and applications combined with changes in work 
patterns. This would increase productivity and reduce unnecessary travel time back to central office 
locations.   
 
A good example would be a social worker who can type up notes on to our central system during a visit 
rather than having to return to the office.  This would increase the number of visits possible in a single 
day. 
 

64



 

 
 

These measures would take place across all areas of the council but the savings are set out here.   

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

New ways of working -250 -500 -500 -500 -500 

 
Reducing spend on agency social workers – Children’s Services 
 
Nationally there is a shortage of skilled and experienced social workers.  Therefore we have to fill vacant 
positions with agency social workers.  Agency staff are more expensive and tend to stay for shorter 
periods which means that relationships need to be re-established. 
 
Typically an agency social worker costs approximately 35-65 per cent more than a directly employed 
social worker. 
 
A new strategy has been approved to provide a more stable social care workforce and reduce spend on 
agency staff.  By recruiting a number of alternatively qualified workers we can provide a wider variety of 
skills in areas such as youth work and early years. 
 
These specialist support staff will work, under qualified guidance, with children who have less 
complicated needs as well as support social workers with children who have more complex needs.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Reducing spend on 
agency social workers 

-420 -370 -340 -340 -340 

 
Developing a permanency service – Children’s Services 
 
The council is proposing to develop a new service with a specialist provider which would secure 
permanent long-term placements for a range of looked after young people as quickly as possible. The 
service would also improve the training and support available to foster carers and adopters.  
 
The proposed service would increase the number of local fostering placements for looked after children 
and young people.  This will reduce the council's annual £4million spend on placements delivered 
by independent fostering agencies. 
 
We would prefer to work with one organisation that would deliver the whole range of services. That 
means it will need to be a charitable or not for profit organisation as the law says that all adoption 
agencies must be not for profit organisations.  
 
Any new service would be based at Peterborough City Council. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Permanency service 0 -650 -900 -900 -900 

 
Creation of Health and Social Care System teams – Adult Social Care 
 
The council is responding to the city’s ageing population by bringing health and social care teams closer 
together and providing a “one-stop-shop” for residents.   
 

65



 

 
 

We propose to co-locate experienced social care staff and resources with NHS services, such as GP 
clusters, to form Health and Social Care System teams.  These teams will provide a more seamless, 
localised health and social care service.  
 
This will be combined with developing self-help methods and sign-posting so that residents can resolve 
their needs independently, where possible.   
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Co-locating staff to 
expand Health and 
Social Care System 
teams 

-350 -350 -350 -350 -350 

 
Income generated through Schools Improvement Services - Education 
 
Only three out of the 12 secondary schools in Peterborough are now under local authority control.  
Academies in Peterborough buy services from the council in order to continue educational 
improvements.  This has enabled us to successfully generate income for these services.  From 2016/17 
we expect to earn an extra £200,000 annually from the sale of these services. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Additional school 
improvement income 

-200 -200 -200 -200 -200 

 
INVESTMENT – REVENUE 
 
Unaccompanied asylum seeking children 
 
Over the past 12 months we have seen a rapid rise in the number of unaccompanied children that are 
seeking asylum.  We have a statutory duty to care for these children and young people. 
 
Although the government funds the council to support these young people up to the age of 18 there is no 
funding provided to support them once they become adults. Children in care continue to receive the 
council’s support for a number of years after the age of 18.   
 
Nationally, there is an issue in how long it takes to resolve immigration status once people turn 18.  
Therefore we expect to support a growing number of these young people after the age of 18, without the 
support of any government funding, while their immigration status is confirmed.  The additional cost is 
estimated to be £100,000 a year.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Unaccompanied asylum 
seeking children 

100 100 100 100 100 

 
Children in care until the age of 25 
 
As mentioned, the council continues to support children in care past the age of 18. For example, if they 
are in a long-term permanent fostering arrangement we would continue to offer this if they wanted to 
stay. 

66



 

 
 

 
Presently we provide this support until they reached the age of 21.  The government says it now intends 
to change this legislation so that councils are required to offer support to care leavers until the age of 25. 
The additional cost is estimated to be £150,000 annually.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Children in care until 25 150 150 150 150 150 

 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 
 
Some individuals that we care for have their liberties restricted for their own safety.  A resident with 
dementia might need certain restrictions, such as locking doors, so they remain safe. 
 
The council is required to make sure that the individual is of sound mind to agree with this.  If they are 
not capable of this we have to obtain an order from the Court of Protection where we would argue that 
the measure is in their best interests. 
 
An investment is needed to meet new national legislation linked to the Mental Health Capacity Act 2005.  
The precise impact is still being determined, so this figure is an initial estimate. If it needs to be revised 
we will do so in our phase two proposals. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DoLs) 

180 180 180 180 180 

 
Increase legal services budget  
 
Growth brings many positive benefits to the city but it can also create some additional pressures.  To 
meet current demand we propose to invest an additional £130,000 annually in our legal services budget. 
 
Much of this investment is to meet our statutory duties as an authority.  A good example is the need for 
legal and professional support to assist in social care meetings with parents. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Increase legal services 
budget  

130 130 130 130 130 

 
National Living Wage 
 
Currently the council pays every member of staff at least the living wage of £7.85 an hour.   
 
The government has set out its intentions to establish a compulsory National Living Wage to be paid to 
workers aged 25 and above.  This will start in April 2016 at £7.20 per hour and rise to £9 per hour by the 
end of this parliament. 
 
The impact is minimal for the council’s own staff, as a Peterborough Living Wage has previously been 
agreed. We expect the main pressure to come from companies that provide services on the council’s 
behalf.  As these companies put their staff wages up we expect this to be reflected in the amount we 

67



 

 
 

have to pay for their services. The council will of course look to negotiate and require those providers to 
make efficiencies where possible to offset the costs. 
 
This change will affect most directorates across the council; however it is likely to have the biggest 
impact in People and Communities because of the type of services provided.   
 
The additional cost is estimated to be £430,000 in 2016/17 rising to £3.69million by 2020/21. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

National Living Wage 430 1,000 1,560 2,120 3,690 

 
School transport 
 
The number of children who need home to school transport has increased.  In addition the number of 
looked after children who require transport has also risen. 
 
Between 2013 and 2015 the city’s school population increased from 31,000 to around 33,500 pupils; a 
rise of just under eight per cent. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

School transport 540 540 540 540 540 

 
 
  

68



 

 
 

APPENDIX 3 
RESOURCES - SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (SAVINGS/INVESTMENTS) 
 
The Resources department consists of the following: 
 
Financial services 
 

• Financial planning and corporate accounting 

• Finance and management accounting support to council departments 

• Internal audit  

• Serco Strategic Partnership (business support, shared transactional services, business 

transformation, procurement, customer services, finance systems, strategic property) and ICT 

partnership 

Commercial group 
 

• Digital Peterborough, including City Fibre – broadband partnership 
 

• Amey Strategic Partnership which includes refuse collection, street cleaning, parks, trees 

and open spaces, building cleaning and passenger services 

• Waste management and waste disposal including the energy recovery facility 

• Vivacity (culture, recreation and libraries)  

• Westcombe Engineering 
 

• Energy efficiency including our energy performance contract, placing solar panels on 
residents’ roofs with Empower 

 

• Corporate property including asset disposals 
 
Cemeteries, cremation and registrars 
 

• Bereavement services 

• Registration service 

SAVINGS – REVENUE 
 
Business rates growth 
 
The city council has negotiated a trial with the Treasury to retain nearly all business rates growth over 
our annual forecast.  This trial began in 2015 and will continue for three years.  There are only a handful 
of local authorities taking part in the trial in England. 
 
Through growth in the number of business premises in Peterborough, we have seen a rise in business 
rates beyond our predictions.  Through the business rates growth retention scheme, the council can 
retain more of this additional income. This means we can use this extra income to protect front-line 
services. 
 
The table below shows the additional income anticipated over the next five years.   
 

69



 

 
 

Furthermore, during 2015/16 we will retain an extra £910,000 in business rates above our original 
forecast.  This will be used to protect services in 2016/17. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Business rates growth -580 -500 -500 -500 -500 

 
Council tax - growth in properties and related issues 
 
As well as a growth in business rates above our previous forecast, we have also seen a growth in 
council tax income above predictions because of the city’s rising population. 
 
We therefore expect to receive an additional £1million during 2015/16, which can be rolled forward to 
protect services during 2016/17.  This is a one-off benefit. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Council tax growth – 
one-off benefit 

-1,000 0 0 0 0 

 
We had previously assumed that the tax base would grow by around 1.1 per cent or around 800 
properties every year.  Due to an increase in house building we are now forecasting that 1100 properties 
will be constructed each year.  We therefore expect to receive the additional council tax income over the 
next five years as set out below. 
  

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Council tax growth -690 -950 -1,220 -1,480 -1,760 

 
In addition, extra income from growth in the council tax base will also support the following issues as 
outlined below:  
 
Council tax - Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
The government changed council tax benefit as part of its welfare and localism reform so that councils 
set and administer the benefit under a local scheme.  The government also reduced the amount of 
money councils have available to provide council tax support. As a result the council introduced a new 
scheme, which reduced the amount of council tax benefit available to working-age claimants by 30 per 
cent.   
 
Council members need to consider whether to change the rate of support offered at a specific meeting in 
late January.  As such this proposal will not form part of the decisions to be made at Council in 
December.   
 
Cabinet will consult on a proposal to keep the Council Tax Support Scheme as it is i.e. a 30 per cent 
reduction. There will also be proposals to align the scheme better to the housing benefit scheme, making 
it easier for applicants. 
 
It is included here because if kept at the same rate it will result in an additional financial pressure on the 
council.  This is because we expect the number of eligible residents for council tax support to rise due to 
the reduction in the government’s benefit cap.   
 

70



 

 
 

 
Council tax - Introduction of the Peterborough Hardship Fund 
 
In response to the government’s changes to welfare, the city council introduced the Peterborough 
Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS).  The scheme works in partnership with a number of 
organisations including Peterborough CAB, Rainbow Savers Credit Union and KingsGate Community 
Church, which manages a number of food banks across the city. 
 
The scheme provides residents with advice and guidance on managing their finances and a range of 
services to help support people in a crisis. These include foodbanks, free electrical items or prepaid 
energy cards. 
 
PCAS helps between 450 and 500 residents a month.  Other organisations in the partnership include 
Disability Peterborough, Age UK and MIND. 
 
The council knows that for some residents times are especially hard, and with further changes in benefits 
set to be introduced, we are proposing additional support for those most in need. 
 
The establishment of the Peterborough Hardship Fund, supported by PCAS, will allow residents in 
significant hardship to apply for a reduction in their council tax bill (applicants will already be part of the 
Council Tax Support Scheme).  Applicants would need to demonstrate that they have sought advice and 
that every effort has been made to control their finances. We propose to invest £50,000 in this fund on 
an annual basis. This will be consulted on alongside the Council Tax Support Scheme proposals. 
 
Council tax - Collection of council tax 
 
With the city growing at one of the fastest rates in the country we have more households to collect 
council tax from.  Also, when the Council Tax Support Scheme was introduced in 2013, 8,750 
households in Peterborough started paying council tax (at a rate of 30 per cent of the full equivalent bill) 
for the first time. We need to invest in the team to ensure collection rates can be maintained. 
 
New Homes Bonus growth 
 
The New Homes Bonus is a grant paid by central government to local councils for increasing the number 
of homes. 
 
House building has accelerated in the city and we are receiving a higher grant than had previously been 
forecast.   
 
In 2014/15, 1,342 new homes were built in Peterborough. An exceptional achievement and the highest 
number constructed in any one year since 1980, with just over 500 being affordable homes.  As 
mentioned earlier, we are now forecasting that 1100 homes will be built each year in the city. 
 
We therefore expect to generate additional income from the New Homes Bonus which helps us to better 
protect services.  For 2016/17 we anticipate an extra £620,000 will be raised, increasing to £2,040,000 
by 2020/21.   
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

New Homes Bonus 
growth 

-620 -960 -1,330 -1,690 -2,040 

  
Council tax discounts 
 

71



 

 
 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 allowed councils to amend council tax discounts in certain 
circumstances from 1 April 2013. The council made changes to some discounts at that stage.  The 
council has reviewed its remaining council tax discounts introduced against legislation and proposes to 
remove the one month discount of 100 per cent for substantially unfurnished and unoccupied properties 
for all class C dwellings from 1 April 2016. 
 

Discount Current position Change from 1 April 2016 

Substantially unfurnished 
and unoccupied 

Changed from a six month 
exemption to a one month 
discount of 100 per cent. 

Nil discount – removal of the 
one month discount of 100 per 
cent. 

 
The financial benefit from this will be finalised during phase two of our proposals.  It is included here to 
allow the maximum time for consultation and implementation.  
 
Expansion of solar PV schemes 
 
Working in partnership with Empower Communities we are currently offering free solar PV installations to 
suitable private residential homes within the Peterborough City Council area.  We are also working with 
Axiom Housing to install solar schemes on some of their properties.  This will generate income for 
residents, the council and communities. In addition to this, the partnership will deliver solar schemes to a 
wide range of social housing providers across the country. In total approximately 8,500 homes will 
benefit from these schemes. 
 
The partnership is called Empower Peterborough.  The council provides the initial funding for the solar 
roll-out as a loan to be repaid with interest. The scheme is expected to generate additional income of 
£320,000 in 2015/16 and £640,000 in 2016/17. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Expansion of solar PV 
schemes 

-640 0 0 0 0 

 
Future delivery of property services 
 
We plan to start a joint venture with NPS Property Consultants (NPS) which is part of the Norse Group.  
This is a substantial property services company owned by Norfolk County Council that has been 
operating for over 10 years in both the public and private sectors.   The NPS joint venture model with 
local authorities is tried and tested across the market with 23 joint venture companies under the group at 
present. 
 
The benefits of a joint venture include the ability to better access robust and quality property specialisms 
at short notice, as well as generating additional income by the joint venture trading its services to other 
organisations.  Any trading profits would be split 50:50. 
 
Services proposed to be transferred into the joint venture include estate management, asset acquisition, 
design, disposals and rent collection.  We expect that this proposal will make savings in the region of 
£100,000 in 2016/17 and 2017/18, rising to £150,000 in subsequent years. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Future delivery of 
property services 

-100 -100 -150 -150 -150 

 
Update on capital programme 

72



 

 
 

 
The council borrows money (capital) to spend on infrastructure assets.  We have to predict how much 
we intend to spend each year as part of our budget – and how much interest we will need to pay. 
 
As some schemes will be delivered later than originally planned, we have borrowed less than we 
forecast and therefore we have less interest to pay.  Interest rates are also likely to be lower than had 
been forecast.  The schemes will be delivered; this simply reflects the latest plan of when costs will be 
incurred.  We can therefore adjust the current budget with the following savings: 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Update on capital 
programme 

-270 -210 -160 -160 -160 

 
Repaying our capital debt over a longer period 
 
As mentioned the council invests in a range of assets across the city.  Currently we pay off some 
elements of the debt, with interest, over 25 years. We have undertaken a review of the assets that this 
borrowing supports, and the average life of those assets is 42 years. 
 
We are proposing to align our debt repayment with the life of those assets, repaying over 42 years 
instead of 25. 
 
The approach will require approval from our auditors, and an update to our Treasury Management 
Strategy that will be considered by Council in March as part of the full Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
We are also working to see if there are any further options in this area.  
 
This will increase the total amount of interest over the full term of the loan but in the current financial 
climate it will protect front-line services for residents.  As well as the savings listed, if agreed we plan to 
implement in the current financial year and make the same £2million saving in 2015/16 which will be 
carried forward and used to support services in 2016/17. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Repaying our capital 
debt over a longer period 

-2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 

 
Revenue impact on changes to Schools Capital Programme 
 
The Schools Capital Programme sets out how much we need to invest in the creation of school places in 
the city.  We have to predict how much we need to spend and how much that will cost us in interest. 
 
We have been successful in funding a larger portion of the Schools Capital Programme through 
developer contributions and grants from the Education Funding Agency.  This has meant we have been 
able to reduce the council’s contribution to the overall programme – and therefore have borrowed less 
and have less interest to pay.  This will result in savings for the next three financial years as set out 
below. 
 
However, given the speed our school population is growing we will need to invest more than had been 
previously predicted in 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21.  We will have more interest to pay than forecast 
in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  
 

73



 

 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Changes to Schools 
Capital Programme 

-920 -630 -330 620 1,190 

INVESTMENTS – REVENUE 
 
Procurement 
 
Procurement services are provided in partnership with Serco. In exchange for being able to manage the 
procurement of a level of council spend, Serco offers a guarantee on the level of savings that will be 
generated. The council banked these savings at the start of the partnership. 
 
If the level of spend drops, then so does the savings guarantee. The council has decided that for some 
elements of spend e.g. children’s foster care; it wishes to follow a different approach. As such we need 
to adjust the savings level previously included in our Medium Term Financial Plan. This approach will 
deliver benefits that are outlined in individual departmental submissions. 
 
As these savings were previously set out in the Resources budget a financial adjustment is needed. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Procurement 440 470 460 450 440 

 
Climate change levy 
 
The Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) will be fully commissioned by the end of 2015.  Instead of waste 
being sent to landfill it will now be used at the ERF to create electricity. 
 
Due to the government making changes to the climate change levy (CCL) exemption there will be a 
reduction in the income we had previously forecast from the sale of power generated by the ERF. 
 
CCL is a tax on the supply of energy to businesses and the public sector.  Renewable energy has been 
exempt from this tax since 2001 but this exemption has been removed by the government.  This will 
result in an additional financial pressure to the council as set out below.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Climate change levy 280 280 280 280 280 

 
Property portfolio 
 
The council rents a property on Ivatt Way to a private business.  This is the largest site in the council’s 
portfolio.   
 
A review of the rent paid means it will be lower than we had previously forecast.  The review has enabled 
the council to secure a longer term tenancy in the property, when the alternative may have been a 
complete loss of income if the tenant had pulled out. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Property portfolio 260 260 260 260 260 

74



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Mausoleum income 
 
The income generated by mausoleums will be lower than anticipated in the coming years. This is 
because there are no more mausoleum units available for sale.  The lost income is for 2018/19 onwards. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Loss of mausoleum 
income 

0 0 120 120 120 

 
 
 
 

  

75



 

 
 

APPENDIX 4 
GROWTH AND REGENERATION - SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (SAVINGS/INVESTMENTS) 
 
Peterborough is the second fastest growing city in the country.  The Growth and Regeneration 
directorate is in charge of driving that growth and overseeing major regeneration projects in the city. 
 
Growth and regeneration leads to additional income for the council through the New Homes Bonus and 
business rates.   
 
The Growth and Regeneration directorate consists of the following: 
 
Peterborough Highway Services 
This partnership with Skanska, the council’s highways contractor, is responsible for maintaining and 
improving our roads and street lights, gritting roads in the winter, public transport and planning the future 
of transport in Peterborough and its surrounding villages.   
 
Planning services 
Peterborough City Council was named Local Authority Planning Team of the Year at the 2015 Awards 
for Planning Excellence. The awards are run by the Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI).  
 
This service includes surveyors, planners and other technical teams who work with residents and 
businesses to ensure new development fits with the city’s growth plans. The service also works with 
schools and local communities to help make our city greener and is responsible for our environment 
capital aspiration.   
 
In recent years the planning team has started to generate income through selling services, such as 
planning policy and development control expertise, to other local authorities throughout the UK.  In total, 
the planning service now generates approximately £500,000 per year which is used to reduce the 
running cost of the department.  This year we have also formed a joint planning service with Fenland 
District Council. 
 
Opportunity Peterborough 
The council’s wholly-owned company Opportunity Peterborough supports our agenda to grow the city by 
20,000 jobs and 25,500 houses by 2026, by attracting inward investment and marketing the city to 
businesses.  
 
Growth joint venture company – Peterborough Investment Partnership 
This partnership is supporting the regeneration of city centre sites in the council’s ownership including 
Fletton Quays (also known as South Bank/Riverside Opportunity Area).  
 
SAVINGS - REVENUE 
 
Patching 
 
Patching works are carried out on the city’s roads when a repair is necessary without the need for a 
large scale resurface. We have identified that patching works totalling £100,000, that are currently 
funded from the revenue budget, can instead be funded from capital starting in 2016/17. This proposal 
makes no change to the level of patching on the road network in Peterborough. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Patching -100 -100 -100 -100 -100 

 
 
 

76



 

 
 

 
Fee for Head of Peterborough Highways Services 
 
Instead of the council paying the salary for the head of service, Skanska will fund the post from 2016/17.  
This will generate an ongoing annual saving of £80,000. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Head of Peterborough 
Highways Services 

-80 -80 -80 -80 -80 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77



 

 
 

 
APPENDIX 5 
GOVERNANCE - SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (SAVINGS/INVESTMENTS) 
 
The Governance department consists of: 
 
City Services and Communications 
This department works with local businesses and other organisations to build a stronger local economy 
by attracting visitors to Peterborough and helping to build its reputation as a leading tourist destination. It 
supports city centre retailers and oversees city centre services from CCTV cameras and car parks to 
events such as the Perkins Great Eastern Run, as well as cultural festivals and the Christmas lights 
switch-on. It also manages the City Market and a number of street markets. 
 
The Communications team supports all council departments by advising how best to explain their 
services to residents. It promotes the council through the media, writes communications strategies for 
major initiatives, produces press releases, marketing campaigns and manages the council’s website and 
social media. 
 
Regulatory services 
This team provides regulatory and licensing services such as trading standards, environmental health, 
health and safety, and enforcement teams who deal with issues such as noise nuisance and air quality. 
 
Legal and Democratic services 
This team provides legal services to all council departments as well as Rutland County Council and East 
Cambridgeshire District Council.  It supports Full Council, Cabinet and committee meetings, civic 
services to the Mayor, support services to councillors as well as a range of other related services. It also 
manages elections and the electoral register. 
 
Human Resources and organisation development 
The Human Resources team aims to make the council the employer of choice and improve the council’s 
performance through its people. It works with managers in recruiting, developing, managing and 
engaging employees to produce a skilled, committed, flexible and diverse workforce.  HR provides 
services to the council which include employee relations, policy and reward, occupational health, 
workforce development and training and development.  HR is also responsible for internal 
communications and employee engagement. 
 
Performance and Information 
This team provides a central performance management function, oversees information governance and 
co-ordinates information requests. 
 
The department generates an income in the region of £7million annually.  This income is provided 
through trading legal and regulatory services with other local authorities as well as through non-
maintained schools and other partner organisations.  The department also gains income through the City 
Market and car parking in the city centre. 
 
SAVINGS - REVENUE 
 
Coroner’s services 
 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough is now served by one senior coroner after the three coronial areas 
that covered the city and the rest of the county were merged.  It followed the retirement of the other two 
senior coroners and will produce an ongoing annual saving from sharing the service. 
 
The budget for the coroner was previously increased to take account of medical examiner 
responsibilities under Ministry of Justice reforms.  These changes have not had the impact initially 
expected and we are able to reduce the ongoing budget. 
 

78



 

 
 

The combined saving going forward is shown below. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Coroner’s services -40 -40 -40 -40 -40 

 
Occupational health, workforce development and training 
 
We carry out occupational health assessments for non-maintained schools in the city.   We have carried 
out a review of our pricing and are proposing to raise it to the market rate.   
 
A restructure has also taken place in our workforce development team and a reduction in staffing has 
been identified.   
 
In total these measures will achieve savings as follows. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Occupational health, 
workforce development 
and training 

 
-70 

 
-70 

 
-70 

 
-70 

 
-70 

 
Shared chief executive with Cambridgeshire County Council 
 
The city council now shares its chief executive with Cambridgeshire County Council.  The agreement is 
that both authorities will split her salary and additional costs.  Therefore this will save the council 
£110,000 over the trial 12 month period.  This is split between two financial years and will save £50,000 
in 2015/16 and £60,000 in 2016/17.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Shared chief executive -60 0 0 0 0 

 
INVESTMENT – REVENUE 
 
Taxi licensing income 
 
The government has reduced the frequency that taxi drivers and operators have to replace their 
licenses.  Drivers now need to renew their licence every three years and operators every five years.  
Previously both had to renew annually. 
 
This will result in a loss of income for the council against the forecast in previous budgets.  Therefore we 
are making an adjustment to reflect this. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Reduction in taxi 
licensing income 

20 20 20 20 20 

 

 
 

79



 

 
 

 
 
APPENDIX 6 
PUBLIC HEALTH - SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (SAVINGS/INVESTMENTS) 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred public health responsibilities to all councils from 1 April 
2013. We now receive a specific sum of money from the government that can only be spent on activities 
that improve public health.   
 
We received a grant of £9.3million in 2014/15 and the same for 2015/16.  Our grant for 2015/16 has 
been reduced in-year by around 6.2 per cent, approximately £670,000, following an announcement in 
June by the Treasury to reduce the public health grant to local authorities.   It has not been confirmed 
whether this reduction will continue in future years. 
 
In addition the council has received £1.5million of public health funding to cover new public health 
responsibilities for 0-5 year olds, which transferred from the NHS to local authorities in October 2015. 
 
We have to account to the Department of Health on how the grant is being spent, focussing on the 
following objectives:  
 

• To help people live healthy lifestyles and make healthy choices  

• To reduce health inequalities between different social groups in the city and amongst hard to 
reach groups  

• To carry out health protection functions delegated from the secretary of state  

• To ensure that public health advice is available to all local NHS organisations   
 

Examples of these objectives will include providing health checks, sexual health services, drug and 
alcohol services, stop smoking services, health visiting, school nursing and services to tackle child and 
adult obesity. Some of our other services already support these objectives and it is therefore appropriate 
to use some of the public health grant to fund these.   

 
SAVINGS - REVENUE 
 
We fund a range of services using the public health grant.  Given the in-year reduction in the grant we 
have had to find alternative ways of funding our public health activities to avoid a detrimental impact on 
residents. The reduction in the grant was approximately £670,000, or 6.2 per cent of the overall budget.   
 
Although it is still to be confirmed that our in-year reduction for 2015/16 will continue in future years, we 
are working on the assumption that this is a permanent reduction in the overall grant to the council. 
 
A number of services are part-funded through the public health grant including our Care and Repair 
Service and some elements of our work with homeless people.  Instead we will now use Care Act 
funding to support these.  
 
We also entered into a new sexual health services contract, securing £50,000 of savings which will be 
used to partly offset the reduction in grant funding.  A further £50,000 worth of efficiencies have been 
identified in the 0-5 years old public health services contract.  This will be achieved through combining 
the delivery of some health services in early years with other services such as children’s centres.   
 
If there are other saving plans they will be part of the phase two proposals. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Care Act funding -450 -450 -450 -450 -450 

Public health efficiencies -100 -100 -100 -100 -100 

80



 

 
 

 
 
APPENDIX 7 
STAFF IMPLICATIONS 
 
This section outlines any issues that affect the costs of staffing, as well as the impact on staff numbers. 
 
Abolition of contracting out of S2P 
 
In April 2016 the current basic state pension and state second pension (S2P) will be abolished and 
replaced by a single-tier state pension. As a result employers will have to pay an increased amount of 
National Insurance.  We had previously budgeted for this increase but a review has concluded that the 
costs are not as high as we originally assumed. 
 
We are therefore able to reduce the budget as follows. 
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Abolition of contracting 
out of S2P 

-260 -260 -260 -260 -260 

 
Update to pay award forecast 
 
The council currently adopts nationally agreed terms and conditions of service for its staff.  This includes 
whether a pay award is applied. 
 
The council originally forecast that pay awards would average around two per cent per annum. Given 
recent announcements from the Chancellor on public sector pay, and overall issues with affordability in 
the sector, the council has revised these forecasts down, assuming no pay award for three years, and 
then averaging one per cent after that.  
 

Issue 2016/17  
£k 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Update to pay award 
forecast  

-770 -1,580 -2,410 -2,900 -3,410 

 
Vacancy and redundancy 
 
In order to deliver the phase one changes outlined in this document some posts will be affected. The 
table below explains the staffing implications. 
 
Our approach to minimising any compulsory redundancies will be the same as in other years, including 
deleting vacant posts, redeployment of affected staff and seeking voluntary redundancies where we are 
able to do so.  
 
This information relates to council staff only.  We will outline the impact of the phase two proposals when 
they are published in January. 
 

Staff implications  Total 

Total number of affected posts 12 

Minus vacant posts to be deleted 4 

Minus voluntary redundancy acceptances  TBC 

Compulsory redundancy total  8 

81



 

 
 

 
 

82



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM No. 

19 November 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Environment Capital

Contact Officer(s): Terri Martin – Regulatory Officer - Licensing
Peter Gell – Head of Regulatory Services
Donna Hall – Public Protection Manager

Tel. 01733 453561
Tel. 01733 453419
Tel. 01733 453514

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY - LICENSING ACT 2003

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
Members are asked to:

1. Note the contents of the report and responses received to the consultation;
2. Determine if the current Cumulative Impact Area covering ‘Op-Can-Do’ should be retained;
3. Determine if sufficient evidence is available to implement a Cumulative Impact Area in East 

Ward; and
4. To recommend adoption of the final Statement of Licensing Policy (Appendix F) to Council on 

17 December 2015.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report is as a result of the consultation carried out (between 6 July and 13 September 
2015), on the councils Statement of Licensing Policy as recommended by the Licensing 
Committee on 18 June 2015 agenda item 7.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 To consider and note the contents of the report including the representations and evidence 
received following the public consultation of the review of the councils Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

2.2 The Licensing Committee under its Terms of Reference No. 2.4.1.1, recommends adoption 
to council on 17 December 2015, for it to consider under its Terms of Reference Part 3 
Section 1.1.4 (l).

3. TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy? YES Date for Council 
meeting

17 December 
2015

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 Under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act), it is a requirement for each council to 
produce adopt and publish a statement of licensing policy.  The policy will govern the way 
decisions are made by the council and how it will administer it’s duties under the Act.  
Without a policy the council may be subject to Judicial Review for failing in its 
responsibilities to carry out a statutory duty.

83

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4
4.2 The Act requires that the policy is kept under continual review to incorporate where 

necessary, any changes to legislation and or guidance as appropriate.  In addition to this, 
the Act specifies that the policy must be reviewed every five years.

4.3 General background – current licences
Within Peterborough there are approximately 615 premises licensed under the Licensing 
Act 2003.  Of these 615 there are approximately:

97 with a premises licence authorising consumption on the premises
183 with a premises licence authorising consumption off the premises
199 with a premises licence authorising consumption on and off the premises
136 where alcohol is not sold.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 The most recent reviewed policy expires on 06 January 2016, therefore the policy was 
reviewed and updated with legislative amendments, and a consultation was carried out 
between 6 July and 13 September 2015, with those identified under section 5 (3) of the 
Act.  Those being:

 the chief officer of police for the area
 the fire authority for the area
 the Director of Public Health
 representatives of holders of premises licenses
 representatives of holders of club premises certificates
 representatives of holders of personal licences
 representatives of businesses and residents 

5.2 For information purposes a list of consultees is attached at Appendix A

5.3 The consultation document was also made available on the councils website, main council 
buildings, central library and was also advertised in the local newspaper on 2 July 2015, 
and is attached at Appendix B.

Responses to the Consultation

5.4 A total of eight responses were received during the consultation, as well as data from 
Public Health regarding alcohol specific hospital admissions and a Cumulative Impact 
Assessment Review report from the Communities Intelligence Hub.

5.5 Public Health have submitted data showing alcohol specific hospital admissions statistics 
for 2013/2014 and 2014/2015.  The data shows statistics by practice name and 
comparison by year and average.  This report data is attached at Appendix C

5.6 The Communities and Targeted Services Intelligence Hub have provided a Cumulative 
Impact Assessment review.  This report provides an overview of licensed premises in 
Peterborough, information on the existing cumulative impact area in Op-Can-Do, the 
number of alcohol licensed premises by ward and an overview of alcohol related incidents 
and crimes broken down by ward areas. This report is attached at Appendix D

5.7 The consultation responses in full can be made available to committee members should 
they wish to view them. However, a summary of the comments received from the 
responses to the consultation with officer comments is attached at Appendix E

5.8 The policy has been revised with the proposed legislative updates as detailed in the 
consultation incorporated.  Any changes made following responses received, are briefly 
detailed in the summary sheet and noted on the final revised draft which is attached at 
Appendix F.  

5.9 A combined response was received from Dr Robin (Director of Public Health), Wendi Ogle-
Welbourn (Director of People and Communities) Kate Parker (Public Health) and Cllr 

84

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4
Lamb.  Within the joint response, proposed amendments to the draft policy were made 
(see appendix E).  Agreed revisions have been made to the final draft policy (attached at 
appendix F).

5.10 Members will note that four of the eight responses request for a cumulative impact policy in 
the Eastfield area.  It is for members to determine if sufficient evidence exists to support 
this proposal.  

Eastfield - Evidence, information and data available for consideration

5.11 East ward is approximately the same size as Dogsthorpe, Park, Central and North Wards 
combined.  The ward incorporates Parnwell, Eastfield, Fengate, Flag Fen and Oxney Road 
Industrial Estate, therefore not as densely populated as the other wards.  
In the whole of East Ward there are currently 45 licensed premises, 39 of which sell 
alcohol.  (In comparison there are 73 licensed premises in the existing CI area of Op-Can-
Do of which 57 are licensed to sell alcohol).  The highest concentration of licensed 
premises in one area is on Eastfield Road, where East Ward joins boundaries with Park 
and Central Ward, see Appendix G.

5.12 Within this area (of approximately 900 meters) there are eleven licensed premises, 
consisting of two on licences, five off licences, two on and off sales, and two where alcohol 
is not sold.  See map at Appendix H.

5.13 The licensing database shows that there were twelve complaints regarding East Ward from 
1/1/10 to 31/12/12, and eight complaints received from 1/1/13 to 19/10/15, an average of 3 
per year.

5.14 The Public Health data shows that there are three main Doctor practices utilised by the 
population of East Ward.  Of these three practices, one (North Street located in Central 
Ward) shows a higher than average rate of alcohol specific hospital admissions whilst the 
other two (Minster and Parnwell) have significantly low admission rates for 2014/2015.

5.15 The Cumulative Impact Assessment review document shows East Ward has the second 
highest number of alcohol licensed premises at 42.  (The highest is Central ward with 139 
alcohol licensed premises).  It is the third highest (317) for alcohol related incidents in 2014 
by Ward, but is on the decline over previous years, (overall change minus 42).  (The first 
highest is Central (city centre) at 697 incidents and the second highest is Central North 
with 364 alcohol related incidents).

5.16 East Ward has received eleven new applications between 1/1/12 to 19/10/15.  Of these 
eleven, ten applications were granted as no representations were received, and one was 
refused at committee (Express Booze Market, Star Road).   Of the ten granted, six were 
new premises licensed (one LNR only, three off sales, one on and off sales, one hotel for 
on sales), one has now lapsed as the company was dissolved, three were for premises / 
areas previously licensed.

5.17 Eastfield Road has received two applications between 1/1/12 and 19/10/15, both for the 
same premises, 44 Eastfield Road.  The first application was rejected as it was not 
advertised in accordance with the regulations and the second was withdrawn at committee.

5.18 Safer Peterborough Partnership Comment
Safer Peterborough Partnership are working within the area of Eastfield Road and are 
actively enforcing the Designated Public Protection Order (DPPO) that is in place in this 
area which includes Stanley Recreation Ground.  A CI policy is used to control the number 
and types of licensed premises which are opened and already operating within a distinct 
area and in this case the number and type of premises in operation selling alcohol in the 
lower Eastfield Road is not sufficient enough to warrant the introduction or extension of a 
CI at this current time.  The number of licensed premises in this area is unlikely to increase 
as there are no suitable premises to start operating from and the planning and licensing 

85

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4
processes in place will be sufficient to control this should anybody make any applications.  
We are continuing to support community leaders and residents in helping to reduce alcohol 
related crime and ASB to improve the quality of life for those living, working and visiting this 
area of the city. A map of the current DPPO in Eastfield area is attached at Appendix I

5.19 Officer Comment
The Licensing Act 2003 provides a framework which encourages community involvement 
in licensing decisions by allowing local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding 
licensing applications which affect them.  Of the eleven applications received in East Ward, 
ten were granted as no representations were received.  It could be inferred that the general 
community in this area are in support of businesses which provide greater choice and 
flexibility to residents.
A cumulative impact policy can be adopted if sufficient evidence is available to substantiate 
that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in an area (saturation) is 
having a negative impact on the promotion of the four objectives.
The only area which shows a concentration of licensed premises is Eastfield Road (Town 
end) having eleven licensed premises in approximately 900 meters.
To ensure that the council’s CI policy is sufficiently robust to withstand scrutiny (when 
subjected to challenge and appeal), it must be evidence based.  With the data and 
statistics available, it is officers opinion that the evidence is not compelling in favour of 
adopting a CI in East ward or Eastfield Road.  Due to the makeup of premises in the 
locality it is not expected that there will be an increase in density.  
Eastfield Road is one of the pedestrian arterial routes out of the city centre, once away 
from licensed premises, a minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully.  Other 
mechanisms (other than the licensing regime), are better placed at addressing these 
issues, such as; enforcement of the existing DPPO, consider additional restrictions and 
introduce a PSPO (Public Spaces Protection Order), police enforcement of general law 
concerning disorder and ASB etc.  For further examples please see section 11.16 of the 
revised statement of licensing policy (Attached at Appendix F).

Op-Can-Do Area - Evidence, information and data available for consideration

5.20 The Licensing Authority adopted a CI policy in Op-Can-Do in April 2013.  The Act requires 
the policy to be reviewed regularly to assess whether it is needed any longer. It is for 
members to determine if sufficient evidence exists to retain the current cumulative impact 
policy in the area known as Op-Can-Do.

5.21 One consultation response from a residents group (MANERP) has requested that the 
current policy be retained.  They state; ‘that the ‘Can-Do initiative has been robust but it still 
hasn’t achieved the goals that it and its partners need to achieve.  The Millfield and New 
England area alone has a phenomenal number of outlets selling alcohol (around the 
seventy plus mark) which has contributed significantly to anti-social behaviour in the area.  
The CIP will still prevent the proliferation of alcohol outlets in an already oversaturated 
inner city area of Peterborough.’
The Public Health data provides evidence of ongoing alcohol related problems in the 
Lincoln Road area.  Lincoln Road surgery has the highest rate of alcohol specific hospital 
admissions, which has increased by 43.8% between 2013/14 and 2014/15 (increase from 
96 to 138). 
The CI assessment review acknowledges that the Op-Can-Do area has a poorer quality of 
life, with multiple indices of deprivation.  The area has 57 premises authorised to sell 
alcohol and another 16 licensed without alcohol, totalling 73 licensed premises in this area. 
The document shows that the area is still affected by alcohol related incidents and there is 
a clear relationship between locations of clusters of licensed premises and incident 
hotspots, but cannot attribute incidents to any particular premises.  It notes a reduction in 
alcohol related incidents overall, however the amount of crime linked to alcohol remains at 
a level of consistency emanating from the current CI area, with a slightly higher rate of 
alcohol related violent crime in the area.  NICE (National Institute for Health and Clinical 
Excellence) have concluded that reducing the number of outlets selling alcohol was an 
effective way to reduce alcohol- related harm.

86

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4

5.22 Officer Comment
The CI assessment review provides information on applications up to December 2014, 
since then to date, there have been six applications in the CI area.  Of these; 

 One was granted by committee with imposed conditions and reduced hours (Rylas 
489a Lincoln Road – April 2015)

 Two were granted following mediation with responsible authorities and regulatory 
officers, resulting in a resubmitted application with reduced hours and strict 
conditions (Efes 583 Lincoln Road - February 2015 and Shepherds Inn 10a Park 
Road - August 2015)

 One was rejected as it failed to meet the regulations regarding advertising the 
application (Tratona 24 Park Road - March 2015)

 One was withdrawn after receiving representations from residents (Take-Away 3 
Langford Buildings - October 2015)

 One is yet to be determined (a resubmission for Tratona 24 Park Road)
The current CI policy in the Op-Can-Do area has only been in effect since April 2013.   The 
Op-Can-Do initiative is a 10+ year programme aimed to develop, enable, implement, 
evidence and measure a transformational, whole-systems approach to improve the quality 
of life, outcomes and outlook of people living and working in the area.  The area is still 
considered saturated (with 73 licensed premises), which is having a negative impact on the 
licensing objectives that cannot be attributed to individual premises. Having reviewed the 
data contained in the public health report and evidence provided in the CI assessment 
review and responses received during consultation, officers recommend retaining the 
current cumulative impact policy.  This allows for a higher level of scrutiny by way of a 
committee hearing where representations to applications are made, to ensure premises do 
not further negatively impact on residents in the area.  The result of which has led to 
ensuring only appropriate licences being granted, with effective conditions attached which 
promote the licensing objectives.

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

6.1 Recommendation to council to adopt the revised Statement of Licensing Policy as attached 
at Appendix F when it meets on 17 December 2015 

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To comply with the statutory requirements regarding amendments to the statement of 
licensing policy. 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 Retain the existing policy which expires January 2016 and be in breach of statutory 
requirements.

9. IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Corporate Resources
Legal Services will be required to provide legal representation in the event of any appeals 
to the Magistrates Court against decisions of the council, prosecutions being instigated or 
enforcement action being undertaken by the Authority.

9.2 Cross Service Implications
The Licensing Act 2003 is far reaching and affects a number of different departments and 
as such a close working relationship will continue to be developed to ensure delivery of 
The Licensing Act 2003.

9.3 Community Implications
The Licensing Act 2003 and the Guidance issued under s.182 have a significant impact on 
the community both in terms of its protection and the furtherance of the provisions of 
entertainment and economic growth.

87

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT (OTHER THAN APPENDIX F) CAN BE VIEWED AT THE FOLLOWING LINK

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4

9.4 Resources
The Authority will continue to review the resources necessary to ensure the delivery of this 
statutory responsibility.

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985)

 
Licensing Act 2003
Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 – March 2015
LGA Best Practice Framework for the review of Licensing Policy Statements Oct 2012

88

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=3528&Ver=4


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003

STATEMENT
OF

LICENSING POLICY

89



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

CONTENTS PAGE NO

Definitions 2
The City Of Peterborough And District 4

1. Introduction 5
2. Disclaimer 5

 3. Licensable Activities 5
4. Objectives 5
5. Consultation 6
6. Fundamental Principles 6
7. Other Legislation 7
8. Other Regulatory Systems and Policies 7
9. Temporary Event Notices 8
10. Duplication 9
11. Cumulative Impact 10
12. Licensing Hours / Zoning 14
13. Children and Licensed Premises 14
14. Licence Conditions 15
15. Enforcement 16
16. Reviews 17
17. Delegations / Decision Making / Administration 18
18. Appeals 19
19. Effective Date and Review 19
20. Table of Delegations 21
21. Contact Details 22

DEFINITIONS

90



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

Note:  In this Policy, the following definitions are included to provide an explanation 
of certain terms included in the Act and therefore in the Policy.  In some cases they 
are an abbreviation of what is stated in the Licensing Act 2003 or an interpretation of 
those terms.  For a full definition of the terms used, the reader must refer to the 
Licensing Act 2003.

‘the Act’ means the Licensing Act 2003 (c.17)

‘Licensable Activities’ means: -

 The sale by retail of alcohol
 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club
 The provision of Regulated Entertainment
 The provision of Late Night Refreshment

 ‘The Guidance’ means the guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the Department of Culture, 
Media and Sport under s.182 of the Act.

‘Licensed Premises’ includes club premises and events unless the context otherwise requires.

‘Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) means the person (who must be a Personal Licence 
Holder), in the case of premises selling alcohol, who will normally have been given the day to day 
responsibility for running the premises by the holder of the Premises Licence or will be the Premises 
Licence holder.

‘Regulated Entertainment’ is defined as;

 A performance of a play;
 An exhibition of a film;
 An indoor sporting event;
 Boxing or wrestling entertainment;
 A performance of live music;
 Any playing of recorded music;
 A performance of dance;
 Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within the performance of live 

music; the playing of recorded music and the performance of dance.

In some circumstances, the provision of regulated entertainment is not licensable, for further 
information please go to www.gov.uk (and search for entertainment licensing)

‘Late Night Refreshment’ means the supply of hot food or hot drink to members of the public 
(whether for consumption on or off the premises) between the hours of 11.00 pm and 5.00 am.

‘Operating Schedule’ means a document containing a statement of the following matters (and any 
others that may be prescribed): -

 The relevant Licensable Activities
 The times at which the Licensable Activities are to take place and any other times when 

premises are open to the public
 Information regarding the person who will be specified in the Premises Licence as the 

Premises Supervisor
 Where the Licensable Activities involve the supply of alcohol, whether it is for the supply on 

and/or off the premises
 The steps being taken to promote the Licensing Objectives

 ‘Other Persons’ means

91

http://www.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

Persons who live, or are involved in a business, in the relevant licensing Authorities area and who 
are likely to be affected by the application and are not a Responsible Authority.

‘Responsible Authority’ means any of the following: -

 The Chief Officer of Police
 The Fire Authority
 The enforcing authority for Health and Safety at Work
 The local planning authority
 The local weights and measures authority (Trading Standards)
 The Council responsible for minimising or preventing the risk of pollution of the environment 

or of harm to human health
 The body representing matters relating to the protection of children from harm
 In relation to a vessel, a navigation authority, the Environment Agency, or the British 

Waterways Board
 The relevant Licensing Authority 
 The Director of Public Health 

‘Relevant Representations’ are representations which can be either in support of an application or 
against the application, (also called an objection) and must be: 

 About the effect of the Premise Licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives;
 Are made by a responsible authority or any other person, have not been withdrawn and, 

in the case of representations made by  other persons, they are not in the Council’s opinion 
frivolous or vexatious.

 Must relate directly to an application and received during the consultation period.  
Representations received outside the consultation period cannot be considered.

 An objection must relate to the licensable activities requested, how you and the objectives 
are likely to be adversely impacted by the activity, which the conditions proposed in the 
operating schedule of the application do not address or do not address sufficiently.

‘Temporary Event Notice (TEN)’ means a Permitted Temporary Activity involving one or more 
Licensable Activities subject to various conditions and limitations (see section 9.5).  For further 
information, please go to www.gov.uk (and search for alcohol licensing)

Standard TEN:  Must be received no later than 10 working days prior to the event.

Late TEN:  Must be received between 5 and 9 working days prior to the event

92

http://www.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

THE CITY OF PETERBOROUGH AND DISTRICT
Peterborough is a modern and progressive City with a strong historical character that makes it a 
stimulating environment in which to live, work and visit.  

In the 2011 Census, Peterborough had a population of approximately 183,000, with an approximate 
population of 188,400 in 2013. The wider sub-region, in which Peterborough is the economic centre, 
has a population of approximately 350,000 people in both the East of England and East Midlands’ 
regions.  

Neighbouring districts that look towards Peterborough as a key economic centre include Fenland, 
Huntingdonshire, South Holland, South Kesteven, East Northamptonshire and Rutland. 

Today, Peterborough is one of the fastest growing cities in the country with a vibrant private sector 
delivering record job growth in recent years.  The city enjoys an unrivalled strategic location in the 
East of England.  It is only 45 minutes from central London and within striking distance of the regions 
other great cities being well served as it is by airports, rail and road links.

The city owes much of its increasing fortunes in recent years to a city council that focuses on three 
key areas for its people – prosperity, education and quality of life.

An essential contribution to the continued development of the City of Peterborough are the differing 
types of premises and events licensed under the Licensing Act 2003.  There are over 600 licensed 
premises offering a wide range of leisure activities, such as live music, theatres, sports venues, 
cinema and a vast range of restaurants offering diverse menus to suit any palate.

The embankment along with the county showground provide facilities for several open-air larger type 
festivals and concerts.  Visitors can enjoy a vast range of outdoor leisure activities and picturesque 
countryside – including 2,000 acres of riverside parkland.  There are two theatres offering drama, 
ballet and concerts – the Key Theatre and the Cresset Theatre. For sports fans, Peterborough has 
four sports stadia:  football, speedway, ice hockey and greyhound.

Peterborough continues to invest in regeneration, infrastructure and accessibility, with projects within 
the city centre and the outskirts.  This creates a vibrant mix of activities and premises catering for a 
multi-cultural city, offering a wide range of facilities to residents and visitors.   

Peterborough is an intelligence led authority, the Safer Peterborough Partnership is an integrated 
multi-agency initiative working in partnership with the police and others to tackle many issues, e.g. 
crime, anti-social behaviour and alcohol related issues.  This approach highlighted the ‘Op Can Do’ 
area as an area which had reached saturation and a Cumulative Impact Policy was introduced and 
took effect in April 2013.

93



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Statement of Licensing Policy has been produced in accordance with s.5 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 (the Act) which requires the Council to review and where appropriate renew its 
contents on a five yearly basis (subject to changes in legislation or otherwise prescribed by 
the Secretary of State). 

1.2 In reviewing the Statement of Licensing Policy the Council has considered the Guidance 
issued under s.182 of the Act.

 
1.3 This policy provides information and guidance to licence applicants, licence holders, objectors 

and Other Persons on the general approach to be taken by the Council in respect of its 
obligations under the Act.  

1.4 This policy is made available in key Council offices and via the Council’s website: 
www.peterborough.gov.uk under business. 

1.5 The contents within the policy have been amended in line with Local Government Association 
(LGA)’ Best Practice Framework for the Review of Licensing Policy Statements.

2.  DISCLAIMER

2.1 The content of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy is aimed only to provide guidance 
and should not be interpreted as legal advice. It is strongly recommended that persons obtain 
their own legal advice if they are not sure of the requirements of the Act and/or the Guidance 
and Regulations issued in accordance with it.

3. LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

3.1 This policy relates to all those activities identified as falling within the provisions of the Act, 
provided to the public, to registered club members or with a view to profit as defined within the 
Act.  

3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 regulates the following activities:

 Retail sale of alcohol
 Supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of the club
 The provision of  regulated entertainment
 The provision of  late night refreshment

4. OBJECTIVES

4.1 The Council has a duty under the Act to carry out its licensing functions by promoting the 
licensing objectives, which are:-

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

4.2 Each objective has equal importance.

4.3 The Council will also in carrying out its duties have regard to the Guidance, this policy and any 
responses to consultation regarding this policy.

4.4 It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery of the 
above objectives and should not be seen as a means for solving all problems within the 
community.  The Council will therefore continue to work in partnership with its neighbouring 
authorities, responsible authorities such as the Police, Fire Service, Health Service etc. local 

94

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

businesses, licensed trade, residents and others, towards the promotion and delivery of the 
objectives.

4.5 The Council will expect individual applicants to address the licensing objectives in their 
Operating Schedule having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be 
provided, the operational procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of the local 
community.  This must be particularly addressed for applications within the Cumulative Impact 
area.

4.6 It is recommended and encouraged that all applicants for authorisations enter into informal 
discussions prior to the submission of an application in order to avoid potential problems and 
unnecessary hearings and appeals.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 There are a number of groups who have a stake in the leisure industry, including providers, 
customers, residents and enforcers, all of whom have views and concerns that require 
consideration as part of the licensing functions and the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
The Council will continue to consult with these parties upon receipt of applications where 
relevant, and for the further continuation and development of the Licensing Policy. 

5.2 In reviewing this Policy, the Council consulted over a 10 week period  06 July 2015 – 13 
September 2015 with the following:

(a) Chief Officer of Police for the area;
(b) Fire Authority for the area
(ba) Director of Public Health
(c) Persons/bodies representative of local holders of premises licenses;
(d) Persons/bodies representative of local holders of club premises certificates;
(e) Persons/bodies representative of local holders of personal licenses
(f) Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area;

All responses to the consultation were given due consideration when determining the final 
policy.

5.3 A review of the policy was carried out by way of consultation with those listed in 5.2 to 
include a special policy.  The consultation took place between 21/1/13 – 04/03/13.  

5.4 The special policy was adopted by full council at a meeting held on 17 April 2013.  Please 
see section 11.

6. FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES

6.1 Licensing is about regulating the carrying on of licensable activities by the appropriate control 
of licensed premises, qualifying clubs, and temporary events together with the people who 
manage such premises or hold Personal Licences within the terms of the Act. 

6.2 In circumstances where conditions are required to be attached to the various authorisations, 
the focus will be on matters which are within the control of the individual licensee and others 
in possession of relevant authorisations (please see section 14 for more information on licence 
conditions). 

6.3 In setting conditions the Council will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking 
place at, or resulting from the licensed premises on those living, working or engaged in normal 
activity in the vicinity of the licensed premises. 

6.4 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour by individuals once they are away from licensed premises and beyond the direct 
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or permission 
concerned.  However:

95



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

(a) licensing law is a key aspect of such control and therefore will always form part of an all 
round approach to the management of the entertainment evening and night-time economy 
within Peterborough; and

(b) licensees and Certificate Holders should take all reasonable steps to prevent the 
occurrence of crime and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside their premises, 
for example, on the pavement, in a beer garden, or with the smoking ban in force, in a 
smoking shelter, where and to the extent that these matters are within their control.

6.5 Nothing in this policy prevents each licence application being considered on its own merits nor 
will it override the right of any individual to apply under the terms of the Licensing Act 2003 for 
a variety of permissions. 

6.6 This policy does not seek to override the right of any person to make representations on an 
application or seek a review of a licence or certificate where provision has been made for them 
to do so in the Act.

6.7 If no relevant representations are received from responsible authorities or any other persons, 
applications must be granted as applied for.  The only conditions which will be applied are 
those proposed within the operating schedule and any applicable mandatory condition(s).

7. OTHER LEGISLATION

7.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998: Under this Act local authorities must have regard to the likely 
effect of the exercise of their functions, and do all they can to prevent crime and disorder in 
their area.  

7.2 The Council will have particular regard to the likely impact of licensing on related crime and 
disorder in the district, particularly when considering the location, impact, operation and 
management of all proposed licence/certificate applications, renewals and variations of 
conditions.  Any conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates will, 
so far as possible, consider and reflect the local crime prevention strategies.   

7.3 The Council recognises that the Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public 
authorities and has due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity.

8. OTHER REGULATORY SYSTEMS / POLICIES

8.1 By consultation and liaison, the Council will secure the proper integration of this licensing 
policy with local crime prevention, community safety, environment, planning, tourism, health 
and wellbeing, race equality schemes and cultural strategies and any other relevant policy, in 
addition to plans introduced for the management of the City and the night-time economy.  
Many of these strategies are not directly related to the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives, but, indirectly impact upon them.

8.2 Sexual Entertainment Venues (SEV):  On 02 December 2010 The Council adopted the 
amendment to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (LG(MP)A 1982) 
with an effective commencement date of 08 February 2011.  The effect of this means that 
premises which provide sexual entertainment on a regular basis (more than 11 occasions per 
year) will be required to obtain a SEV licence under LG(MP)A 1982.  If the premises also 
require the sale and supply of alcohol, licences under both Acts will be required.

8.3 Planning, building control and the licensing regimes: Will be separate to avoid duplication 
and inefficiency. Licensing applications should not be a re-run of the planning application and 
should not cut across decisions taken by the planning committee or following appeals against 
decisions taken by that committee.  Where a terminal hour has been set as a condition of 
planning permission for the use of premises for commercial purposes that are different to the 
licensing hours, the applicant must observe the earlier closing time.  Premises operating in 
breach of their planning permission would be liable to prosecution under planning law.

96



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

8.4 Cultural Strategies: The Council will monitor the impact of licensing on the provision of 
regulated entertainment, and particularly live music and dancing.  As part of implementing 
cultural strategies, proper account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote a broad 
range of entertainment, particularly live music, dancing and theatre, including the performance 
of a wide range of traditional and historic plays, for the wider cultural benefit of the 
communities.  

8.5 Public Spaces: The Council wishes to promote a broad range of entertainment within its area 
including live music, dancing and theatre.  To promote this policy the Council may, where 
appropriate, seek to obtain premises licences for Council owned public spaces within the 
community such as market squares, village greens, etc. 

8.6 Travelling Circuses: Where types of entertainment are present in a performance by a 
travelling circus they will not be licensable provided that certain qualifying conditions are met.  
Guidance has listed these qualifying conditions as follows:

 The entertainment is not an exhibition of a film or a boxing or wrestling entertainment;
 The entertainment takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day
 The entertainment takes place wholly within a moveable structure and the audience 

present is accommodated wholly inside that moveable structure; and
 The travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 

consecutive days.

It should be noted that the circuses with performing animals will not be permitted, and therefore 
not licensed, on Council owned land.

9. TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES

9.1 A temporary events notice (TEN) is required for the sale of alcohol by retail, provision of 
regulated entertainment and/or the provision of late night refreshment, which is to take place 
at premises, which are currently unlicensed for the activities involved.  Applicants are 
reminded that a limit of fewer than 500 persons at any one time applies to a temporary event 
and failure to comply with this limit may lead to the event closure or even prosecution.  It is 
strongly recommended, therefore, that a means of recording the number of persons entering 
and leaving the premises is put into operation.  There is nothing to stop a TEN being given for 
a premises where a premises licence is already in force although does not cover the type of 
event proposed.

9.2 If there are over 500 persons attending the event then this will fall outside the provisions of a 
temporary event notice and a premises licence will be required.

9.3 Applicants are reminded that an authorisation made under a TEN does not remove their 
obligations under any other legislation including that of statutory nuisance.  Where necessary, 
permissions should be sought from the appropriate body.  The Council strongly recommends 
that applicants familiarise themselves with these responsibilities which amongst others may 
include:-

 Planning permission
 Health and Safety
 Noise Pollution
 Erection of temporary structures
 Road closures
 Use of pyrotechnics
 Anti-social behaviour

9.4 As well as the limit on the number of persons permitted under a TEN the following conditions 
and limitations apply:-

 Duration – they are limited to events lasting for up to 168 hours (7 days);

97



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

 Use of the same premises – the same premises cannot be used on more than 12 
occasions in a calendar year, (this will increase to 15 with effect from 1 January 2016) but 
are subject to the overall aggregate of 21 days irrespective of the number of occasions on 
which they have been used; 

 The total number of notices (this includes late and standard TENs) given by an individual 
within a  calendar year (1 January to 31 December) – a Personal Licence Holder is limited 
to 50 notices in one year and another person to 5 notices 

 The number of late TEN’s is limited to 10 in a calendar year for a personal licence holder 
and two for other people.  If these limits are exceeded in a calendar year, the application 
will be returned as void and the event will not be authorised.

 There must be a minimum period of 24 hours between events authorised under separate 
TEN’s at the same premises by the same premises user or associate.

 Relevant persons - Police and Environmental Health have the opportunity to consider 
whether they should object, modify or attach conditions to a TEN based on any of the 
licensing objectives

9.5 When calculating the number of working days for submission of TENs, the day the notice is 
received and the first day of the event are excluded from the calculation.  If a TEN application 
requests for an event to start before midnight and end after midnight this will count as two 
days towards the 21 day limitation.

9.6 Standard and Late Temporary Event Notices:  There are two types of TEN, a standard TEN 
and a late TEN.  These are subject to different processes.  A standard TEN is given no later 
than ten working days before the event to which it relates, and a late TEN is given not before 
nine and not later than five working days before the event.

9.7 Standard Temporary Event Notices:  Whilst a minimum of 10 working days’ notice must be 
given to the Council and relevant persons for applications, it should be noted that his gives 
very little time for the Council to process the application and for the relevant persons to 
respond.  Applicants are therefore encouraged to provide a minimum of 28 days’ notice of a 
licensable event.

9.8 Where a TEN is held on premises where a premises licence or club premises certificate is in 
place, and the relevant persons believe that allowing the premises to be used in accordance 
with the TEN would undermine the licensing objectives they can object and/or modify and/or 
request conditions from the premises licence or club premises certificate to be applied to the 
TEN.

9.9 Where an objection to a TEN is received from relevant persons and not withdrawn, the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection, unless all parties agree that 
this is unnecessary.

9.10 Late Temporary Event Notices:  are intended to assist premises users who are required for 
reasons outside their control to provide licensable activities at premises in shorter time scales.  
However, there is a risk that the event may receive an objection from relevant persons, where 
this occurs the notice will not be valid and the event will not go ahead, as there is no scope for 
a hearing or the application of any existing conditions.

10. DUPLICATION 

10.1 So far as is possible, this policy is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and other 
regulatory regimes that already place obligations on the self-employed, employers and 
operators of venues both in respect of employers and of the general public when on the 
premises in question.  Therefore, conditions and control measures which would be a 
duplication of existing legislative requirements, cannot be imposed in the context of licensing 
law as they are already provided for in other legislation.

98



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

11. CUMULATIVE IMPACT 

11.1 The cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a 
matter which the Council can consider within its licensing policy statement.  This should not, 
however, be confused with ‘need’ which concerns the commercial demand for a particular type 
of premises, e.g. a pub, restaurant or hotel.  The issue of ‘need’ is therefore primarily a matter 
for the market to decide and does not form part of this licensing policy statement. 

11.2 The licensing authority can only adopt a special policy on cumulative impact if there is 
evidence that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area is causing 
a cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.  

11.3 Following concerns as to the perceived saturation of licensed premises in the area known as 
Op Can Do attached as Appendix 1 with a list of streets attached as Appendix 2, the licensing 
committee approved the consultation of a review of the Statement of Licensing Policy to 
include a special policy in that area.

11.4 The following steps were undertaken by the licensing authority in considering whether to adopt 
a special policy on cumulative impact for the Op Can Do area:
 Identified concern about the negative impact on the licensing objectives 
 Considered whether there is evidence to support the concerns identified that crime and 

disorder and nuisance is occurring and is associated with licensed premises
 Consulted with those specified in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003, on the proposal 

for a special policy in relation to new applications and variations to existing premises 
licences and club premises certificates and considered the outcome of the consultation

 Having considered the available evidence and undertaken consultation, the licensing 
authority determined that it is appropriate to control cumulative impact.  

Special Policy on Cumulative Effect

11.5 The Licensing Authority has adopted (following a meeting of the full council on 17 April 2013) 
a special policy relating to cumulative impact in respect to all licensed premises for the Op 
Can Do area. The special policy took effect on 18 April 2013.

11.6 This special policy creates a rebuttable presumption that applications within the Op Can Do 
area for new premises or club premises certificates or variations that are likely to add to the 
existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, if relevant representations are received 
about the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives, unless the applicant can demonstrate 
why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced.

11.7 Applicants will need to address the special policy issues in their operating schedules in order 
to rebut such a presumption. 

11.8 Despite the presumption against grant, responsible authorities and/or other persons will still 
need to make a relevant representation before the licensing authority may lawfully consider 
giving effect to its special policy i.e. if no representation is received, the application must be 
granted (subject to such conditions as are consistent with the Licensing Act 2003). 
Responsible authorities and other persons can make a written representation referring to 
information, which had been before the licensing authority when it developed its statement of 
licensing policy.

11.9 This licensing authority recognises that a special policy should never be absolute.  The 
circumstances of each application will be considered properly and applications for licences 
and certificates that are unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives 
may be granted.  After receiving representations in relation to a new application or for a 
variation of a licence or certificate, the licensing authority will consider whether it would be 
justified in departing from its special policy in the light of the individual circumstances of the 
case. The impact can be expected to be different for premises with different styles and 
characteristics.  If the licensing authority decides that an application should be refused, it will 
still need to show that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of the 

99



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

licensing objectives and that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the 
problems involved.

11.10 A special policy will not be used as a ground for revoking an existing licence or certificate when 
representations are received about problems with those premises. 

11.11 The “cumulative impact” on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a concentration of 
multiple licensed premises should only give rise to a relevant representation when an 
application for the grant or variation of a licence or certificate is being considered.

11.12 A review must relate specifically to individual premises, and by its nature, “cumulative impact” 
relates to the effect of a concentration of many premises.  Identifying individual premises in 
the context of a review would inevitably be arbitrary.

11.13 A special policy relating to cumulative impact cannot justify, and will not include provisions for 
a terminal hour in a particular area or impose quotas - based on either the number of premises 
or the capacity of those premises.

11.14 This special policy will be reviewed regularly in line with the statutory requirements to review 
the Statement of Licensing Policy unless the licensing authority deems it appropriate to review 
in the interim period.  Consultation will take place with those identified in 5.2 of the policy, 
responses can be based on intelligence such as;

 Health data including wider public health and local alcohol profiles for England (LAPE) 
data www.lape.org.uk

 Data on alcohol related and alcohol specific hospital admissions, alcohol related 
deaths in the local area and the number of people in a structured alcohol treatment 
service.

 Data about crime and disorder or nuisance occurring, or whether activities are a threat 
to public safety or children from harm.  

 If problems are occurring, to identify whether these problems are being caused by 
customers of licensed premises, or that the risk of cumulative impact is imminent.

 Complaints and calls for service from residents or businesses

11.15 The absence of a special policy however, does not prevent any responsible authority or other 
persons making representations on a new application for the grant of a licence on the grounds 
that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives.

11.16 Once away from licensed premises, a minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully.  
The licensing policy is part of a much wider strategy for addressing these problems.  Other 
mechanisms both within and outside the licensing regime are available for addressing such 
issues.  For example:

 Planning controls
 Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in partnership 

with local businesses, transport operators and other departments of the local authority
 The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, provision of 

public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and litter patrols.
 Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area as Public 

Spaces Protection Orders.  Confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in 
designated areas.

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and antisocial behaviour, 
including the issuing of fixed penalty notices.

 Prosecution for the offence of selling alcohol to a person who is drunk (or allowing such 
a sale).

 Powers to close down instantly premises or temporary events to prevent a nuisance or 
disorder from continuing, recurring or occurring.

 The power for responsible authorities and other persons to seek a review of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate.

11.17 The above may be supplemented by other local initiatives that seek to address these 
problems, for example through Safer Peterborough Partnership, in line with the strategic 
objectives for crime and disorder reduction in the city.

100

http://www.lape.org.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

Map Showing Current CI Policy Area in Green  

101



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

Table of Street Names Within the Current CI Area 

Streets in the Op Can Do area
Alexandra Road Keats Way 1-359 Dogsthorpe Road
Allen Road Keeton Road 40 - 50 Bright Street
Alma Road Kipling Court Beckets Close
Bamber Street Lammas Road Berry Court
Beech Avenue Lawn Avenue Boswell Close
Belham Road Lime Tree Avenue Burghley Mansions
Bourges Boulevard Lincoln Road Burns Close
Brassey Close Link Road Burrows Court
Brownlow Road Lister Road Carl Hall Court
Burghley Road Lynton Road Caroline Court
Burmer Road Maskew Avenue Cecil Pacey Court
Cambridge Avenue Norfolk Street Century Square
Cecil Road North Street Claridge Court
Chantry Close Northfield Road Coleridge Place 
Chaucer Road Norton Road Connaught Mews
Church Walk Nursery Close Cromwell Court
Clare Road Occupation Road Dogsthorpe Grove
Clarence Road Park Road Dyson Close 
Cobden Avenue Parliament Street Gillwell Mews
Cobden Street Peveril Road Gray Court
Cowper Road Pope Way Hamilton Court
Craig Street Portland Avenue Ingleborough
Cromwell Road Russell Street Johnson Walk
Crown Street Scotney Street Kimbolton Court
Dryden Road Searjeant Street Lincoln Gate
Eaglesthorpe Shakespeare Avenue Loire Court
English Street Sheridan Road Manor House Street
Exeter Road Silverwood Road Old Court Mews
Fitzwilliam Street Springfield Road Oxford Road
Foxdale St James' Avenue Parkodi Court
Fulbridge Road St Mark's Street Popley Court
Geneva Street St Martins Street 'Raedwald Court
Gilpin Street St Paul's Road Rock Road
Gladstone Street Stone Lane Rosehall Court
Granville Street Summerfield Road Russell Mews
Green Lane Taverners Road Salaam Court
Hankey Street Tennyson Road Shelley Close
Harris Street Thistlemoor Road St Marks Apartments
Henry Court Towler Street St Marks Court
Henry Street Vere Road St Martins Mews
Herrick Close Victoria street The New Haven
Highbury Street Warbon Avenue Tom Lock Court
Windmill Street Waterloo Road up to 135 Park Road
Bamber Court Wilberforce Road Victoria Place
Walpole Court York Road  

102



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

12. LICENSING HOURS / ZONING

12.1 EMRO’s: Early Morning Restriction Orders, are designed to address recurring problems such 
as high levels of alcohol related crime and disorder in specific areas at specific times; serious 
public nuisance; and other instances of alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which is not 
directly attributable to specific premises.

12.2 LNL: Late Night Levy, is a levy imposed on businesses which sell alcohol between midnight 
and 6am or part thereof.  Funds raised by this levy are applied to the costs of policing crime 
and disorder connected to those sales of alcohol.

12.3 The Council notes guidance on the late night levy and EMRO’s and has considered the options 
of adopting the provisions, but has no intention at this time of implementing either provision.  
The Council reserves the right to review this decision in the future.

12.4 The Council has not adopted fixed trading hours as a matter of policy.  It recognises that 
flexible licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol is important to ensure that the 
concentrations of customers leaving premises simultaneously are avoided.

12.5 The Council recognises that providing consumers with greater choice and flexibility is 
important to a thriving evening and night-time economy however, this will be balanced carefully 
against the duty to promote the four licensing objectives and the rights of local residents to 
peace and quiet.

12.6 There is no general presumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours and accordingly the 
Council may when issuing new licenses or following reviews of existing licenses reject a 
proposal or grant it with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.  

12.7 Shops, stores and supermarkets will normally be permitted to provide sales of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping, unless 
there are good reasons based on the four licensing objectives for restricting those hours.  For 
example, a limitation on licensing hours may be appropriate following Police representations 
in the case of premises known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance because youths 
gather there.

13. CHILDREN AND LICENSED PREMISES

13.1 There are a great variety of premises for which licences may be sought, including theatres, 
cinemas, restaurants, cafes, fast food outlets, community halls and schools where children 
may frequent.  No statement of policy can properly anticipate every issue of concern that could 
arise in respect of children in relation to individual premises, and therefore the individual merits 
of each application will be considered in each case.

13.2 Conditions requiring the admission of children to any premises will not generally be attached 
to licences or certificates (except those identified in 13.7).   Where no licensing restriction is 
necessary, this will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club, subject 
to compliance with the Act 

13.3 Where it is deemed appropriate to attach conditions to the licence in relation to access by 
children, this will be for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm to them.

13.4 Venue operators seeking premises licences and club premises certificates will be expected to 
demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and sufficient measures have been 
identified and will be implemented and maintained to protect children from harm, relevant to 
the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events.  It may also be that their 
own risk assessments have determined that the presence of children is undesirable or 
inappropriate.

103



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

13.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants and are considered 
to be amongst the most essential that applicants should take account of in their operating 
schedules, having regard to their particular type of premises and/or activities:-

 Effective and responsible management of the premises
 Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the protection 

of children, including child performers, from harm
 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged to secure 

the protection of children from harm
 Limitations on the hours when children may be present in all or parts of the premises
 Limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place
 Imposition of requirements for children to be accompanied by an adult
 Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards and/or ‘new type’ driving licences with 

photographs.

13.6 Where no relevant representations are made to the Council, any proposed conditions in the 
operating schedule will be attached as conditions to the licence or certificate, subject to 
paragraph 14.1 below and will be enforceable.  

13.7 Following receipt of any relevant representations, the Council will consider and determine 
each application, on its merits, as to whether to limit access by children or exclude them 
altogether from licensed premises by attaching any relevant conditions. 

13.8 The conditions limiting and restricting access by children may include a combination of the 
following: -

 Limitations on the hours when children may be present in all or parts of the premises
 Requirements for children to be accompanied by adults
 Full exclusion of those people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities 

are taking place
 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access
 Limitations or exclusions by age when certain specified activities are taking place e.g.

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature for example, lap-, 
table- or pole dancing, topless bar staff or striptease  are commonly provided

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not where there 
is a small number of cash prize gaming machines);

 With a known association to drug activities – taking or dealing;
 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the premises 

for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking.
 Where the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises.

13.9   The Council recognises the Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board as the competent 
body to advise on these matters.

13.10 The Portman Group: The Council commends the Portman Group Code of Practice on the 
naming, packaging and promotion of alcoholic drinks.  The Code seeks to ensure that drinks 
are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to those who are 18 
years old or older.

13.11 Proof of Age Schemes: The Council commends proof of age cards accredited under the 
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS).  

13.12 Children and Cinemas: In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions conditions 
will be imposed restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with 
any certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a 
certificate given to the film by the Council itself.

104



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

14. LICENCE CONDITIONS 

14.1 There are three different types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 
Proposed - those conditions offered with the operating schedule of the application:
Imposed - attached by licensing authority following a hearing
Mandatory - imposed by the Act and can be amended by the Secretary of State.
All conditions should be clear, enforceable, evidenced, proportional, relevant, and capable of 
being understood.

14.2 One of the key concepts of the Act is that any conditions (other than the statutory mandatory 
conditions and those proposed within the application) attached to licences or certificates can 
only be imposed to licenses at a hearing following relevant representations.  Conditions will 
be tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the premises and events concerned.

14.3 The Council will only attach conditions to premise licenses and club certificates where they 
are appropriate for the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives.

14.4 Conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should emerge 
initially through the operating schedule and risk assessment carried out by a prospective 
licensee or certificate holder at the time of application, particularly for applications within the 
cumulative impact area,

14.5 The Council will not impose any conditions unless they are proposed or its discretion has been 
engaged following relevant representations having been received and upheld.  In these 
circumstances, it may then only impose conditions as are appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives arising out of the consideration of representations.  

14.6 The Council will take into account:

 The character of the surrounding area;
 The nature and character of the proposed operation; 
 The impact that the activity will have on those living, working or engaged in normal 

activities in the area concerned.

14.7 Conditions will generally be considered inappropriate if they are already adequately covered 
by other legislation. 

14.8 The pool of conditions cover, among other things, issues surrounding:

 Crime and disorder, incorporating local crime prevention strategies, e.g. CCTV at certain 
premises;

 Public safety (including fire safety and means of escape);
 Theatres and cinemas (promotion of public safety);
 Anti-social behaviour (inc: public nuisance, provision of clearance of litter outside 

premises, fly posting);
 Protection of children from harm;

Further information can be found via the Council’s website www.peterborough.gov.uk under 
‘business’

14.9 Any conditions not listed in the pool may be specifically tailored by this Council and attached 
as conditions where appropriate.

14.10 In determining what conditions should be attached to licences and certificates, to appropriately 
promote the licensing objectives, the Council will be aware of the need to avoid measures 
which might deter live music, dancing or theatre by imposing indirect costs of a substantial 
nature.

15. ENFORCEMENT

105

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

15.1 The Council will establish arrangements with the responsible authorities on enforcement 
issues in addition to carrying out their own regular inspections.  These protocols will provide 
for the targeting of agreed problem and high-risk premises.

15.2 All decisions and enforcement action taken by the Council will have regard to the relevant 
provisions of the Act, national guidance, e.g. BRDO (Better Regulation Delivery Office) 
Regulators’ Code and the enforcement policy of the Council.  To this end, the key principles 
of consistency, targeting, transparency and proportionality will be maintained.

15.3 Responsible authorities may carry out their own enforcement activities such as test 
purchasing, on and off sales, underage and proxy sales. Any national guidance will be 
observed when these activities are conducted.  

15.4 Premises licences and club premises certificates are subject to an annual fee.  The Council 
must suspend these authorisations for the non-payment of the annual fee. Where disputes or 
administrative errors arise, there is a grace period of 21 days to resolve (from the due date of 
the invoice).  If the dispute or error is not resolved, a notice of suspension will be given to the 
premises providing the date (minimum of two workings days) when the suspension notice 
takes effect.

15.5 Where an authorisation is suspended, any licensable activities taking place would be 
unauthorised and subject to further enforcement.  Responsible authorities will be notified of 
suspension notices issued.

16. REVIEWS

16.1 The licensing authority works in partnership with the responsible authorities to promote the 
licensing objectives and will aim to give licensees early warning of any concerns identified at 
a premises.

16.2 Reviews of premise licences represent a key protection for the community where matters arise 
at the premise in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.  

16.3 There are certain circumstances (as detailed within guidance), when the crime prevention 
objective is being undermined, it is expected that revocation of the licence, even in the first 
instance will be seriously considered.

16.4 At any stage following the grant of a Premises Licence a responsible authority or any other 
person may request a review.  Evidence would be required based on one or more of the 
licensing objectives.
 

16.5 If relevant representations are made about a current licence, the Council will hold a hearing to 
consider them, unless the Council, the applicant and those making representations agree that 
the hearing is not necessary.

16.6 Additionally a review of the licence will normally follow any action by the Police or Local 
Authority to close down the premises on grounds of disorder or public nuisance. 

16.7 No more than one review will normally be permitted within any 12 month period on similar 
grounds except in exceptional and compelling circumstances or where it arises following a 
Closure Notice or Order.

16.8 Where entertainment is deregulated, between 08.00 and 23.00 and it is having a negative 
impact on the licensing objectives, a premises licence or club premises certificate can be 
reviewed to bring the entertainment back under the scope of the authorisation and appropriate 
conditions can be applied.

16.9 A summary review (or expedited) is appropriate for premises experiencing serious crime or 
disorder.  It is a fast track licence review where the Council can attach interim conditions 

106



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

(where appropriate) to a premises licence where the responsible authority consider that the 
premises concerned is associated with serious crime or disorder or both.  The Council can 
take the following interim steps:

 Modification of the conditions of the premises licence 
 The exclusion of the sale of alcohol (or other licensable activities) from the scope of 

the licence
 Removal of the DPS
 Suspension of the licence

16.10 The decision takes effect immediately or as soon as the Council directs.  The Council will have 
regard to the Guidance when processing summary reviews. 

16.11 Licensing officers may not initiate their own review of premises licences.

17. DELEGATION / DECISION MAKING / ADMINISTRATION

17.1 When determining applications the Council will have regard to the Guidance and this policy.  
Therefore, determination of applications made under the Act will be made by either the 
Licensing Committee, by a Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee, or by one or more 
authorised officers acting in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.  (See table 
of delegations on page 22) 

17.2 A decision made by an officer under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, will be considered 
a decision made by the Council.

17.3 The Council will consider relevant representations made both in support of or opposition to 
any application.

17.4 Where a relevant representation is made then the authorised officer will liaise with the 
applicant and relevant parties to try and reach an agreement between them and the Council, 
as to the need for final determination by the Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee.

17.5 Where relevant representations are raised which cannot be resolved by mediation, matters 
will be referred to either of the aforementioned committees for determination.

17.6 The licensing authority is also a responsible authority and will make representations and 
review licenses where it considers appropriate.  This does not negate the requirement for other 
responsible authorities or other persons from acting in their own capacity. 

17.7 Where the licensing authority utilises the responsible authority provision, there is separation 
of responsibilities to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate any conflicts of interest.  The 
officer acting as the responsible authority will be a different officer to that who is acting in its 
capacity as the licensing authority.

17.8 In cases where only positive relevant representations are received and upon agreement of the 
Applicant, the Licensing Authority and the other persons making those representations, it will 
not be necessary to hold a hearing to determine the application.

17.9 Each application will be determined on its individual merits taking into consideration the four 
licensing objectives.

17.10 Where it is determined that it is appropriate to attach conditions to a licence or certificate it will 
ensure that those conditions are focused on the direct impact of the activities taking place at 
the premises concerned, on members of the public living, working or engaged in normal 
activity in the area concerned.  Such conditions will be proportionate to the activity to be 
controlled and will only be imposed in the interests of the licensing objectives.

17.11 If representations are made concerning the potential for limited disturbance in a particular 
neighbourhood, the Council’s consideration will balance those representations against the 

107



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

wider benefits of the community.  Furthermore, the Council acknowledges the advice received 
from the DCMS that the views of local minorities should not be allowed to predominate over 
the general interests of the community.

17.12 It may be appropriate for the Sub-Committee in some circumstances to conduct a site visit.   
In such circumstances, Members will observe the Members’ Licensing Code of Good Practice 
and Procedure for Licensing Sub-Committee Site Visits.

17.13 All parties will receive a fair hearing.

17.14 The Council will ensure that Members and Officers having responsibility under the Act will 
receive appropriate training to administer and enforce the Act.

17.15 Upon request, the Licence Committee will receive regular reports on decisions made by 
officers to ensure that an overall picture of the state of licences in the area is maintained.

17.16 The Council will give comprehensive reasons for its decisions and such reasons shall also 
address the extent to which the decision has been made with regard to this Policy and 
Guidance.

18. APPEALS

18.1 Magistrates’ Court Appeals: Other than in the case of personal licences, all appeals in 
connection with various decisions made by the Council will be determined by the Magistrates’ 
Court in the area which the premises concerned are situated.

18.2 In the case of personal licences, the appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court in the 
area in which the Council (or any part of it) which made the decision is situated.

18.3 Beginning with the day the appellant was notified by the Council of the decision to be appealed 
against; the appellant has a period of 21 days to commence his appeal by the issue of a 
complaint and notice of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.  A fee is payable to the Court and 
the 21 day period is strict and cannot be extended.

18.4 The Council will always be a Respondent to the appeal, but in cases where a favourable 
decision has been made for an applicant licence holder, club or premises user against the 
representations of a responsible authority or an interested party or the objections of the chief 
officer of Police, the holder of the premises or personal licence or club premises certificate or 
the person who gave an interim authority notice or the premises user will also be a respondent 
to the appeal and the person who made the relevant representation or the chief officer of 
Police will be the appellants.

18.5 On determining an appeal, the court may: 

 Dismiss the appeal;
 Substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could have been 

made by the Council; or
 Remit the case back to the Council to dispose of it in accordance with the direction of the 

court.

18.6 The court may make such order as to costs as it sees fit.

18.7 The court, on hearing any appeal, may therefore review the merits of the decision on the facts 
and consider points of law or address both.

18.8 In hearing an appeal against any decision made by the Council, the Magistrates’ Court will 
have regard to this licensing policy statement and the Guidance.

18.9 The Court can depart from both if it is justified to do so, depending on the individual 
circumstances.

108



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

18.10 This Council, therefore, when determining applications will give comprehensive reasons for its 
decisions.

18.11 Any decision made by the Magistrates’ Court will be implemented by the Council immediately.

19. EFFECTIVE DATE AND REVIEW 

19.1 This policy statement will take effect on 7 January 2016

19.2 This policy statement will be kept under review, consulted on, and will remain in existence for 
a period of up to five years.  It is subject to review and further consultation before 7 January 
2021 (subject to changes in legislation prescribed by the Secretary of State). 

109



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

20. Table: Recommended Delegations of Functions

Matter to be dealt with Sub Committee Officers

Application for Personal Licence If a Police objection If no objection made

Application for Personal Licence with 
unspent convictions All cases

Application for Premise Licence/Club 
Premise
Certificate

If a relevant 
representation made

If no relevant 
representation made

Application for Provisional Statement If a relevant 
representation made

If no relevant 
representation made

Application to vary Premise Licence/Club 
Premise Certificate If a relevant 

representation made
If no relevant 
representation made

Application to vary designated Premise 
Supervisor If a Police objection All other cases

Request to be removed as designated 
Premise Supervisor All cases

Application for transfer of Premise Licence If a Police objection All other cases

Applications for interim authorities If a Police objection All other cases

Application to review Premise Licence/club 
Premise Certificate All cases

Decision on whether a complaint is 
irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious etc All cases

Decision to object when Local Authority is a 
Consultee and not the relevant Authority 
considering the application All cases

Determination of a Police objection to a 
Temporary Event Notice All cases

110



ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

21. CONTACT DETAILS

THE LICENSING AUTHORITY: The Licensing Team
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1FA
T: 01733 747474
E: eh.licensing@peterborough.gov.uk

www.peterborough.gov.uk 
(under the Business section)

THE RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITES:

Cambridgeshire Constabulary Licensing Department
Cambs Constabulary North Division 
4th Floor Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1 HZ
T: 01733  424438 / 424449

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue: Cambs Fire & Rescue Service
Peterborough District
Dogsthorpe Fire Station
Dogsthorpe Road
Peterborough
PE1 3RE
T: 01733 353206

Safeguarding Children Board Child Protection and Review Manager
Peterborough City Council
Children’s Services – Social Care
2nd Floor, Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1FB
T: 01733 746020

Environmental Health - Pollution Pollution Control Team
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1FA
T: 01733  747474
E: pollution.control@peterborough.gcsz.gov.uk

Health and Safety: Health & Safety Team
e.g. Public houses, nightclubs, Peterborough City Council
shops, restaurants, takeaways, Town Hall
Community centres managed by Bridge Street
a committee Peterborough

PE1 1FA
T: 01733 747474
E: healthandsaftey@peterborough.gov.uk

Premises managed by Peterborough Health and Safety Executive
City Council e.g. schools, leisure 14 Cardiff Road
centres Luton

LU1 1PP
T: 01582 444200

111

mailto:eh.licensing@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(b) – FOR INFORMATION

Planning Planning Services
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1HF
T: 01733 453410 
E: planningcontrol@peterborough.gov.uk

Trading Standards Trading Standards Department
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1HT
T: 01733 747474
T: 03454 040506 for consumer advice
E: trading.standards@peterborough.gov.uk

Public Health Director of Public Health
Peterborough City Council
2nd Floor Town Hall
Peterborough
PE1 1HQ
T: 01733 747474
E: publichealth@peterborough.gov.uk

For vessels carrying more than 12 passengers the certifying authority will be: -

Maritime & Coastguard Agency
                                  Surveyor In Charge
                                 Harwich Marine Office
                                  East Terrace
                                  Walton–on–Naze
                                  Essex 

CO14 8PY
T: 01255 682107

For Vessels carrying 12 or less passengers the certifying authority will be: -    

Environment Agency
Kingfisher House
Goldhay Way
Orton Goldhay
Peterborough
PE2 5ZR
T:  01733 464277

Further information can be found on the following links:

Peterborough City Council website; www.peterborough.gov.uk/business

Home Office website: www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office

Guidance issued under section 182 of the Act:
www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-
182-of-licensing-act-2003

The Licensing Act 2003: www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents

Information Commissioners Office: ico.org.uk

112

http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents


ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM No.

19 November 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Nigel North, Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Environmental Capital

Contact Officer(s): Peter Gell – Head of Regulatory Services
Kerry Leishman – Licensing Development Officer

Tel. 01733 453419
Tel. 01733 453502

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES – GAMBLING ACT 2005

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Peter Gell, Head of Regulatory Services Deadline date: 7 December 2015

1. Approve the revised Statement of Principles and recommend that it be adopted by Council on 
17 December 2015

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to make members aware of any amendments to the Statement 
of Principles.

1.2 To ask Members to approve the revised Statement of Principles with suggested 
amendments and agree to recommend approval by Full Council.

2 TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

YES If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

Date for relevant Council 
meeting

17 December 2015 Date for submission to 
Government Dept

N/A

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Under Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005, it is a requirement for each Council to 
produce, adopt and publish a Statement of Principles.  This Statement will govern the way 
decisions are made by the Council and how it will administer its duties under the Act.  
Without a Statement of Principles the Council may be subject to Judicial Review for failing 
in its responsibilities to carry out a statutory duty.  

3.2 The Act requires that the Statement of Principles is kept under continual review to 
incorporate where necessary any changes to the legislation and or Guidance as 
appropriate.  In addition to this, the Act specifies that the Statement must be reviewed and 
revised on a three yearly basis.

3.3 The third three year period began on 31 January 2013 and therefore is due to expire on 30 
January 2016.  The revised Statement must be drafted and consulted upon prior to it being 
adopted.

3.4 In formulating the revised Statement, officers have given full consideration to the 
requirements of the Act and guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.  We have also 

113



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

liaised with colleagues from neighbouring authorities to ensure our Statements are 
consistent.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 The following outlines the procedure taken, in providing the opportunity for members, 
statutory consultees and members of the public to be involved in the process of reviewing 
our Statement of Principles

4.2 Before determining its Statement for any three year period (as required under s.349 of the 
Act), the licensing authority must consult the persons listed in s349 (3) as follows:

a. Chief Officer of Police for the area;
b. One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the area;
c. One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Act.

4.3 For information purposes a list of consultees is attached at Appendix A. 

4.4 A 10 week consultation took place between 06 July 2015 and 13 September 2015. Advice 
was given on the following: 

i) Options on where to access and obtain copies of the draft revised Statement 
ii) Opportunity to make relevant representations, in writing, on the draft Statement 
iii) Notification that any comments must be received by 13 September 
 

4.5 The licensing team did not receive comment on the draft statement of principles during 
consultation. 

4.6 Due to an update of the Gambling Commission’s guidance issued to Licensing Authorities 
published mid consultation the Statement has been amended post consultation to include a 
section on local risk assessments and local area profiles but does not reflect a change of 
intention or direction of the policy.

4.7 The revised Statement of Principles is attached at Appendix B.

5. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

5.1 Recommendation to Council to adopt the revised Statement of Principles.

6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 To comply with our statutory requirement under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 to 
produce, adopt and publish a Statement of Principles. 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 The alternative option is to do nothing. This presents a risk to the council as failure to adopt 
a policy could result in a Judicial Review being sought.

8. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications – Any costs in relation to the production of the Statement of 
Principles will be met by income from fees.

Legal Implications – As a minimum, Licensing Authorities are required to prepare and 
publish, every three years, a Statement of the Principles it proposes to apply when 
exercising its functions under the Gambling Act 2005.

114



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985)

 
Guidance issued to licensing authorities under s.25 of the Act.

115



This page is intentionally left blank

116



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

GAMBLING ACT 2005

STATEMENT
OF

PRINCIPLES

117



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

2

CONTENTS  PAGE NO

The City of Peterborough 4
Definitions 5
Background 5

PART A – INTRODUCTION

1. The Licensing Objectives 6
2. Statement of Principles 6
3. Consultation 6
4. Approval of Statement 7
5. Declaration 7
6. Responsible Authorities 7
7. Interested Parties 7
8. Exchange of Information 9
9. Enforcement 10
10 Public Register 10
11. Decision Making / Delegation 10
12. Licensing Authority Functions 11

PART B – PREMISES LICENCES

13. General Principles 13
 Definition of Premises 13
 Premises ready for gambling 13
 Location 14
 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes 14
 Licensing Objectives 14
 Conditions 15
 Risk Assessments 16
 Local Area Profiles 17

14. Adult Gaming Centres 17
15. Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 17
16. Casinos 18
17. Betting Premises 18
18. Tracks 19
19. Bingo Premises 20
20. Travelling Fairs 21
21. Provisional Statements 21
22. Reviews 22

118



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

3

PART C – PERMITS / REGISTRATIONS / NOTICES

23. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres 24
24. (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit 24
25. Prize Gaming Permits 25
26. Club Gaming & Club Gaming Machine Permits 26
27 Small Society Lotteries 27
28. Temporary Use Notices 28
29. Occasional Use Notices 28
30. Additional Information 28

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Map of Peterborough 29
Appendix 2 List of Consultee’s 30
Appendix 3 Responsible Authorities 31
Appendix 4 Summary of Delegations / Delegates 33
Appendix 5 Table of Gaming Machine Categories 34

119



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

4

THE CITY OF PETERBOROUGH 

Peterborough is a modern and progressive city with a strong historical character that 
makes it a stimulating environment in which to live, work and visit. Between 1971 and 
1991, Peterborough’s population grew by 46 per cent under the New Town expansion 
scheme.  

In the 2011 Census Peterborough had a population of approximately 183,000. The 
wider sub-region, in which Peterborough is the economic centre, has a population of 
approximately 350,000 people in both the East of England and East Midlands’ regions. 

Neighbouring districts that look towards Peterborough as a key economic centre include 
Fenland, Huntingdonshire, South Holland, South Kesteven, East Northamptonshire and 
Rutland. 

Today Peterborough is one of the fastest growing cities in the country with a vibrant 
private sector delivering record job growth in recent years. The city enjoys an unrivalled 
strategic location in the east of England. 

It is only 45 minutes from central London and within striking distance of the region’s 
other great cities - being well served as it is by airports, rail and road links.

The city owes much of its increasing fortunes in recent years to a city council that 
focuses on three key areas for its people – prosperity, education and quality of life.

When you visit Peterborough you will find a heritage city, an environment city, an event 
city and a modern exciting cosmopolitan city

Please refer to Appendix 1 for a map of Peterborough.

Our priorities:

 Education, Skills and University

 Culture, Recreation and the Arts 

 Safeguarding Children and Adults

 Safe and Cohesive Communities

 Environment Capital and Energy Innovation

 Growth, Regeneration and Economic Development

120



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

5

DEFINITIONS

The Council means Peterborough City Council

The Licensing Authority means the Council acting as defined by section 2 of the 
Gambling Act 2005.  

The Act means the Gambling Act 2005.

Members means Peterborough City Councillors

The Licensing Committee means the full committee or a sub committee of no less 
than three Members.

Guidance means the guidance issued under part 2 section 25 of the Gambling Act 
2005 by the Gambling Commission in April 2006

Child means an individual who is less than 16 years old, as defined in part 4 section 
45(1) of the Act.

A young person means an individual who is not a child but who is less than 18 years 
old, as defined in part 4 section 45(2) of the Act. 

LA means Local Authority.

BACKGROUND

The Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”) gives effect to the Government’s proposals for 
reform of the law on gambling.  The Act contains a regulatory system to govern the 
provision of all gambling in Great Britain, other than the National Lottery and spread 
betting.  The Act received Royal Assent on 07 April 2005.

A draft bill was published in November 2003 following a publication of a Government 
White Paper “A Safe Bet for Success” published in March 2002.  The White Paper was 
the Government’s response to the report of the Gambling Review Body published in 
July 2001.

The Act  introduced a new unified regulator for gambling in Great Britain, the Gambling 
Commission and a new licensing regime for commercial gambling (to be conducted by 
the Gambling Commission or by licensing authorities, depending on the matter to be 
licensed). The Act removed from licensing justices all responsibility for granting gaming 
and betting permissions, which they exercised previously.  Instead, the Gambling 
Commission and licensing authorities now share between them responsibility for all 
matters previously regulated by licensing justices.

121



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

6

PART A - INTRODUCTION

1. THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

1.1 The Act sets out licensing functions to be exercised by licensing authorities in 
relation to the licensing of premises and the grant of certain permits.  In 
exercising most of these functions licensing authorities must have regard to the 
licensing objectives, which underpin the regulatory regime.

The licensing objectives are:
 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime,
 Ensuring that gambling is being conducted in a fair and open way, and
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling. 

1.2 It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement 
in relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited 
by gambling”.

2. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

2.1 The Act requires this licensing authority to publish a ‘Statement of Principles’ that 
it proposes to apply when exercising its functions. This statement must be 
published at least every three years and amended from time to time with any 
amended parts re-consulted upon and subsequently re-published.

2.2 This is the fourth Statement of Principles produced by Peterborough City Council, 
reviewed in accordance with statutory requirement.

3. CONSULTATION

3.1 Peterborough City Council consulted widely upon this statement before finalising 
and publishing.  

3.2 The Gambling Act requires that the following parties are consulted by licensing 
authorities:
 The Chief Officer of Police
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s 
functions under the Gambling Act 2005

For a full list of persons this authority consulted please refer to Appendix 2.

3.3 The consultation took place between 06 July 2015 and 13 September 2015.  

122



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

7

This latest draft of the policy contains the minimum of amendments and no 
changes to the intent or direction of the policy.

4. APPROVAL OF POLICY STATEMENT

4.1 This statement was approved at a meeting of the full council on (date to be 
inserted) and was published via Peterborough City Council’s website on (date to 
be inserted).

4.2 It should be noted that this statement will not override the right of any person to 
make an application, make representations about an application or apply for a 
review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits and according to 
the statutory requirements of the Act.

This section will be completed subject to adoption.

5. DECLARATION

5.1 Peterborough City Council would like to declare that in producing this Statement 
it has had regard to the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the 
guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission and any 
responses from those consulted on the statement.

6. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 

6.1 As required by regulations licensing authorities are to state the principles it will 
apply in exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in 
writing, a body which is competent to advise the authority about the protection of 
children from harm.  

The principles are:
 The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 

licensing authority’s area; and
 The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 

rather than any particular vested interest group.

6.2 In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s guidance to 
local authorities this authority designates the Local Safeguarding Children Board 
for this purpose.

For a full list of the Responsible Authorities in relation to premises please refer to 
Appendix 3 or alternatively via the council website.

7. INTERESTED PARTIES

7.1 Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply 
for a review of an existing licence.  

123



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

8

7.2 For the purposes of this part a person is an interested party in relation to an 
application for or in respect of a premises licence, if in the opinion of this 
licensing authority the person:
 Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 

authorised activities;
 Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 
 Represents persons who satisfy the above.

7.3 Licensing authorities are required to state the principles they will apply in 
exercising their powers under the Act to determine whether a person is an 
interested party.  The principles this authority will apply are: 

7.4 Each case shall be decided upon its own merits.  This authority will not apply a 
rigid rule to its decision making.  It will however consider the following in 
accordance with the Gambling Commission’s guidance for local authorities.

7.5 When determining what “sufficiently close to the premises” means (in each case), 
this authority might include:
 The size of the premises
 The nature of the premises
 The distance of the premises from the location of the person making the 

representation
 The potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be 

taken by those visiting the establishment), and 
 The circumstances of the complainant.  This is not the personal 

characteristics of the complainant, but the interests of the complainant which 
may be relevant to the distance from the premises.  For example, it could be 
reasonable for an authority to conclude that “sufficiently close to be likely to 
be affected” could have a different meaning for (a) a private resident (b) a 
residential school for children with truanting problems and (c) a residential 
hostel for vulnerable adults.

7.6 In relation to “persons with business interests that could be affected” it could be 
argued that any gambling business could be affected by another gambling 
business expanding into any part of Great Britain, however that is unlikely to 
satisfy the test of being “a person with business interests that could be affected 
by the premises” under consideration.  It should be borne in mind however that 
the “demand test” in the 1963 and 1968 Acts have not been preserved in the 
Gambling Act 2005, therefore unmet demand is not a criterion for a licensing 
authority in considering an application.

7.7 Factors that this licensing authority is likely to include are:
 The size of the premises;
 The ‘catchment’ area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit); and 
 Whether the person making a representation has business interests in that 

catchment area that might be affected.

124



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

9

7.8 The Gambling Commission recommended in its guidance that licensing 
authorities should state that interested parties include trade associations, trade 
unions, residents’ and tenants’ associations.  This authority however will not 
generally view these bodies as interested parties unless they have a member 
who can be classed as an interested party under the terms of the Act e.g. lives 
sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the activities 
applied for. 

7.9 Interested parties can also be represented by other persons such as their local 
councillors and Members of Parliament (MP’s).  There is a burden on ward 
councillors who are also licensing committee members to avoid beyond doubt 
any conflict of interest; therefore care should be taken when seeking 
representation. If there are any doubts please contact the licensing department.

8. EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

8.1 Licensing authorities are required to include in their statement, the principles to 
be applied under Section 29 and 30 of the Act with respect to the exchange of 
information between the licensing authority and the Gambling Commission, and 
the functions under section 350 of the Act with the respect of information 
between it and the other persons listed in schedule 6 of the Act:

 A Constable or Police Force
 An Enforcement Officer
 A Licensing Authority
 Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs and Excise
 The Gambling Commission 
 The National Lottery Commission
 The Secretary of State
 The Scottish Ministers

8.2 The principle that this licensing authority applies is that it will act in accordance 
with provisions of the Act in its exchange of information which includes the 
provision that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened.  This 
licensing authority shall have regard to the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission as and when it is published on this matter, as well as any relevant 
regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers provided in the 
Act.

8.3 Details of applications and representations which are referred to the Licensing 
Sub-Committee for determination will be detailed reports that are made publicly 
available in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 and the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. Personal details of people making representations will be 
disclosed to applicants and only be withheld from publication on the grounds of 
personal safety where the Licensing Authority is asked to do so. 

125



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

10

8.4 Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with other 
bodies then they will be made available.  Please contact the licensing team for 
further information on our protocols.

9. ENFORCEMENT

9.1 Licensing authorities are required to state the principles they propose to apply in 
exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act with respect to the inspection of 
premises and the powers under Section 346 of the Act to instigate criminal 
proceedings in respect of the offences specified.

9.2 This licensing authority’s principles are that it shall be guided by the Gambling 
Commission’s guidance and will endeavour to be:
 proportionate – regulators should only intervene when necessary.  Remedies 

should be appropriate to the risk posed and costs identified and minimised 
 accountable – authorities must be able to justify decisions and be subject to 

public scrutiny
 consistent – rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly.
 transparent – regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and 

user friendly; and
 targeted – enforcement should be focused on the problems and minimise side 

effects

9.3 This licensing authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory 
regimes, so far as is possible and adopt a risk based inspection programme.

9.4 The main enforcement and compliance role of the licensing authority in terms of 
the Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences 
and other permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission will be the 
enforcement body for the operating and personal licences.  It is also worth noting 
that concerns about manufacturer, supply or repair of gaming machines will not 
be dealt with by the licensing authority but will be notified to the Gambling 
Commission.

9.5 The licensing authority’s enforcement concordat is available upon request to the 
licensing department.

10 PUBLIC REGISTER

10.1 In accordance with section 156 of the Act, Peterborough City Council maintains 
an electronic public register which contains premises licences issued by the 
authority.  The register is available to view at www.peterborough.gov.uk.  This 
information is available for inspection by members of the public at all reasonable 
times.  Further information such as fees can also be found on the website.

11. DECISION MAKING / DELEGATION

126

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

11

11.1 When determining applications this licensing authority will have regard to the 
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, any relevant code of practice, 
this policy and the licensing objectives.  Determination of applications made to 
the licensing authority will be made either by the full council, the licensing 
committee, or a sub-committee of the licensing committee or by authorised 
officers, in accordance with section 153 of the Act.

11.2 Where relevant representations are raised which cannot be resolved by 
mediation, matters will either be referred to the licensing committee or the sub-
committee of the licensing committee.

For a summary of this licensing authorities delegations permitted under the 
Gambling Act 2005 please refer to Appendix 4.

12. LICENSING AUTHORITY FUNCTIONS

12.1 Licensing authorities are required under the Act to:

 be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to 
take place by issuing Premises Licences

 issue Provisional Statements 
 regulate members’ clubs and miners welfare institutes who wish to undertake 

certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming permits and/or Club 
Machine Permits

 issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs
 grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at 

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres
 receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 

2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming machines
 issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed 

to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines

 register Small Society Lotteries below prescribed thresholds
 issue Prize Gaming Permits
 receive and endorse Temporary Use Notices
 receive Occasional Use Notices
 provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences 

issued 
 maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 

functions
 the exercise of its powers of compliance and enforcement under the Act in 

partnership with the Gambling Commission and other relevant responsible 
authorities. 

127



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

12

12.2 It should be noted that local licensing authorities will not be involved in licensing 
remote gambling at all.  This will fall to the Gambling Commission via operating 
licences.

128



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

13

PART B - PREMISES LICENCES 

13. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

13.1 Premises licences are subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 
2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which 
are detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  Licensing authorities 
are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, where considered 
to be appropriate. 

13.2 This licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about premises 
licences it should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it 
thinks it:
 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission
 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and
 in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Principles

13.3 Definition of “premises” 

13.3.1 In the Act, “premises” is defined as including “any place”.  Section 152 of the Act 
prevents more than one premises licence applying to any one place.  However, it 
is possible for a single building to be subject to more than one premises licence, 
provided they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the 
building can reasonably be regarded as being different premises. However, this 
licensing authority will pay particular attention if there are issues about sub-
divisions of a single building or plot and will ensure that mandatory conditions 
relating to access between premises are observed.

13.3.2 Whether different parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate 
premises will always be a question of fact in the circumstances.  The location of 
the premises will clearly be an important consideration and the suitability of the 
division is likely to be a matter of discussion between the operator and the 
licensing officer.  

13.3.3 The local authority will consider the Gambling Commission’s Guidance and all 
other circumstances of the case in making any decision as to what can properly 
be regarded as premises.

13.4 Premises “ready for gambling”

13.4.1 The guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only be 
issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are 
going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, 

129



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

14

consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises 
are brought into use.

13.4.2 If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or 
if the applicant does not yet have the right to occupy them, then an application for 
a provisional statement should be made instead.

13.5 Location 

Demand issues cannot be considered with regards to the location of premises 
but that considerations in terms of licensing objectives can.  This authority will 
pay particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.  

13.6 Duplication with Other Regulatory Regimes 

This licensing authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other 
statutory/regulatory systems where possible, including planning. This authority 
will not consider whether a licence application is likely to be awarded planning 
permission or building regulations approval, in its consideration of any 
application.  The licensing authority will listen to, and consider carefully, any 
concerns about conditions which cannot be met by licensees due to planning 
restrictions, should such a situation arise.

13.7 Licensing Objectives 

Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the licensing 
objectives, this licensing authority has considered the Gambling Commission’s 
guidance to local authorities and some comments are made below.

13.7.1 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime – This 
licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission will be taking a 
leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime.  The Gambling 
Commission’s guidance does however envisage that licensing authorities should 
pay particular attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of 
this licensing objective.  Thus, where an area has known high levels of organised 
crime this authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are 
suitable to be located in such areas and whether conditions may be suitable such 
as the provision of door supervisors.

13.7.2 This licensing authority has noted the Gambling Commissions guidance where it 
states that licensing authorities should generally consider disorder as activity that 
is more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance. 

130



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

15

13.7.3 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way – This licensing 
authority has noted that the Gambling Commission has stated that it would 
generally not expect licensing authorities to become concerned with ensuring 
that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via 
operating and personal licences.
Further guidance on this issue may be provided by the Gambling Commission 
and if so this authority will have regard to it, when available.

13.7.4 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling – This licensing authority has noted that Gambling 
Commission guidance states that this objective means preventing children from 
taking part in gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so that gambling 
products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children).   

13.7.5 There is no definition of ‘vulnerable person’ and it is noted that the Gambling 
Commission are not seeking to offer one, but this could include people who 
gamble more than they want to, people who gamble beyond their means and 
people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.  Should a practical 
definition prove possible in future then this statement will be updated with it, by 
way of a revision.

This licensing authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by 
case basis.

13.8 Conditions 

13.8.1 Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be:

 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 
 reasonable in all other respects

13.8.2 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, 
although there are a number of measures this licensing authority may consider 
using should there be a perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, 
appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  This licensing authority will also 
expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own suggestions as to ways in which 
they can meet the licensing objectives effectively.

13.8.3 This licensing authority will also consider specific measures which may be 
required for buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such 
measures may include supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from 
non-gambling areas frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming 
machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the 

131



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

16

licensing objectives.  These matters are in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission’s guidance.

13.8.4 This authority will also ensure where necessary and deemed appropriate that 
where category C or above machines are on offer in premises to which children 
are admitted:

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated 
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to 
prevent access other than through a designated entrance

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located
 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised
 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be 

observed by the staff or the licence holder; and
 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed 

notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18

13.8.5 As the licensing authority we note that there are conditions which we are unable 
to attach to premises licences, these are:

 any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an operating licence condition

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation

 conditions which provide that a membership of a club or body be required for 
casino and bingo clubs (the Act specifically removed the membership 
requirement)

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes

13.8.6 This licensing authority may consider a need for door supervisors in terms of the 
licensing objectives for protection of children and vulnerable persons and 
preventing premises becoming a source of crime or disorder.  Door supervisors 
at casinos or bingo premises are exempt from the requirements of the Private 
Security Industry Act 2001.  Where this authority imposes door supervision 
requirements on such licences, the personnel will not need licensing under the 
2001 Act. This authority may however consider imposing the requirement of a 
Criminal Record Bureau check on door supervisors, by way of a condition on a 
licence.

 
13.8.7 For premises other than casinos and bingo premises, operators and licensing 

authorities may decide that supervision of entrances / machines is appropriate for 
particular cases but it will need to be decided whether these shall be SIA 
licensed or not.  It will not be automatically assumed that they shall be.

13.9 Risk Assessments 

132



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

17

Under new social responsibility code provisions from April 2016 licensees are 
required to undertake  a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises 
licence. Their risk assessment must also be updated:
 When applying for a variation of a premises licence 
 To take into account of significant changes in local circumstances, including 

those identified in a licensing authority’s statement of policy 
 When there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect 

their mitigation of local risks.

13.10 Local Area Profiles

Such risk assessments can make reference to the council’s Area Profile which 
may be compiled with respect to reported gambling-related problems in an area. 
At the time of preparing this edition of the Statement of Principles there has been 
no evidence presented to support the assertion that any part of Peterborough 
City Council had or is experiencing problems from gambling activities. This 
position will be kept under review.

14. ADULT GAMING CENTRES

14.1 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and 
will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient 
measures to address these issues. 

14.2 This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet 
licensing objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may 
cover issues such as:
 proof of age schemes
 CCTV
 supervision of entrances / machine areas
 physical separation 
 location of entry
 notices / signage
 self-barring schemes
 provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 

GamCare

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

14.3 The question of sub-division of such premises has become an issue and been 
the subject of Gambling Commission Guidance. There must be no direct entry 
from one adult gaming centre into another. This Authority will take note of the 
guidance issued in respect of such applications.

15. LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES

133



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

18

15.1 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and 
will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient 
measures to, ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only 
gaming machine areas.

15.2 This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet 
licensing objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may 
cover issues such as:

 CCTV
 supervision of entrances / machine areas
 notices / signage
 physical separation of areas
 specific opening hours
 self-barring schemes 
 provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 

GamCare
 suspected child truancy handling training

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

15.3 This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to 
the Gambling Commission’s website to see any conditions that apply to operating 
licences covering the way in which the area containing the category C machines 
should be delineated.  

For a full list of machine categories please refer to appendix 5.
 
16. CASINOS

This authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the 
Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the powers to do so.  Should this 
authority decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it will update this 
statement with details of that resolution.  Any such decision would need to be 
made by full council.

17. BETTING PREMISES

17.1 Betting machines - This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling 
Commission's guidance, take into account the size the premises, the number of 
counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. 

134



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

19

17.2 There is no evidence that the operation of betting offices has required door 
supervisors for the protection of the public.  This authority will make a door 
supervision requirement only if there is clear evidence from the history of trading 
at the premises that the premises cannot be adequately supervised from the 
counter and that the door supervision is both necessary and proportionate. 

18. TRACKS

18.1 This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than 
one premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 
track.  As per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, this licensing authority will 
especially consider the impact upon the third licensing objective (i.e. the 
protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling) and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are 
distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not 
permitted to enter.

18.2 This licensing authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to 
demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to 
adult only gaming facilities.  It is noted that children and young persons will be 
permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days 
when dog-racing and / or horse racing takes place, but that they are still 
prevented from entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D 
machines) are provided.

18.3 Applicants will be expected to offer their own measures to meet the licensing 
objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may cover issues 
such as:
 proof of age schemes
 location of gaming machines
 supervision of entrances / machine areas
 notices / signage
 provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 

Gamcare

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

18.4 Betting Machines – This licensing authority will as per the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance, take into account the size of the premises, the number 
of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.  
We will also take note of the Gambling Commission’s suggestion that licensing 
authorities will want to consider restricting the number and location of such 
machines in respect of applications for track betting premises licences.

135



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

20

18.5 Condition on rules being displayed - The Gambling Commission has advised 
in its guidance for local authorities that “…licensing authorities should attach a 
condition to track premises licences requiring the track operator to ensure that 
the rules are prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that other 
measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the public.  For 
example, the rules could be printed in the race-card or made available in leaflet 
form from the track office.” 

18.6 Applications and plans – The Gambling Act requires applicants to submit plans 
of the premises with their application, in order to ensure that the licensing 
authority has the necessary information to make an informed judgement about 
whether the premises are fit for gambling. 

The Gambling Commission's suggestion "To ensure that licensing authorities 
gain a proper understanding of what they are being asked to license they should, 
in their licensing policies, set out the information that they will require, which 
should include detailed plans for the racetrack itself and the area that will be 
used for temporary “on-course” betting facilities (often known as the “betting 
ring”) and in the case of dog tracks and horse racecourses fixed and mobile pool 
betting facilities operated by the Tote or track operator, as well as any  other 
proposed gambling facilities." and that "Plans should make clear what is being 
sought for authorisation under the track betting premises licence and what, if any, 
other areas are to be subject to a separate application for a different type of 
premises licence."

18.7 This authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise 
location of betting areas on tracks.  The precise location of where betting facilities 
are provided is not required to be shown on track plans, both by virtue of the fact 
that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because of the difficulties 
associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track.  Applicants 
should provide sufficient information that this authority can satisfy itself that the 
plan indicates the main areas where betting might take place.  For racecourses in 
particular, any betting areas subject to the “five times rule” (commonly known at 
betting rings) must be indicated on the plan.

In rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that the 
track in question will not be specifically designed for the frequent holding of 
sporting events or races.  In such cases betting facilities may be better provided 
through occasional use notices where the boundary premises do not need to be 
defined.

19. BINGO PREMISES

19.1 This licensing authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s guidance states:

Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises; however they are 
not permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines are 
made available for use these must be separated from areas where children and 
young people are allowed.

136



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

21

19.2 This licensing authority must satisfy itself that bingo can be played in any bingo 
premises for which a premises licence has been issued.  This will be a relevant 
consideration where the operator of an existing bingo premises applies to vary 
their licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit and then 
applies for a new premises licence, or multiple licences, for that or those 
excluded areas.

19.3 This authority also notes the Guidance at paragraph 18.8 regarding the unusual 
circumstances in which the splitting of a pre-existing premises into two adjacent 
premises might be permitted.

20. TRAVELLING FAIRS

20.1 It will fall to this licensing authority to decide whether, where category D 
machines and / or equal chance gaming without a permit is to be made available 
for use at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling 
amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met.  This licensing 
authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair.

20.2 It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for land being used as a 
fair is per calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs 
are held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs 
occupying the land.  This licensing authority will work with its neighbouring 
authorities to ensure that land which crosses its boundaries is monitored so that 
the statutory limits are not exceeded.

21. PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS

21.1 Developers may wish to apply to this authority for provisional statements before 
entering into a contract to buy or lease property or land to judge whether a 
development is worth taking forward in light of the need to obtain a premises 
licence.  There is no need for the applicant to hold an operating licence in order 
to apply for a provisional statement. 

The Gambling Act provides for a person to make an application to the licensing 
authority for a provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she:

 expect to be constructed;
 expects to be altered; or
 expects to acquire a right to occupy.

21.2 The holder of a provisional statement may then apply for a premises licence once 
the premises are constructed, altered or acquired.  

21.3 In terms of representations about premise licence applications, following the 
grant of a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern 

137



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

22

matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, 
or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.  In addition, this 
authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those 
attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters:

 which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence 
stage; or

 which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances

22. REVIEWS

22.1 Requests for a review of a premise licence can be made by interested parties or 
responsible authorities; however, it is for this licensing authority to decide 
whether the review is to be carried out.  This will be on the basis of whether the 
request for the review is relevant to the matters listed below
 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and
 in accordance with the authorities statement of principles.

The request for the review will also be subject to the consideration by the 
authority as to whether the request is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it will 
certainly not cause this authority to wish to alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or 
whether it is substantially the same as previous representations or requests for 
review.

22.2 This licensing authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any 
reason which it considers is appropriate.

22.3 Once a valid application for a review has been received, representations can be 
made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a 28 day period.  
This period begins 7 days after the application was received by the licensing 
authority, who will publish notice of the application within 7 days of receipt.
The licensing authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 
day period for making representations has passed.

22.4 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the licensing authority 
should take any action in relation to the licence.  If action is justified, the options 
open to the licensing authority are:-

a) add remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing 
authority;

b) exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g. 
opening hours) or amend such an exclusion;

c) suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
and/or

138



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

23

d) revoke the premises licence.

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the 
licensing authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the 
Act, as well as any relevant representations.

22.5 In particular, the licensing authority may initiate a review of a premises licence on 
the grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for 
gambling at the premises.  This is to prevent people from applying for licences in 
a speculative manner without intending to use them.

139



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

24

PART C - PERMITS / REGISTRATIONS / NOTICES

23. UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE GAMING MACHINE 
PERMITS

23.1 Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide 
category D gaming machines, it may apply to this licensing authority for this 
permit.  It should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises will be 
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use.  

23.2 This licensing authority will expect the applicant to show that there are policies 
and procedures in place to protect children and other vulnerable persons from 
harm.  Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes 
wider protection considerations.  The efficiency of such policies and procedures 
will each be considered on their own merits, however, they may include 
appropriate measures / training for staff as regards suspected truant school 
children on the premises, measures / training covering how staff would deal with 
unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children causing 
perceived problems on / around the premises.  

23.3 This licensing authority will expect that applicants demonstrate a full 
understanding of the licensing objectives as well as the maximum stakes and 
prizes of the gambling that is permissible in Unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centres; that the applicant has no relevant convictions and that staff are trained 
to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.

24. (ALCOHOL) LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMITS

24.1 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption 
on the premises, to automatically have two gaming machines, of category 
C and / or D.  To take advantage of this entitlement, the person who holds the 
on-premises licence must give notice to this licensing authority of their intention 
to make gaming machines available for use, and must pay the prescribed fee.

24.2 This licensing authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any 
particular premises if:
 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 

licensing objectives
 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of Section 

282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the 
licensing authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of 
practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and 
operation of the machine has been complied with)

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
 an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises

24.3 If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, an application for a permit 
is required and this licensing authority shall consider that application based upon 

140



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

25

the licensing objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 
under Section 25 of the Act, and “such matters as they think relevant”.  This 
authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by case basis 
but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures in place to 
ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming 
machines.

Such measures may include:
 adult machines being in site of bar
 notices / signage

24.4 It should be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of 
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of 
the machine.

24.5 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises 
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas.  Any such application would most 
likely need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre premises 
licence.

24.6 Where an application is received for more than 19 gambling machines in alcohol 
licensed premises Officers will have the discretion to arrange a hearing for 
members to consider the application. 

24.7 It should be noted that this licensing authority can decide to grant the application 
with a smaller number of machines and / or different category of machines than 
applied for.  Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached.

25. PRIZE GAMING PERMITS

25.1 This licensing authority can grant or refuse an application for a permit, but cannot 
add conditions.  This licensing authority can only grant an application for a permit 
if it has consulted with the chief officer of police about the application.  This 
licensing authority will take into account any objections that the police may make 
which are relevant to the licensing objectives.  Relevant considerations would be 
the suitability of the applicant in terms of any convictions that they may have that 
would make them unsuitable to operate prize gaming; and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and issues about disorder. 

25.2 Given that the premises will particularly appeal to children and young persons, in 
considering what to take into account in the application process and what 
information to request from the applicant, this licensing authority will give weight 
to child protection issues.  Applicants will be required to set out the types of 
gaming that he or she is intending to offer and the applicant should be able to 
demonstrate:

141



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

26

 that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
regulations; and

 that the gaming offered is within the law.

25.3 The licensing authority will determine each application on its own merits.
 

(The Council as a licensing authority has the remit to set its own criteria for the 
above statement of principles on permits – the principles as set out above reflect 
the general issues considered to be most relevant by a number of other licensing 
authorities)  

25.4 In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority 
does not need to have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to 
any Gambling Commission’s guidance.  

25.5 It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 to which 
the permit holder must comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach 
conditions.  The conditions in the Act are:
 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied 

with;
 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 

which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played 
and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the 
game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played; 

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); 
and

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

26. CLUB GAMING AND CLUB GAMING MACHINE PERMITS

26.1 Members Clubs and Miners’ Welfare Institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may 
apply for a Club Gaming Permit.  The Club Gaming Permit will enable the 
premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines, of which one may be a 
category B3A, the others being of categories B4, C or D), equal chance gaming 
and games of chance as prescribed in regulations. 

26.2 Members Clubs and Miner’s welfare institutes – and also Commercial Clubs – 
may apply for a Club Machine Permit.  A Club Machine permit will enable the 
premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D).  NB 
Commercial Clubs may not site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery 
games in their club.

26.3 Members clubs must have at least 25 members and be established and 
conducted ‘wholly or mainly’ for the purposes other than gaming, unless the 
gaming is permitted by separate regulations.  A members club must be 

142



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

27

permanent in nature, not established to make commercial profit, and controlled 
by its members equally.

26.4 This licensing authority is aware that it may only refuse an application on the 
grounds that:
 the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial 

club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the 
type of permit for which it has applied

 the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and / or young 
persons

 an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 
applicant while providing gaming facilities

 a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; 
or

 an objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or the police.

26.5 There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a 
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any 
relevant provision of a code of practice about the location and operation of 
gaming machines.

27 SMALL SOCIETY LOTTERIES

27.1 Under the Gambling Act 2005, a lottery is unlawful unless it runs under an 
operating licence or is an exempt lottery. This Licensing Authority will register 
and administer small society lotteries as defined under the Act. Promoting or 
facilitating a lottery will fall into two categories: 

 Licensed Lotteries (requiring an operating licence from the Gambling 
Commission)

 Exempt Lotteries (including small society lotteries registered with 
Peterborough City Council)

27.2 Exempt lotteries are lotteries permitted to run without a licence from the 
Gambling Commission and are defined as:

 Small society lotteries;
 Incidental non-commercial lotteries; 
 Private lotteries;
 Private society lottery;
 Work lottery; 
 Residents’ lottery;
 Customers’ lottery.

Advice regarding the definitions of the above exempt lotteries is available from 
the Gambling Commission website: 

143



ITEM 10(c) – FOR INFORMATION

28

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/gambling_sectors/lotteries.aspx 

28. TEMPORARY USE NOTICES

28.1 A Temporary Use Notice (TUN) allows the use of premises for gambling where 
there is no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 
premises temporarily for facilities for gambling.  A Temporary Use Notice may 
only be granted to a person or company holding a relevant operating licence 
issued by the Gambling Commission. 

28.2 The Secretary of State has the power to determine what form of gambling can be 
authorised by Temporary Use Notices, and at the time of revising this Statement 
the relevant regulations state that Temporary Use Notices can only be used to 
permit the provision of facilities of equal chance gaming, where the gaming is 
intended to produce a single winner, which in practice means poker tournaments.

28.3 There are a number of statutory limits as regards Temporary Use Notices.  It is 
noted that it falls to licensing authorities to decide what constitutes a ‘set of 
premises’ where TUN’s are received relating to the same building / site.

28.4 This licensing authority expects to object to notices where it appears that their 
effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as 
one set of premises, as recommended in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
to Local Authorities.

29. OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES

This licensing authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside 
from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded.  This licensing authority will though consider the definition of a ‘track’ 
and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.

30. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Further information on the application process, application forms and applicable 
fees can be found at www.peterborough.gov.uk

144

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/gambling_sectors/lotteries.aspx


29

APPENDIX 1

MAP OF PETERBOROUGH

APPENDIX 2

145



30

LIST OF CONSULTEE’S

The Gambling Act requires that the following parties are consulted by Licensing 
Authorities: 

Responsible Authorities

 Cambridgeshire Constabulary – the chief officer of police
 Gambling Commission
 Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service
 Peterborough City Council – Planning Control
 Local Safeguarding Children Board
 Environment Agency
 HM Revenue & Customs

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area. The authority 
has therefore consulted: 

 The Peterborough Greyhound Stadium
 British Greyhound Racing Board
 Gala Group Ltd
 British Beer and Pub Association
 British Bookmakers Trade Association
 British Casino Association
 All Gambling Act 2005 Licence/Permit/Registration Holders (through the Council 

website under heading consultation). 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005: 

 Peterborough City Council – Ward & Parish Councillors
 GamCare
 All residents and businesses within the Peterborough area (through the Council 

website under heading consultation)

APPENDIX 3

146



31

GAMBLING ACT 2005
RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES CONTACT DETAILS

THE RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES:

Licensing Team: The Licensing Team
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1FA
Telephone: 01733 747474
Email: gambling@peterborough.gov.uk 

The Gambling Commission: Victoria Square House
Victoria Square
Birmingham B2 4BP
Tel: 0121 230 6500
Fax: 0121 237 2236
Email: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

Cambridgeshire Constabulary: Police Licensing Department
Cambridgeshire Constabulary North Division
Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1HZ

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue: Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service
Peterborough District
Dogsthorpe Fire Station
Dogsthorpe Road
Peterborough
PE1 3RE
 

Pollution Control: Pollution Control
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall 
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1FA

Planning: Planning Services

147

mailto:gambling@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk


32

Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1HF

HM Revenue & Customs: National Registration Unit
Portcullis House
21 India House
Glasgow
G2 4PZ

Safeguarding Children Board: Safeguarding Service Manager
Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1FB

For Vessels the certifying Authority will be:- 

Environment Agency
Kingfisher House
Goldhay Way
Orton Goldhay
Peterborough
PE2 5ZR

148



33

APPENDIX 4

Summary of licensing authority delegations permitted under the Gambling Act 2005.

Matter to be dealt with Full Council Sub-committee of 
licensing committee

Officers

Final approval of three 
year licensing policy X
Policy not to permit 
casinos X
Fee setting
(when appropriate) X
Application for premises 
licences

Where 
representations have 

been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no representations 
received/

representations have 
been withdrawn

Application for a variation 
to a licence

Where 
representations have 

been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no representations 
received/

representations have 
been withdrawn

Application for  a transfer 
of licence

Where 
representations have 
been received from 

the Commission

Where no representations 
received from the 

Commission

Application for a 
provisional statement

Where 
representations have 

been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no representations 
received/

representations have 
been withdrawn

Review of a premise 
licence X
Application for club 
gaming/club machine 
permits

Where objections 
have been made (and 

not withdrawn)

Where no objections 
made/objections have 

been withdrawn
Cancellation of club 
gaming/club machine 
permits

X

Applications for other 
permits X
Cancellation of licensed 
premises gaming machine 
permits

X

Consideration of temporary 
use notice X
Decision to give counter 
notice to temporary use 
notice

X

149



34

APPENDIX 5

Section 236 of the Act provides for the Secretary of State to make regulations to define four 
classes of gaming machine: categories A, B, C and D, with category B to be further divided into 
sub-categories.  

The below table sets out the current proposals for the different categories with the maximum 
stakes and prizes that apply (please note the below information is subject to change upon 
regulations being set).

Category of 
Machine Maximum Stake Maximum Prize

A Unlimited Unlimited

B1 £5 £10,0001

B2 £100 £500

B3 £2 £500

B3A £2 £500

B4 £2 £400

C £1 £100

D
Non-money prize (other than a crane 

grab machine or a coin pusher or 
penny falls machine)

30p £8

D
Non money prize (crane grab 

machine) 
£1 £50

D
Money prize (other than a coin pusher 

or penny falls)
10p £5

D
Combined money and non-money 
prize (other than a coin pusher or 

penny falls machine 10p £8 (of which no more than £5 may 
be money prize)

D
Combined money and non-money 
prize (coin pusher or penny falls 

machine

20p £20 (of which no more than £10 may 
be a money prize)

1 with the option of a maximum £20,000 linked progressive jackpot on a premises basis only 

150



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 11 

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE SINCE THE LAST MEETING

1. DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 25 NOVEMBER 2015

i. RURAL VISION AND PARISH CHARTER

Cabinet received a report, the purpose of which was for it to consider approval of a Rural 
Vision and Parish Charter for all rural villages and all rural and urban Parish Councils in 
Peterborough.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the Rural Vision and Parish Charter for all rural villages and all rural and urban 
Parish Councils in Peterborough.

ii.   FUTURE OF WIND AND SOLAR PROJECTS – AMERICA FARM

Cabinet received a report the purpose of which was to consider the cessation of the ground 
mounted solar PV project at America Farm and withdrawal of the related planning 
application.

Cabinet had received a report on 23 February 2015 which requested it to consider the way 
forward in respect of the two wind and three ground mounted solar PV projects, namely 
farms of Newborough (wind and solar), Morris Fen (wind and solar) and America Farm 
(solar only).

The report to Cabinet on the 23 February advised Members of potential issues relating to 
grid connections in the America Farm area. However this was now no longer relevant as 
the  Department for Energy and Climate Change (DECC) confirmed in August 2015 that the 
level of feed in tariff (FiTs) payments would significantly decrease over time, with the next 
reduction coming into force on the 1 January 2016 with a likely reduction of circa 80% of the 
tariff. DECC had also announced further reviews of the FiT and was likely to recommend 
further reductions in the rate over time. The reductions in FIT made the America Farm solar 
business model completely unviable. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the cessation of the solar project at America Farm and that the planning 
application in respect of America Farm be withdrawn.

iii. SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN 2015-2020

Cabinet received a report, the purpose of which was to update it on proposals to meet the 
statutory requirement for school places in Peterborough. The School Organisation Plan 
drew together the latest demographic data and the capital programme to identify the need 
for further school places. It also acted as a supplementary planning document to the Core 
Strategy document.

151



Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the School Organisation Plan in light of the pressures on school places and in 
terms of planning growth in the city. 

iv. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17 TO 2025/26

Cabinet received a report as part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework that 
required Cabinet to initiate and propose budget proposals to set a balanced budget for the 
forthcoming financial year.
 
The purpose of the report was to recommend that Cabinet approve the first phase of budget 
proposals for consultation to contribute towards closing the budget gap of £19.6m. Subject 
to Scrutiny feedback and comments from residents, partner organisations, businesses and 
other interested parties, Cabinet will recommend budget proposals to Council in December 
2015 to implement at the earliest opportunity.
 
The purpose of the report was also to outline the approach for the remaining budget 
process and to outline the financial challenge the council faced in setting a balanced budget 
for 2016/17.
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the phase one budget proposals as the basis for consultation. 

v. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME CONSULTATION 2016/17

Cabinet received a report, the purpose of which was to commence consultation for a 
localised council tax support scheme for the financial year 2016/17. There was a statutory 
requirement for the Council to set a localised council tax support scheme by 31 January 
2016 and this formed part of the formal budget process under the Budget and Policy 
framework.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

1. To approve consultation on Peterborough’s council tax support scheme 1 April 2016 – 
31 March 2017 that contains the following local components: 

a) No change to the existing scheme reduction of 30% for all eligible working age 
claimants; 

b) Align the council tax support scheme to Housing Benefit rules making it less 
complicated for claimants, namely to:

i. Limit backdating of council tax support to one month; and
ii. Removes family premiums from all new claimants, or existing claimants who 

would otherwise have had a new entitlement to the premium, with effect from 1 
May 2016.

 
2. To approve consultation on introducing a council tax discretionary hardship policy with 

effect from 1 April 2016.

3. To note the possible impact on government tax credit changes on Peterborough’s 
council tax support scheme from 1 April 2016.

4. To note further changes that would need to be considered for Peterborough’s council 
tax support scheme from April 2017.

152



vi. OUTCOME OF PETITIONS

Cabinet received a report following the presentation of petitions to Council at its meeting 
held on 14 October 2015.

The purpose of which was to update it on the progress being made in response to the 
petitions.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To note the action taken in respect of petitions (as detailed below).

Petition relating to the closure of the footpath between Benyon Grove and Sellers 
Grange

This petition was presented to Council on 14 October 2015 by Councillor Graham Casey on 
behalf of local residents. The petition requested the closure of the footpath between Benyon 
Grove and Sellers Grange owing to years of anti-social behaviour and damage to properties 
in the vicinity.

The Council’s Head of Peterborough Highways Service advised that the matter would be 
forwarded to the relevant officers for investigation. 

A further update will therefore be provided to Cabinet in due course.

Petition relating to saving Peterborough’s libraries

This petition was presented to Council on 14 October 2015 by Councillor Nick Sandford. 
The petition called upon Peterborough City Council to ring-fence library funding in the 
2016/17 budget for Vivacity.

The Council’s Client Manager, Culture and Leisure responded to Councillor Sandford 
stating that the Council was currently reviewing how it would meet the challenges of 
balance the 2016/17 budget. There were currently no proposals being considered to reduce 
library funding in 2016/17. The final decision on all funding would rest with the Council at its 
meeting in March 2016 and any matters, should they arise would be subject to appropriate 
consultation. 

2. DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 7 DECEMBER 2015

THESE DECISIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CALL-IN WHICH EXPIRES ON THURSDAY 10 
DECEMBER, MIDNIGHT.

i. PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL PROCUREMENT STRATEGY

Cabinet received a report which followed the development of a procurement strategy by the 
Procurement Working Group as part of the council’s Contract Rules and discussion by the 
Corporate Management Team (CMT).

The purpose of the Procurement Strategy was to provide a framework over the next five 
years for the Council to purchase goods, works or services from third parties. The strategy 
puts forward a number of outcomes to be delivered, in line with council priorities and the 
direction of a commissioning led council.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

1. To approve the procurement strategy; and 

153



2. To note the progress to date on investigating options for an ethical investment and 
procurement policy.

ii. CITY CENTRE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ENFORCEMENT

Cabinet received a report the purpose of which was to outline proposed measures that 
changed the way City Centre enforcement and compliance activity of Peterborough City 
Council was delivered. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To propose changes to the way that enforcement and compliance activity was delivered, in 
order to protect the City Centre from Anti-Social behaviour.

iii. PETERBOROUGH LOCAL PLAN (PRELIMINARY DRAFT VERSION)

Cabinet received a report which followed the approval of the Council’s Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) by Cabinet in July 2015, which identified that the Council would prepare a 
Preliminary Draft version of the Local Plan for public consultation in January 2016. 

The purpose of the report is for Cabinet to approve the Preliminary Draft version of the 
Local Plan for public consultation. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

1. To approve the Preliminary Draft version of the Peterborough Local Plan for public 
consultation starting in early 2016; and

2. To delegate authority to officers to make any minor, inconsequential amendments to the 
Document prior to its publication (in order to correct matters of fact or aid clarity to the 
reader).

iv. PETERBOROUGH STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Cabinet received a report which was submitted following the approval of the Council’s Local 
Development Scheme (LDS) by Cabinet in July 2015, which identified that the Council 
would prepare a new Local Plan by 2018.  

The purpose of the report was for Cabinet to approve the Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI). If the SCI was approved by Cabinet, it would come into force with 
immediate effect (subject to call-in procedures), and would guide the Preliminary Draft 
Local Plan consultation due to take place in January 2016, and future consultation rounds. 
It also informed how the Council would consult on planning applications. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To adopt the Statement of Community Involvement.

v. PHASE 1 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

Cabinet received a report as part of the Council’s agreed two-stage budget process as 
outlined in a report considered by Cabinet on 25 November 2015.

The purpose of the report was to enable Cabinet to consider the feedback from the 
consultation undertaken to date with Scrutiny, residents, partner organisations, businesses 
and other interested parties and to recommend to Council approval of phase one budget 
proposals.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

154



1. To have regard to the consultation feedback received to date and statutory advice 
detailed in the report when determining the phase one budget proposals, noting that 
consultation remains open and an addendum will be provided prior to the Cabinet 
meeting and to the Council meeting.

2. To recommend to Council (as detailed in x report) on the 17 December 2015, having 
had regard to feedback,

a) Approval of phase one budget proposals, summarised in appendices one and two, 
to enable implementation of these budget proposals to commence;

3. To note the timetable for the phase two consultation and formal approval of the 
2016/17 to 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy as detailed at section 5. 
Furthermore, budget proposals approved by Council on the 17 December will form part 
of the Medium Term Financial Strategy but will not form part of the second stage of 
consultation or Council debate on 9 March 2016.

3. CALL-IN BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION

Since the publication of the previous report to Council, the call-in mechanism has not been 
invoked. 

4. SPECIAL URGENCY AND WAIVER OF CALL-IN PROVISIONS

Since the publication of the previous report to Council, the waive of call-in provisions have 
not been invoked.

5. CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS 

CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

Cabinet Member 
for Children’s 
Services

Councillor Coles

5 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/81 Authorisation to Make a Compensation Payment 

The Cabinet Member approved the payment of £3,000 
to settle a historical complaint about decision making in 
Children’s Services.

Cabinet Member 
for Public Health

Councillor Lamb

5 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/82 Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment System

The Cabinet Member:
 
1.    Awarded a contract for the delivery of an Integrated 

Substance Misuse Treatment System within 
Peterborough to Crime Reduction Initiatives (CRI) 
for a total value of £12,542,157 from 1 April 2016 
until 31 March 2021 and a further option for the 
Council to extend for three 12 month periods.

 
2.   Authorised the Corporate Director: People & 

Communities to extend the contract for a further 
three 12 month periods at a cost of up to 
£2,315,510 per annum, should the Council exercise 
the option to extend.

155



CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

9 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/86 Formation of a Shared Planning Service 
Arrangement with Fenland District Council

The Cabinet Member approved:
 

1.    1. The establishment of a shared planning service 
between Peterborough City Council and Fenland 
District Council on a collaborative basis.

2.   2. That the Director of Growth and Regeneration in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Growth, 
Planning, Housing and Economic Development be 
authorised under Part 3 s3 para 3.13.5 (a) and (j) of 
the constitution to finalise the agreement.

Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

16 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/87 Consultation on a Selective Licensing Scheme

The Cabinet Member authorised public consultation on 
the proposals for Selective Licensing schemes for the 
areas of Central, North, Park, East, Fletton, Woodston, 
Stanground Central, Bretton North and Orton 
Longueville (part).

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

16 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/88 Discretionary Rate Relief ND21

The Cabinet Member:

1. Approved the award of Discretionary Rate Relief for 
charities and similar organisations (as shown on the 
schedule attached to the decision notice) to 31 
March 2017.

2. Rejected the applications for the award of 
Discretionary Rate Relief for charities and similar 
organisations (as shown on the schedule attached 
to the decision notice). 

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

Councillor John 
Holdich

16 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/89(a) Changes and Nominations to Outside Organisations

The Cabinet Member:
 
1.  Approved Empower Community Interest Company 

Limited as an additional external organisation to 
which an appointment opportunity has arisen.

 
2. Approved nominations for appointment vacancies to 

the board of Empower Community Interest Company 
Limited.

156



CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

3. Approved the categorisation of the appointments 
referred to in recommendations 1 and 2 as key 
partnerships and arrange for amendment of the 
Council’s partnership database.

In accordance with Part 3, Section 5 of the Constitution

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

23 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/89(b) Pleasure Fair Meadow

The Cabinet Member delegated authority to the 
Corporate Director Resources in accordance with  Part 3 
3.16.3 (b) for transferring the freehold interests of 
various Council owned assets at Fletton Quays to P.I.P 
(Fletton Quays) Limited and in the case of Pleasure Fair 
Car Park to P.I.P (Pleasure Fairs) Limited.

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

23 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/89(c) Fletton Quays

The Cabinet Member delegated authority to the 
Corporate Director Resources in accordance with  Part 
3 3.16.3 (b) for transferring the freehold interests of 
various Council owned assets at Fletton Quays to P.I.P 
(Fletton Quays) Limited and in the case of Pleasure Fair 
Car Park to P.I.P (Pleasure Fairs) Limited. 

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

27 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/90 Installation of Battery Storage onto Existing and 
Proposed PV Systems

 The Cabinet Member:
 
1. Awarded a contract of £1,628,370 to Mears Limited 

to carry out the installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) 
Panels to the [Tesam] property which will include 
battery storage to  this site; and

 
2. Delegated authority to the Corporate Director 

Resources to enter into an Access Agreement and 
Power Purchase Agreement with current and any 
future tenant of the property.

Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

27 October 2015

OCT15/CMDN/91 Extension to the Sutton Conservation Area

The Cabinet Member approved a boundary change to 
the Sutton Conservation Area as set out in the appendix 
to the decision.

157



CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

Cabinet Member 
for Children’s 
Services

Councillor Andy 
Coles

10 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/92 Step Up to Social Work Regional Partnership Inter–
Authority Agreement

The Cabinet Member approved the Council’s 
participation in the Step Up to Social Work Programme 
and entering into the Regional Partnership Inter-
Authority Agreement.

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

Councillor John 
Holdich

11 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/93 Extension to the Etton Conservation Area

The Cabinet Member approved a boundary change to 
the Etton Conservation Area, as set out in the appendix 
to the decision.

Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

11 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/94 Extension to the Bainton Conservation Area

The Cabinet Member approved a boundary change to 
the Bainton Conservation Area, as set out in the 
appendix to the decision.

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

17 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/95 Award of Contract for Car Leasing

The Cabinet Member authorised the award of a contract 
to Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust for a 
period of 5 years, to provide a salary sacrifice car 
leasing scheme.

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

Councillor John 

NOV15/CMDN/96 Eyrescroft Primary School

The Cabinet Member:
 
1. Approved the closure of Eyrescroft Primary School 

and authorise the execution and completion of a 
Commercial Transfer Agreement (CTA) between 
Peterborough City Council, the Governing Body of 

158



CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

Holdich

18 November 
2015

Eyrescroft Primary School and The Elliot Foundation 
Academies Trust.

2.  Authorised the grant of a 125 year lease of the land 
and buildings occupied by the School and known as 
Eyrescroft Primary School, together with the land 
currently used as a pre-school, at a peppercorn rent 
to The Elliot Foundation Academies Trust.

3.  Authorised entering into Deeds of Assignment with 
The Elliot Foundation Academies Trust to assign the 
benefit of the following contracts to The Elliot 
Foundation Academies Trust, to give effect to the 
terms of the CTA:

a.   Contract dated 12 August 2011 with Benchmark 
Contracts Limited;

b.    Contract dated 16 July 2007 with Elliott Group 
Limited; and

c.    Contract dated 1 August 2007 with AG Aylward 
EMS Limited.

Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

25 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/97 Mobile Homes Charging Schedule

The Cabinet Member authorised the adoption of the 
Mobile Homes Act 2013 Fees Policy. 

Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Councillor David 
Seaton

30 November 
2015

NOV15/CMDN/104 Delivery of Universal Credit Support Services

The Cabinet Member:
 

1 1.  Agreed that the Council works in partnership with  the 
Department of Work and Pensions  to deliver 
Universal Credit Support Services;

2.    2. To use Department of Work and Pensions grant 
funding to fund Citizens Advice Bureau £3753 until 
March 2016 to deliver Personal Budgeting Support to 
new Universal Credit claimants requiring assistance; 
and

3.   3. To use Department of Work and Pensions grant 
funding to fund Vivacity £1275 until March 2016 to 
provide digital support for Universal Credit claimants 
to make benefit claims online at Central Library.

159



This page is intentionally left blank

160



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 12

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

The following notices of motion have been received in accordance with the Council’s Standing Order 
13.1:

1. Motion from Councillor Nick Sandford

Council welcomes initiatives by Peterborough City Council to set up joint working arrangements 
with other local authorities

Council notes:

1. Current moves to set up Combined Authorities in a number of areas of the country including  
Greater Manchester, South Yorkshire and the North East and that these combined authorities 
are receiving significant delegations of powers and budgets from central government.

2. That “Greater Peterborough” has a travel to work area which includes parts of Cambridgeshire 
but also Rutland and parts of south Lincolnshire and east Northamptonshire. Peterborough 
also has strong historic links with Northamptonshire.

Council supports continuation of current discussions between PCC and neighbouring local 
authorities about the possibility of setting up a combined authority

Council requests the Leader to ensure that:

1. There should be no presumption that Cambridgeshire is our preferred partner in any future 
arrangements. 

2. Full consultation with councillors, key stakeholders and Peterborough residents take places 
before any final decisions are made. 

161



This page is intentionally left blank

162



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 13(a)

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact Officer(s): Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive and 
Returning Officer

Tel.  01733 452390

REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER – RESULTS OF THE WEST WARD BY-
ELECTION

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N
FROM : Returning Officer 

That Council receives and notes the results of the West Ward By-Election held on Thursday 29 
October 2015 (Appendix 1).

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The results of the West Ward By-Election for Peterborough City Council, held on Thursday 29 
October, 2015 can be seen at Appendix 1 to this report.

163



This page is intentionally left blank

164



APPENDIX 1

Dated Thursday, 29 October 2015 Gillian Beasley
Returning Officer

Printed and published by the Returning Officer, Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF

DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL
Peterborough

Election of a City Councillor for
West

on Thursday 29 October 2015

I, Gillian Beasley, being the Returning Officer at the above election, do hereby give notice that the 
number of votes recorded for each Candidate at the said election is as follows:

Name of
Candidate

Description
(if any)

Number of
Votes*

AIREY, Alex Green Party 94

AYRES, Lynne The Conservative Party Candidate 1174 (E)

MYLES, John Whitson UK Independence Party (UKIP) 415

POLLACK, Malcolm Liberal Democrats 103

SABIR, Mohammed Labour Party 742

* If elected the word 'Elected' appears against the number of votes.

The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: Number of
ballot papers

A want of an official mark 0

B voting for more Candidates than voter was entitled to 2

C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 0

D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty 2

E rejected in part 0

Total 4

Vacant Seats: 1 Electorate: 7001 Ballot Papers Issued: 2532 Turnout: 36%

And I do hereby declare that, …LYNNE AYRES……… is duly elected Councillor for West ward.
.

165



This page is intentionally left blank

166



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 13(b)

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO COMMITTEES FOLLOWING THE WEST WARD BY-ELECTION

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Director of Governance

It is recommended that the Council agrees the allocation of seats on Committees of the Council, 
subject to revised political balance seat arrangements (Appendix 1) following the West Ward By-
Election 

 

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 To review and approve the allocation of seats on committees following the West Ward By-
Election, in accordance with the statutory requirements concerning political balance. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 For the purpose of calculating the entitlement of each political group to seats on committees the 
following Committees are included:

Committee Seats
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
Employment Committee 
Licensing Committee (Regulatory)
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee
Appeals Committee (Service Issues)

7
  7
  7
  7

 10
  7
10
10
10 

TOTAL 75

3. IMPACT UPON THE POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY FOLLOWING THE BY-ELECTION

3.1 At the West Ward By-Election, held on 29 October 2015, Councillor Lynne Ayres was elected as 
a Conservative Councillor, this increased the Conservative Member numbers from 26 to 27.  

3.2 The political proportionality calculations were applied with the revised figures and this resulted in 
the following variances:

- Conservative Group entitlement to seats, increased by 2  
- Independent non-affiliated entitlement to seats, decreased by 1

3.3 There were no further variances other than those outlined above, all other Groups retained the 
same number of seats as allocated at the Annual Council meeting.

167



4. ALLOCATION OF SEATS

4.1 In order to allocate the required additional seats to the Conservative Group, the following is 
proposed:

- To allocate the currently vacant seat on the Appeals Committee to the Conservative 
Group; and

- To allocate one of the seats from the Independent non-affiliated member to the 
Conservative Group.

4.2 The Independent non-affiliated Member currently holds seats on the Scrutiny Commission for 
Health Issues and the Appeals Committee. As the Conservative Group will automatically be 
allocated the vacant seat on the Appeals Committee it is proposed that the Conservatives be 
allocated the seat on the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues from the Independent non-
affiliated Member. 

4.3 The allocations proposed take into account the position of all other Groups following discussions 
undertaken prior to Annual Council and reflect the application of the principles of Section 15 of 
the Act as far as is practicable.  

4.4 Discussions have taken place with the relevant Members with the intention to produce a fair 
distribution of the seats. All affected parties have indicated their agreement to these proposals.

 
4.5 The agreed totals must, as far as is reasonably practicable, reflect the aggregate entitlement of 

the political groups to committee seats. Council will therefore note the difference between this, 
their entitlement, and the actual distribution of seats their decision gives each political group.

5. IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Legal Implications

5.1.1 Under Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations, the Council has a duty to review the 
representation of different political groups as soon as practicable following an election in respect 
of bodies to which the section applies (for example the section applies to the Council’s ordinary 
committees). The section does not apply to the statutory Licensing Committee or Health and 
Wellbeing Board and so the political balance rules are not applied to these. 

5.1.2 Section 15 of the Act provides that, in performing this duty, the Council has a duty to make any 
such determinations as give effect so far as reasonably practicable to the following principles:

(a) that not all the seats on the body are allocated to the same political group;
(b) that the majority of the seats on the body are allocated to a particular political group if the 

number of persons belonging to that group is a majority of the authority’s membership;
(c) subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, that the number of seats on the ordinary 

committees of a relevant authority which are allocated to each political group bears the 
same proportion to the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of the authority as 
is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of the authority; and

(d) subject to (a) to (c) above, that the number of seats on the body which are allocated to 
each political group bears the same proportion to the number of all the seats on that body 
as is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of the authority.

5.1.3 At the Annual Council meeting, it was agreed that the Audit Committee and the Planning Review 
Committee be exempted from the political balance seat arrangements. It was also agreed that the 
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee be increased in size from a 
seven Member Committee to a 10 Member Committee. 

168



5.2 Financial Implications

5.2.1 There are no financial implications arising out of this report.

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985)

6.1 Peterborough City Council’s Constitution.

169



This page is intentionally left blank

170



Committee Size Cons Group Lab Group PIF Group UKIP Group
Lib Dem 

Group
WF Group

Non 

Affiliated
Vacant

47.37 21.05 10.53 7.02 7.02 5.26 1.75 0

seats seats seats seats seats seats seats seats

10 4.73 2.11 1.05 0.70 0.70 0.53 0.18 0.00

7 3.32 1.47 0.74 0.49 0.49 0.37 0.12 0.00

Committee Size Cons Group Lab Group PIF Group UKIP Group
Lib Dem 

Group
WF Group

Non 

Affiliated
Vacant

seats seats seats seats seats seats seats seats

10 5 2 1 1 1 0 0 0

7 3 1 1 1 1 0 0 0

Committee Seats Cons Lab PIF UKIP Lib Dem WF
Non 

Affiliated
Total

Scrutiny 

Commission for 

Rural Communities
7 3 1 1 1 0 1 0 7

Scrutiny 

Commission for 

Health Issues
7 4 1 0 1 1 0 0 7

Strong and 

Supportive 

Communities 

Scrutiny Committee

7 3 2 1 0 0 1 0 7

Creating 

Opportunities and 

Tackling 

Inequalities Scrutiny 

Committee

7 3 2 1 0 1 0 0 7

Employment 

Committee
7 3 2 1 0 1 0 0 7

Sustainable Growth 

and Environment 

Capital Scrutiny 

Committee

10 5 2 0 1 1 1 0 10

Regulatory 

Committee (Non 

Licensing Act 2003 

Committee)

10 5 2 1 1 1 0 0 10

Planning and 

Environmental 

Protection 

Committee

10 5 2 1 1 0 1 0 10

Appeals (Service 

Issues) Committee
10 5 2 2 0 0 0 1 10

Total of cttee 

places preallocated 

+ newly allocated 

proposals

36 16 8 5 5 4 1 75

Previous 

Entitlement
1 Vacant Seat 34 16 8 5 5 4 2 75

Entitlement of Total 36 16 8 5 5 4 1 75

Adjustments 

made
2 0 0 0 0 0 -1 2

APPENDIX 1

171



This page is intentionally left blank

172



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 13(c)

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Contact 
Officer(s):

Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive and Returning Officer
Rachel Parnell, Electoral Services Manager

Tel: 452300
Tel: 452277

  REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, PLACES AND STATIONS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O NS  

That Council approves the changes to polling districts, places and stations as set out in Appendix 1.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR THE REPORT

1.1     For Council to consider the revised polling districts, polling places and polling stations 
following the recent Electoral Boundary Review

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Electoral Administration Act 2006 (EAA 2006) introduced a duty on all local authorities to 
review their UK polling districts and polling places at least once every four years.  The 
Council’s first review was undertaken in 2007, followed by a second in 2011, and a third in 
2014.

2.2 Peterborough City Council recently undertook an Electoral Boundary Review. An order 
creating new electoral ward boundaries has now been approved. The new electoral 
arrangements will be implemented for the next year’s elections in Peterborough in 2016.  This 
has resulted in a further review of its polling districts, polling places and polling stations to take 
account of the new electoral arrangements. 

2.3 The boundary review created 22 new wards; 18 x 3 member wards, 2 x 2 member wards and 
2 single member wards.  This led to a redesign of the polling districts and polling stations.  

2.4 Work was carried out with the Electoral Boundary Review Group to review all polling station 
placements prior to consultation and they approved the list of polling station placements for 
consultation.

2.5      A consultation on the new polling districts and polling places began on 10th November 2015. 
The consultation included local political parties, district ward councillors, local MP’s 
constituencies, parish councils, disability awareness groups, neighboring authorities and 
voters.  Notice of the consultation is given at Appendix No. 2.

3.     OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION 

3.1     The consultation so far has provided feedback from interested parties and the proposed 
solutions are provided in Appendix 3. 
 

3.2     All consultation issues have been responded to separately.  Principal concerns were around 
GUN5 (Manor Drive area) and EYE2 (Eye Green area). Meetings were held to discuss the 
electoral process and the requirement for single polling stations within these areas, and it was 
agreed that mobile units would be sited within the areas of Manor Drive Car Park and Travel 

173



Lodge Car Park, Eye Green.  A representation was also submitted regarding the Stanground 
South polling station at Mace Road, as there is limited access from the Cardea development.  
A new polling district and polling station was requested to be sited within the Cardea area.  To 
date investigations are still on going with St Michael’s Church School.  Further updates will 
follow in tabled appendices.
There were no further significant issues which were not resolved by correspondence.  Details 
of all responses are set out in Appendix No.1. 

3.3 The consultation closes on 11th December 2015 and any additional comments received will be  
tabled at the Council meeting.

3.4      Once the Council has agreed the proposals, details of the new polling districts and polling 
places must be made available to the public at the Town Hall and in each Parliamentary 
Constituencies and on the Council’s website,   along with the reasons for the decisions on the 
review and the designation of polling districts and polling places as a result of the review.

3.5 The timetable for this review:

Notice of start of review – 10 November 2015
Council publishes the Returning Officer’s Proposals – 11 November 2015
Consultation on this proposal ends on – 11 December 2015
Report to Full Council – 9 December2015
Adoption by Full Council – 17 December 2015
Arrangements come into force at the publication of the next revised Register of Electors     
on 1 February 2016. 

4.    IMPLICATIONS

4.1      Legal Implications

As part of a review the Council must seek to ensure (a) that all electors in a constituency in the 
city have such reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in the circumstances and (b) 
that so far as is reasonable and practicable every polling place and polling station is 
accessible to electors who are disabled.

The Electoral Commission, while not having a direct responsibility for the review, can 
intervene where it considers that the reasonable requirements of electors or the needs of 
disabled electors have not been taken in account.

4.2     Financial Implications
Feedback was received requesting single polling stations within the two polling districts shown 
below:-

GUN5 – Mobile Unit, Manor Drive Car Park
EYE2 – Mobile Unit, Travel Lodge Car Park, Eye Green

This will have a financial implication on the Council’s Budget, as the Council does not receive 
any additional funding to support mobile polling stations.

The cost for a mobile unit, equipment to support disabled voters and staff to manage the 
polling station will be approximately £5,000.00, this will equate to approximately £10,000.00 for 
the two mobile polling stations mentioned above.  This will need to be funded from the Local 
Government Elections Budget.

    
5.     APPENDICES 

               Appendix 1 – Returning Officer’s Proposals.
   Appendix 2 – Notice of Review

               Appendix 3 – Feedback from consultee’s                

174



                APPENDIX 1
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015
Returning Officers Draft Proposals

Effective from 1 February 2016
BARNACK WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

BAI Bainton 260 Bainton Reading Room No proposed change
BAR Barnack 811 Barnack Village Hall No proposed change
HEL Helpston 869 Helpston Village Hall No proposed change
SOU Southorpe 118 Barnack Village Hall No proposed change
STM St. Martins 

Without
47 The Spinney No proposed change

UFF Ufford 200 Ufford Village Hall No proposed change
WOT Wothorpe 251 The Spinney No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

BRETTON WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
BRN1 Bretton 2619 Pyramid Community Centre No proposed change
BRN 2 Bretton 1448 Church of the Holy Spirit, 

The Cresset Centre
No proposed change

BRN 3 Bretton 1012 Heltwate Special School No proposed change
BRN 4 Bretton 1801 Tyesdale Community Centre No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

CENTRAL WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
CEN1 Central 1753 City College No proposed change
CEN2 Central 919 Rutland Court Polling station was 

formerly within East ward 
Part of East 2 has moved 

into Central ward
Proposed change

CEN3 Central 2689 The Beeches No proposed change
CEN4 Central 1916 City Church Peterborough

Formerly WES3 polling 
district

No proposed change

175



                APPENDIX 1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

DOGSTHORPE WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
DOG1 Dogsthorpe 1994 Christ the Carpenter Church 

Hall
No proposed change

DOG2 Dogsthorpe 1010 Don Bosco Centre No proposed change
DOG3 Dogsthorpe 1763 Dogsthorpe Community 

Centre
No proposed change

DOG4 Dogsthorpe 1993 Charteris Play Centre DOG5 has been merged 
into DOG4.

No proposed change 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

EAST WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
EAS1 East 1999 Saxon Community Centre No proposed change
EAS2 East 2468 Peterborough and District 

Bowls Club, Burton Street
This is a new polling 

station
Proposed change

EAS3 East 1183 Saxon Community Centre No proposed change
EAS4 East 2260 Parnwell Community Centre East 4 and East 5 have 

merged.
No proposed change

176



                APPENDIX 1
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015
Returning Officers Draft Proposals

Effective from 1 February 2016
EYE, THORNEY AND NEWBOROUGH 

WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
EYE1 Eye1 3161 Manor Farm Community 

Centre
No proposed change

EYE2 Eye2 512 Mobile Unit, Travelodge 
Car Park, 

Eye Green

Feedback received from 
Consultation 

Alteration from original 
proposal

BOR Borough Fen 101 Newborough Village Hall No proposed change
THO Thorney 1874 Thorney Community Centre No proposed change

NEW1 Newborough1 1283 Newborough Village Hall NEW1 and NEW2 have 
merged

Proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
FLETTON AND STANGROUND 

WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
FLS1 Fletton and 

Stanground
1443 Queensgate Hotel No proposed change

Alternative venue is being 
considered – Peterborough 

United Football Ground
FLS2 Fletton and 

Stanground
2350 Stanground Scout Hut No proposed change

FLS3 Fletton and 
Stanground

1482 Queensgate Hotel Former South Grove 
Community Centre 
Proposed change

Alternative venue is being 
considered – Peterborough 

United Football Ground
FLS4 Fletton and 

Stanground
1771 Southfields Community 

Centre
No proposed change

177



                APPENDIX 1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

FLETTON AND WOODSTON 
WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

FLW1 Fletton and 
Woodston

624 Dragonfly Hotel No proposed change

FLW2 Fletton and 
Woodston

2291 South Grove Community 
Centre

No proposed change

FLW3 Fletton and 
Woodston

1865 Belsize Centre No proposed change

FLW4 Fletton and 
Woodston

1784 Nene Valley Community 
Centre

Name changed:-Formerly 
Riverside Community 

Pavilion
No proposed change

FLW5 Fletton and 
Woodston

934 Botolph Arms No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
GLINTON AND CASTOR WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

GLI Glinton 1362 Glinton Village Hall No proposed change
DEE Deeping Gate 403 Newstead Farm No proposed change
PEA Peakirk 349 Peakirk Village Hall No proposed change
CAS Castor 708 Castor Village Hall No proposed change
ETT Etton 127 The Golden Pheasant 

(Marquee)
No proposed change

MAR Marholm 130 Marholm Village Hall No proposed change
MAX Maxey 610 Maxey Village Hall No proposed change
NOR Northborough 1100 Northborough Village Hall No proposed change
GLC Glinton and 

Castor
45 Glinton Village Hall Merge with Glinton

Proposed change
AIL Ailsworth 473 Ailsworth Methodist Chapel No proposed change

178



                APPENDIX 1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

GUNTHORPE WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
GUN1 Gunthorpe 1687 Brookside Methodist 

Church
This is a new polling 

station 
Proposed change

GUN2 Gunthorpe 1622 Gunthorpe Primary School No proposed change
GUN3 Gunthorpe 1490 Sports Pavilion No proposed change
GUN4 Gunthorpe 1085 Brookside Methodist 

Church
This is a new polling 

station
Proposed Change

GUN5 Gunthorpe 444 Mobile Unit, Manor Drive 
Car Park

Feedback received from 
Consultation 

Proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

HAMPTON VALE WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
HAV1 Hampton Vale 831 Hampton Leisure Centre This is a new polling 

station
Proposed change.

HAV2 Hampton Vale 3470 Hampton Vale Community 
Centre

No proposed change

HAV3 Hampton Vale 13 Hampton Vale Community 
Centre

No proposed change

179



                APPENDIX 1
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015
Returning Officers Draft Proposals

Effective from 1 February 2016
HARGATE AND HEMPSTEAD WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

HAH1 Hargate and 
Hempstead

798 Hampton Community 
Sports Association

Proposed change

HAH2 Hargate and 
Hempstead

3205 Hampton Hargate 
Community Room

This is a new polling 
station

Proposed change
HAH3 Hargate and 

Hempstead
41 Hampton Hargate 

Community Room
This is a new polling 

station
Proposed change

HAH4 Hargate and 
Hempstead 

Hampton Community 
Sports Association

Newly created Polling 
District to accommodate 
Orton Longueville Parish 

(new East ward)

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

NORTH WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
NTH1 North 2192 Fulbridge Academy No proposed change
NTH2 North 1829 Bluebell Meeting Room No proposed change
NTH3 North 2187 Open Door Baptist Church Previously within Central 

Ward
Proposed change

NTH4 North 932 Gladstone Park 
Community Centre

Previously within Central 
Ward

Proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
ORTON LONGUEVILLE WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

ORL1 Orton 
Longueville

1793 The Great Room, Orton Hall 
Hotel

No proposed change

ORL2 Orton 
Longueville

2032 Goldhay Community Centre No proposed change

ORL3 Orton 
Longueville

3205 Saint Luke’s Church No proposed change

ORL4 Orton 
Longueville

799 Goldhay Community Centre No proposed change

180



                APPENDIX 1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
ORTON WATERVILLE WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

ORW1 Orton Waterville 1535 Orton Waterville Village Hall No proposed change
ORW2 Orton Waterville 2620 Matley Community Church No proposed change
ORW3 Orton Waterville 1337 Christ Church Hall No proposed change
ORW4 Orton Waterville 1730 Wistow Community Centre No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

PARK WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
PAR1 Park 2685 All Saints Church Hall No proposed change
PAR2 Park 2867 St George’s School No proposed change
PAR3 Park 1514 Madeley House No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
PASTON AND WALTON WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

PAW1 Paston and 
Walton

2414 Walton Community Centre No proposed change

PAW2 Paston and 
Walton

2023 Paston and Gunthorpe 
Community Centre

No proposed change

PAW3 Paston and 
Walton

1255 Newton Hall No proposed change

PAW4 Paston and 
Walton

1798 Honeyhill Community and 
Childrens Centre

No proposed change

181



                APPENDIX 1

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

RAVENSTHORPE WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
RAV1 Ravensthorpe 1385 St Johns Hall No proposed change
RAV2 Ravensthorpe 2286 Highlees Primary School No proposed change
RAV3 Ravensthorpe 1799 Stafford Hall, Hampton 

Court
No proposed change

RAV4 Ravensthorpe 2304 St Andrews URC Church 
Hall

Previously West 1 polling 
station

Proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016
STANGROUND SOUTH WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

STS1 Stanground 
South

2844 St Michael’s Church No proposed change

STS2 Stanground 
South

802 The Fleet No proposed change

STS3 Stanground 
South

2314 Residents Lounge No proposed change
Alternative venue being 

investigated, which may split 
the polling district in two.  
Currently investigating St 

Michaels Church School as 
an extra polling station within 

this polling district.

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

WERRINGTON WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
WER1 Werrington 1934 Loxley Community Centre No proposed change
WER2 Werrington 1939 Hodgson Community Centre No proposed change
WER3 Werrington 2070 Ken Stimpson School No proposed change
WER4 Werrington 2284 Werrington Village Centre No proposed change

182



                APPENDIX 1
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015
Returning Officers Draft Proposals

Effective from 1 February 2016
WEST WARD

Polling 
District Code

Polling District No. of 
electors

Polling Station Returning Officer’s 
proposals

WES West 2064 St Botolphs Church No proposed change
BRS Bretton South 2325 Childrens Activity Centre No proposed change

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 2015

Returning Officers Draft Proposals
Effective from 1 February 2016

WITTERING WARD
Polling 

District Code
Polling District No. of 

electors
Polling Station Returning Officer’s 

proposals
WIT Wittering 1818 Parish Hall No proposed change
WAN Wansford 410 Wansford Community Hall No proposed change
UPT Upton 48 St Michael and All Angels 

Church
No proposed change

SUT Sutton 154 St Michael and All Angels 
Church

No proposed change

THH Thornhaugh 162 St Andrews Church No proposed change

183



This page is intentionally left blank

184



Notice of Review             APPENDIX 2

Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations 

1. Notice is hereby given that Peterborough City Council (the “Council”)is 
conducting a review of the polling districts, polling places and polling 
stations that fall within its boundaries.

2. Details of the existing arrangements and the Returning Officer’s 
proposals for the change will form the basis of this review.

3. The Council welcomes input from any elector resident within the district. 
Representations may be made about the existing or proposed 
arrangements and their accessibility for electors.

4. The Council particularly welcomes views regarding accessibility for 
disabled voters, in particular from bodies or persons with experience or 
expertise on these issues.

5. Where appropriate, alternative arrangements should be proposed.

6. Representations should be addressed to the Electoral Services Team, 
they will be available for public inspection during normal office hours at 
the Electoral Services, Town Hall, Bridge Road, Peterborough, 
Cambridgeshire, PE1 1GF.  A list of those persons or bodies making a 
representation will be published on the Council’s website 
www.peterborough.gov.uk 

7. The review will run from 11 November 2015 until 11 December 2015.
Final recommendations will be presented to the Full Council on 17 
December 2015. Implementation will take place upon revision of the 
register of electors on 1 February 2016.

Gillian Beasley
Electoral Registration Officer
Peterborough City Council
APPENDIX NO. 2

185

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

186



APPENDIX 3

TABLE OF RESPONSES TO POLLING DISTRICT, PLACES AND STATSIONS REVIEW 2015

From Date Issue Date referred to 
Electoral Services &
Comments

Reply

Fiona Radic
Green Party

23.10.2015 Here are my thoughts on better locations for polling stations in Park 
Ward.
A sketched map was enclosed with the email.
A spreadsheet was also enclosed with the email and drawings.

10.11.2015 Email sent 17.11.2015 to 
request spreadsheet to be 
resent, as it could not be 
opened.

Cllr Peach 10.11.2015 Although I know it’s difficult I really think with all the new homes 
some kind of polling station should be sited in Manor Drive area.

10.11.2015 Email sent 11.11.2015
Thank you for your response.  I 
will discuss this matter with 
Gillian and see if we can find an 
alternative venue or area for a 
mobile unit, but it is proving very 
difficult in that area.  If you have 
any ideas I would be really 
grateful.
Further email sent 26.11.2015 – 
I just wanted to update you on 
the meeting myself and Kim 
Sawyer had today, on behalf of 
Gillian, with the Managing 
Director at Alps International 
(Manor Drive).

The meeting was a very positive 
one, and we have managed to 
secure an area within Manor 
Drive Car Park to support a 
mobile polling station.

187



This will of course be added to 
the Returning Officer’s final 
recommendations which will be 
presented in Full Council on 17th 
December 2015.

Cllr Sandford 10.11.2015 I agree with Cllr Peach.  It is completely unreasonable to expect 
people in that area to cross a bridge and walk over a mile to the 
nearest polling station.  There are not even any buses for them to 
use.

10.11.2015 Email sent 11.11.2015
Thank you for your response.  I 
will discuss this matter with 
Gillian and see if we can find an 
alternative venue or area for a 
mobile unit, but it is proving very 
difficult in that area.  If you have 
any ideas I would be really 
grateful.
Further email sent 26.11.2015 – 
I just wanted to update you on 
the meeting myself and Kim 
Sawyer had today, on behalf of 
Gillian, with the Managing 
Director at Alps International 
(Manor Drive).

The meeting was a very positive 
one, and we have managed to 
secure an area within Manor 
Drive Car Park to support a 
mobile polling station.

This will of course be added to 
the Returning Officer’s final 
recommendations which will be 
presented in Full Council on 17th 
December 2015.

188



Cllr Chris Ash 10.11.2015 Hi Everyone, a note to all adding my agreement to the comments of 
Cllrs Peach and Sandford.  The Parkway is a big barrier and I doubt 
if anyone but the keen few making a special trip to go and vote.

10.11.2015 Email sent 11.11.2015
Thank you for your response.  I 
will discuss this matter with 
Gillian and see if we can find an 
alternative venue or area for a 
mobile unit, but it is proving very 
difficult in that area.  If you have 
any ideas I would be really 
grateful.
Further email sent 26.11.2015 – 
I just wanted to update you on 
the meeting myself and Kim 
Sawyer had today, on behalf of 
Gillian, with the Managing 
Director at Alps International 
(Manor Drive).

The meeting was a very positive 
one, and we have managed to 
secure an area within Manor 
Drive Car Park to support a 
mobile polling station.

This will of course be added to 
the Returning Officer’s final 
recommendations which will be 
presented in Full Council on 17th 
December 2015.

Stewart Jackson 
MP

11.11.2015 Thank you for your letter of 11 November 2015, inviting my 
comments as part of a consultation on the City Council’s review of 
polling places ahead of the City Council elections in May 2016.
I am broadly supportive of the proposed arrangements, with two 
specific exceptions:-

 I note that the rural ward(s) I represent to the east of the 
urban area, including two Key Service centres (Eye and 

11.11.2015 Email reply sent 19.11.2015 - 
Thank you for your email 
regarding the above, and I am 
pleased that you are broadly 
supportive of the Returning 
Officer’s proposals.

189



Thorney) in the proposed Eye, Thorney and Newborough 
ward, is to be served by only 5 polling stations for a land 
area only very slightly smaller than that of collectively the 
new Glinton and Castor, Barnack and Wittering wards 
respectively, which will be served by no fewer than 22 
polling stations – can you explain why that is the case? Why 
for instance should the settlement of Eye Green (512 
electors) not be permitted to have its own polling station in 
its own locality; whilst, for instance, Etton (127 electors) and 
St Martins Without (47 electors) have their own bespoke 
polling stations, for greater convenience, and at – one 
assumes – considerable cost to the taxpayer?

 On a similar point, it is wholly wrong and unfair that 444 of 
my constituents resident on the Paston Reserve urban 
extension in the Gun 5 polling district in the New Gunthorpe 
ward, are not to be provided with an on-site polling station 
(even a temporary one) and will be expected to cross a 
major trunk road (A15) by foot or car, in order to exercise 
their democratic franchise, at Gunthorpe Primary School.  
Why cannot a temporary polling station be set up at the City 
Council/Amey’s offices on Manor Drive close by?

I should be most grateful if you would investigate these matters 
in responding to the public consultation and preparing your final 
polling place recommendations.

With regards to your questions 
relating to the new Eye, Thorney 
and Newborough Ward, and 
particularly, the Eye Green area 
of the ward, I am looking into 
this matter and come back to 
you in due course.

With regards to your questions 
regarding Gun 5 polling district, I 
can confirm that we are in 
discussions with Alps Group 
regarding the siting of a mobile 
unit within the car par of Manor 
Drive; I will again update you 
once I have confirmed 
information.

Please therefore, accept this as 
a holding email and I will come 
back to you as soon as I have 
further information.
Further email sent: 26.11.2015
I just wanted to update you on 
the meeting myself and Kim 
Sawyer had today, on behalf of 
Gillian, with the Managing 
Director at Alps International 
(Manor Drive).

The meeting was a very positive 
one, and we have managed to 
secure an area within Manor 
Drive Car Park to support a 
mobile polling station.

This will of course be added to 
the Returning Officer’s final 

190



recommendations which will be 
presented in Full Council on 17th 
December 2015.

With regards to the EYE Green 
polling station, we have agreed 
to have a mobile unit in the 
Travelodge Car Park, as we did 
in this year’s elections. 

We will continue to investigate 
new polling station venues for 
these areas, but would be most 
grateful, if you are aware of any 
suitable venues in the future you 
could let me know.

Kate Day
Clerk to Hampton 
Parish Council

11.11.2015 This item has been added to our November Finances and General 
Purposes Committee to allow us to respond by 10 December, 
however, I wonder if you would clarify how the changes to the 
councillor numbers will be carried out Hampton for Hampton Parish 
Council.
Under the review the number of councillors on the Hampton Parish 
Council changes for each ward, with the Hargate total reducing by 
one and Vale increasing by one to 6 and 8 respectively.
Based on the information contained in the Appendix 1 I assume that 
the existing Hampton Vale Ward relates to the new polling district 
HAV2 and the existing Hargate Ward relates to the new polling 
district HAH2, however without a list of streets I am unable to check 
this.
I also anticipate that there will be elections in both areas to reduce 
the number of Hampton Hargate councillors from seven to six and in 
Vale to appoint an additional councillor representative.
Could you please advise if I have made the correct assumptions 
and also whether the Parish Council will be required to meet the 
cost of these elections, if so an estimate would be helpful to allow 

11.11.2015 25.11.2015 – Mark has spoken 
assistant clerk of the Parish 
Council, advise of the reason for 
4 polling stations within the 
Parish Boundary, to 
accommodate with the lack of 
premises within the Hargate 
Ward.
The assistant clerk advised 
Mark that the chairman may call 
later today (25th).
Further email sent from Mark 
Emson:-  I can confirm that I 
have spoken to Gemma 
(Assistant Clerk to Parish 
Council) last week regarding this 
but we were still awaiting 
confirmation from the Boundary 
Commission.  

191



monies to be set aside for the purpose? I can now confirm that Parish 
elections will take place for the 
new wards, Hampton Hargate (6 
seats) and Hampton Vale (8 
seats) on 5 May 2016.
Parish Councils will only be 
expected to meet the full cost of 
an election if it is unscheduled 
(such as a by election).  The 5 
May 2016 election will be 
classed as a scheduled election 
and therefore the costs that the 
Parish have to pay, if any, will 
be set out in its precept 
schedule.
For your information, the 
proposed new polling districts 
that will cover these wards are 
as follows:
Hampton Hargate = HAH2
Hampton Vale = HAV1 and 
HAV2
I hope that this answers your 
questions.  If you require 
anything further please let me 
know.

Steve Allen
Eye, Thorney & 
Newborough 
Conservative 
Team Leader

23.11.2015 May I request review if the current proposals with regard to the new 
combined Ward of Eye, Thorney and Newborough?
Can I suggest the need to reinstate a separate Polling Station to 
conveniently accommodate voters of Eye Green?
I believe for voters to travel to the suggested location for EYE2, 
Manor Farm Community Centre, will be a disincentive to vote, 
particularly for the elderly, or those without transport.

24.11.2015 Email sent 24.11.15 – Thank 
you for your feedback to the 
polling district review.  We will 
look in to the polling station at 
EYE Green and come back to 
you in due course.  Please 
accept this email as a holding 
email.
Further email sent 26.11.2015 - 
I just wanted to update you on 

192



the EYE Green polling station; 
we have agreed to have a 
mobile unit in the Travelodge 
Car Park, as we did in this 
year’s elections. 

This will of course be added to 
the Returning Officer’s final 
recommendations which will be 
presented in Full Council on 17th 
December 2015.

We will continue to investigate 
new polling station venues for 
this area, but would be most 
grateful, if you are aware of any 
suitable venues in the future you 
could let me know.

Chris Wiggin 23.11.2015 Thank you for the information I am unclear on the new polling 
district boundaries for Hargate and Hempstead ward.  Could you 
clarify these for me please?

Email reply 23.11.2015: Thank you, however I can find no record of 
specific polling districts under the new boundaries, just new city and 
parish ward boundaries.  My best guess is the following for Hargate 
and Hemstead:-
HAH1 – Hempstead and the small part of Orton Longueville Parish
HAH2 – The new Hargate ward of Hampton Hargate and Vale 
Parish
HAH3 – land to the East of London Road that will become Hampton 
Leys, plus the few houses on Yaxley.
Could you confirm this is correct?

23.11.2015 Email sent: Due to the ordnance 
survey licence, I am unable to 
send copies of plans for this, but 
you are able to look on the 
Boundary Commission website 
and this shows all the areas.
Please let me know if you 
require any further information.

Email sent 23.11.2015: Yes you 
are correct, although HAH1, the 
small part that is Orton 
Longueville Parish is to become 
HAH4.
If you are about in the City and 
would like to pop in and have a 
look at the map we have in the 
office we can discuss this 
further.

193



Email reply 02.12.2015: Apologies for the delay in getting back to 
you, I have been on holiday.
Where is the polling station for HAH4 to be?  I cannot see it 
mentioned in the consultation table for station documents you 
circulated. 

Email reply 02.12.2015: It does make sense to have an HAH4 
polling station for the small part of Orton Longueville parish, 
however I agree that there does not seem to be a logical place to 
put it in that area.  According to the Consultation Table, Hampton 
Hargate is showing as moving to the Community Room, and 
Hempstead remaining at the Hampton Community Sports 
Association – is this correct?  I believe they should be the other way 
round, as you have to drive past Serpentine Green to get to the 
HCSA from Hempstead.
I think the Hampton Community Sports Association is the best 
polling station for Hampton Hargate, as it is right in the middle of 
Hampton Hargate and has car parking available.
For Hempstead, Orton Longueville, and HAH3, given the lack of 
suitable facilities available in these areas, the Community Room at 
Serpentine Green would seem to me to be most suitable place for 
the polling station, given availability of parking and public transport 
to Hempstead.
For Hampton Vale, I believe the proposed changes to polling 
stations are absolutely fine.  I believe the Hampton Leisure Centre 
and Community Centre to be most convenient locations for polling 
stations.

Email sent 02.12.2015: I hope 
you had a fantastic holiday.  
After discussions it was agreed 
to have HAH4 polling district, we 
do have an issue with polling 
stations in that area.  At present 
we are proposing the polling 
station to be Hampton 
Community Sports Association.
If you have any ideas for venues 
for polling stations within this 
area, please can you let me 
know, as it is proving a little 
difficult!

Email sent 03.12.2015: I can 
confirm that the consultation 
table is correct.  Hampton 
Hargate is moving to the 
Community Room, this is due to 
the size of the electorate and we 
would require this to be a double 
polling station to support HAH2 
and 3.

Hampton Community Sports 
Association is too small to 
accommodate 2 polling stations; 
therefore, it has been proposed 
to have HAH1 in this polling 
station.   During the 
Parliamentary Election in May 
2015, we did receive a lot of 
complaints from voters about the 
size of the polling station, as this 
at the time was used as a 

194



double polling station.  With this 
in mind we have proposed the 
options show within the 
consultation table.

I do take on board your 
comments regarding driving by 
one to get to the other polling 
station, but it is again an issue 
regarding the size of the polling 
station against electorate.  Each 
polling station can 
accommodate no more than 
2,500 electorate; this is based 
on the Electoral Commission 
guidance.

I hope this answers all your 
questions and you are happy 
with the rationale proposed in 
the consultation table.

Please do not hesitate to contact 
me if you require any further 
information.

Cllr Brian Rush 01.12.2015 Could you please look into having a polling station on the 
Cardea/Stanground South development?  This would encourage 
more residents to vote.  There is limited access from the 
development to Mace Road polling station where they have to vote 
at the moment.

01.12.2015 Email sent 1.12.2015 – 
Thank you for your email the 
above review.

I will arrange to have a drive 
around and see if there are any 
suitable venues that we could 
use.  I did notice that there is a 
school in that area, I will give 

195



them a call and discuss this 
matter with the head teacher.

If you know of any other venues 
in that area that would be a 
suitable option please could you 
let me know?

I will come back to you in due 
course regarding the possibility 
of the school.

Last updated: 09.12.2015

196



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 13(d)

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

REGISTRATION OF THE MAYOR’S CHARITY WITH THE CHARITY COMMISSION

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Director Governance

That Council resolves to apply to the Charity Commission:

a) for charitable status of the Mayors Charity; and
b) to appoint the role of the Mayor as trustee of the charity.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 The Mayor’s charity is a long established tradition involving the Mayor and the Mayor’s charity 
committee in organising and participating in a wide range of fundraising events, during the 
Mayoral year. The proceeds are gifted to a charity or charities of the Mayor’s choice.  At present 
the Mayor’s charity is not registered with the Charity Commission.  The Mayor’s charity has an 
annual income in excess of £5,000, therefore to ensure compliance with the Charities Act 2011 it 
is required to register with the Charity Commission.  

1.2 Registering the Mayor’s Charity with the Charity Commission will ensure the charity fulfils its legal 
obligation.

2. BACKGROUND (& CONSULTATION)

2.1 The purpose of the Charity Commission is to register eligible organisations which are established 
only for charitable purposes and to regulate charities to ensure that the public can support 
charities with confidence.  The Charity Commission also ensures charities meet their legal 
requirements, makes the appropriate information about each registered charity widely available 
and provides online services and guidance to help charities run as effectively as possible.

2.2 There are considerable benefits associated to registering the Mayor’s charity with the Charity 
Commission.  These include:

 Registered charities are readily recognised and enjoy considerable support from funders and 
other potential supporters.  Registration will make the public aware of the charity’s status and 
its regulation, enhancing the public’s recognition and trust of the charity.

 Registered charities can benefit from a variety of tax reliefs when registering their status with 
the Commission.  These tax reliefs include Gift Aid relief on donations from individuals.

 Charities that have registered with the Charity Commission can be eligible for certain sources 
of grant funding that are open only to organisations with charitable status.

2.3 The Director of Governance, Legal Services and the Mayor’s Charity Committee have been 
consulted throughout the review of how to register the charity with the Charity Commission and 
obtain registered charity status.  

2.4 The implications and requirements to facilitate this registration are outlined within the following 
section.

197



3. IMPLICATIONS

3.1 Registration of the Mayor’s charity with the Charity Commission can be completed within 30 
days.  Subsequent to registration there are several steps which must be taken and completed, 
which will form part of the registration process.

3.1.1 The charity’s purpose
It is a legal requirement that the charity will be run in a way that’s consistent with and supports its 
purpose.  The charity’s purpose is what it is set up to achieve, the reason it exists.  The charity’s 
purpose is important as it will assist the Charity Commission to decide if the Mayor’s charity is a 
charity and HMRC to decide if the charity qualifies for tax relief.  It also explains to those who 
run, support or benefit from the charity what it does and who it helps.

The Mayor’s charity will define its charitable purposes for the public benefit as ‘Income generated 
through fundraising events throughout the city of Peterborough which are organised by the 
Mayor’s charity and from donations by individuals and local organisations.  The income is 
applied to support the Mayor’s nominated local charitable organisations based locally within the 
city of Peterborough or any other charitable projects which the Mayor’s charity deem worthy and 
to promote such other charitable purposes as may from time to time be determined’.

3.1.2 The charity’s name
A name must be selected by those responsible for running the charity and it is this name which 
will be registered with the Charity Commission.  The Charity Commission’s guidance 
recommends a unique, name and further to consideration of this the Mayor’s charity has decided 
upon ‘The Mayor of Peterborough’s Charity Fund’. 

3.1.3 The charity’s structure
In order to register the charity it must be decided what sort of legal structure the charity will 
adopt.  The type of structure chosen affects how a charity will operate and will be defined by its 
‘governing document’.  

After careful consideration, the structure chosen for the Mayor’s charity will be that of an 
unincorporated association.  This was considered the appropriate choice due to the charity:

 being relatively small in terms of assets;
 to be run by charity trustees who will be appointed to hold office for fixed terms;
 taking account of the views of local organisations through membership or as users; and 
 carrying out its work wholly through the voluntary effort and contributions of its members.

3.1.4 The charity’s governing document
The charity’s structure will be defined by its governing document, the legal document that 
creates the charity and says how it should be run.  The type of charity structure selected 
determines the type of governing document.  An unincorporated association will adopt a 
constitution as its governing document.

 
The charity’s constitution will set out its name, its charitable purposes (‘objects’), what it can do 
to carry out its purposes (‘powers’), who runs it (‘trustees’) and who can be a member (if 
appropriate), how meetings will be held, how many trustees to appoint and how, whether the 
trustees can change the governing document, including its charitable objects (‘amendment 
provisions’) and how to close the charity (‘dissolution provisions’).

3.1.5 The charity’s trustees
The charity’s trustees are those will serve on the governing body of the charity and will make 
decisions about how to run the charity.  The trustees will be responsible for the general control 
and management of the administration of the charity, ensuring it is solvent, well-run and meets 
the needs for which the charity is set up.  

198



The trustees will ensure that the charity complies with charity law, and with the requirements of 
the Charity Commission as regulator.  They will also ensure that the charity does not breach any 
of the requirements or rules set out in its governing document and that it remains true to the 
charitable purpose and objects set out there, whilst acting with integrity, and avoid any personal 
conflicts of interest or misuse of charity funds or assets.

The charity structure selected by the Mayor’s charity requires the number of trustees to be not 
less than three and to have a chair, a secretary and a treasurer.  The charity structure chosen 
can appoint charity trustees to hold office for fixed terms.  For the current mayoral year the 
charity trustees of the Mayor’s charity will be the Mayor, Councillor John Peach; the chairperson 
of the charity, Councillor Bella Saltmarsh and the secretary and treasurer of the charity, Helen 
Sargent.

The Mayor, as trustee, will hold office for a fixed term in accordance with the Mayoral year and 
the process will be repeated as each new Mayor is appointed.  The charity’s governing 
document will outline how trustees are to be appointed and it will be recognised that some 
trustees are appointed because of an office which they hold (known as ex officio trustees), as will 
be the case of the Mayor.  At the commencement of each Mayoral year, the new Mayor’s 
appointment as trustee of the charity will be notified to the Charity Commission.

3.1.6 Requirements post registration
Once the Mayor’s charity has registered with the Charity Commission and received a charity 
registration number, there are certain requirements which must be completed annually.

The Mayor’s charity will be required to submit an annual return to the commission if its income is 
over £10,000 and also be required to keep the charity’s registered details current.  No annual 
return is required for income below £10,000.  This will be the responsibility of the charity. 

The charity’s annual return must be sent within 10 months of the end of the financial year, 
otherwise risk being marked ‘overdue’ on the commission’s register.  Additional information will 
be required if the charity’s income is over £25,000, e.g. the charity’s accounts, an independent 
examiner or auditor’s report and a trustee’s annual report.

Subsequent to registering the Mayor’s charity with the Charity Commission the charity will get 
recognition for tax purposes.  In order to get certain tax reliefs the charity must be recognised by 
HMRC, which can only be completed once the charity has been registered with the Commission.  
The Mayor’s charity will be entitled to claim back tax that’s been deducted on bank interest and 
donations, also commonly known as Gift Aid.

4. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985)

None.

199



This page is intentionally left blank

200



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM. 13(e)

17 DECEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

  ALTERNATIVE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Chair of the Design and Implementation Working Group

That Council:

1. Notes the progress made by the Design and Implementation Working Group in designing 
the preferred model of alternative governance; a hybrid model of executive decision 
making with a greater involvement of pre-scrutiny review (a Peterborough model); and

2.  Agrees that the Design and Implementation Working Group should report their 
constitutional proposals to Council in January 2016.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 On 15 July 2015 the Council agreed to adopt an alternative form of governance to take 
effect from the Annual Council meeting 2016. It noted that the preferred model was a 
hybrid model of executive decision making with a greater involvement of pre-scrutiny 
review (a Peterborough model). A ‘hybrid’ model of governance is where the executive 
(Cabinet and Leader) is retained but the scrutiny function alters its focus to become an 
advisory body to the executive in addition to providing its post scrutiny functions. It also 
agreed to set up a Design and Implementation Working Group to report their detailed 
constitutional proposals to Council by December, 2015.  

1.2 This report outlines the progress made by the Design and Implementation Working 
Group and asks the Council to note its progress. It is also asked to agree that a further 
report be submitted to the Council in January 2016 to confirm the constitutional 
proposals required to implement the hybrid model and a proposed structure for scrutiny 
committees.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Before the Local Government Act 2000, there existed a single model of governance 
for all Councils.  All decisions were made at either full council or the committee to which 
it had delegated its responsibilities.  

2.2 The 2000 Act abolished the committee system and required all councils to adopt a new 
executive model of governance with either an elected mayor and cabinet, a council 
manager or an elected leader and cabinet.

2.3 Peterborough City Council has operated executive arrangements since 2001 under a 
Leader and Cabinet model with delegated decision making resting with the Cabinet or 

201



individual Cabinet members according to their portfolio.  There is limited delegation to 
officers only for non-key executive decisions. The Council retains some principal 
functions. It has responsibility for the budget and the major policy framework of the 
Council. It also retains some regulatory decision making powers, the majority of which 
it has delegated to individual committees (planning committee, employment 
committee, service appeals and scrutiny).

2.4 The Localism Act 2011 allowed Councils to exercise discretion regarding their 
governance arrangements and Councils could continue their existing executive 
arrangements, return to a committee system or adopt other governance arrangements.

3. THE PREFERRED MODEL OF GOVERNANCE

3.1 In 2014, the Alternative Governance Working Group was set up to explore the form of 
governance most suitable for Peterborough City Council.  Although the Working Group 
did not unanimously agree on a preferred single form of governance, all members of 
the Working Group agreed they would not object to a form of governance based largely 
on a model operated at Wandsworth London Borough Council.  

3.2 In this model the executive system of decision making is retained but all reports are, 
where possible, referred to Scrutiny meetings in advance of the decision being 
considered by the executive.  The scrutiny committees make recommendations on 
those proposals which the executive take into account before making their decision.

3.3 The Leader and Cabinet are therefore retained, providing the leadership and focal 
point for the Council which many in the Working Group considered to be a primary 
benefit of the executive model.  With the new role played by scrutiny, this model also 
allows for backbench and opposition members to take part in the formulation of policy 
and decision making and so provides the inclusivity which other members of the 
Working Group considered to be the primary benefit of a new model.  

 
4. DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION WORKING GROUP 

4.1 The Council at its meeting in July 2015 agreed the formation and terms of reference of 
a working group to design and implement the new proposals; and requested a 
report on their detailed constitutional proposals to Council by December 2015.

4.2 Since July, the Design and Implementation Working Group has met five times; once in 
July and September, twice in October and once in November.  It has considered:

(a) the principles for designing a hybrid model,
(b) the key elements of the Wandsworth model and how it could be adapted to suit 

Peterborough,
(c) a number of approaches for designing suitable proposals for Peterborough; 

including deciding which decisions should go through the pre decision scrutiny 
process, whether there should be a reference up process and the form it should 
take in addition to the current call in arrangements, 

(d) options for consulting on the budget under a hybrid model, and
(e) the constitutional, process and timetabling implications of the new 

arrangements.

4.3 It recognised the current scrutiny structure would not work under a hybrid model for a 
number of reasons; any future structures needed to be aligned with cabinet and officer 
portfolios to ensure the correct matters were referred to scrutiny committees. Decision 

202



making needed to be timely and avoid Cabinet members and officers attending  
numerous scrutiny meetings immediately prior to Cabinet. 

4.4 The Design and Implementation Working Group also arranged to hold two workshops 
for all scrutiny members:

(a) the first workshop in October was to seek scrutiny member’s views on key elements 
of the hybrid model, the current scrutiny arrangements and the improvements they 
would like to see.  The workshop fed back on their views on the future role of 
scrutiny and the design principles for a future scrutiny structure.

(b) the second workshop was held on 7 December and focused on a revised structure. 

4.5. Both workshops were guided by a representative of the Centre for Public Scrutiny.

4.6 Whilst the Design and Implementation Group has almost finalised its proposals for a 
hybrid model, it has not been possible to finalise the revised scrutiny structure for this 
meeting. Therefore, it is recommended that Council receive a report on the detailed 
constitutional proposals in January 2016 including a revised scrutiny structure.  

5. IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial implications: There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
Part of the terms of reference of the Design and Implementation Group will be to 
assess whether there are any financial implications arising out of the change to the 
new model.  It is not possible to anticipate the needs of the new structure at this stage, 
but this will be done as part of the final proposals.

5.2 Legal implications: The Council can alter its governance arrangements by a resolution 
at Council.  

5.3 There are no further implications arising from this report.  

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985)

203



This page is intentionally left blank

204


	Agenda
	3 (a) Extraordinary Council Meeting
	3 (b) Council Meeting
	4 Mayor's Announcements
	10 Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council
	10 (a) Cabinet Recommendation - Phase One Budget Proposals
	10a. Phase 1 Budget Proposals - Cabinet Addendum
	10a. Phase 1 Budget Proposals - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016-17 to 2025-26

	10 (b) Licensing Committee Recommendation - Statement of Licensing Policy - Licensing Act 2003
	10b. Statement of Licensing Policy

	10 (c) Licensing Committee Recommendation - Statement of Principles - Gambling Act 2005
	10c. Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles

	11 Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting
	12 Motions on Notice
	13 (a) Report of the Returning Officer - Results of the West Ward By-Election
	13a. Appendix 1 - Report of the Returning Officer - West Ward By-Election

	13 (b) Allocation of Seats to Committees Following the West Ward By-Election
	13b. Appendix 1 - Allocation of Seats to Political Groups Following West Ward By-Election

	13 (c) Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations
	13c. Appendix 1 - Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations
	13c. Appendix 2 - Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations
	13c. Appendix 3 - Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations

	13 (d) Registration of the Mayor's Charity with the Charity Commission
	13 (e) Alternative Governance Arrangements Update

